Y Pwyllgor Deisebau

Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd

Dyddiad:
Dydd Mawrth, 3 Mehefin 2014

Amser:
09.00

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Steve George

Clerc y Pwyllgor

029 2089 8421
deisebau@cymru.gov.uk

Kayleigh Driscoll
Dirprwy Glerc y Pwyllgor
029 2089 8421
deisebau@cymru.gov.uk

Cynulliad
Cenedlaethol
Cymru

National
Assembly for
Wales

o

Agenda

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (9.00)

2  Deisebau newydd (9.00 - 9.10)

2.1 P-04-557 Y Gwasanaeth Tribiwnlys Prisio (Tudalen 1)

3 Y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ddeisebau blaenorol (9.10 - 11.00)
3.1  P-04-526 Gwnewch Senedd TV yn hygyrch i bobl fyddar (Tudalennau 2 - 5)

Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth

3.2 P-04-319 Deiseb ynghylch Traffig yn y Drenewydd (Tudalennau 6 - 7)

3.3 P-03-315 Deiseb i gael croesfan newydd dros Afon Dyfi (Tudalennau 8 - 12)

Tai ac Adfywio



3.4 P-04-487 Cynllun benthyg blaendal Llywodraeth Cymru i’r rheini sy’n prynu ty
am y tro cyntaf yng Nghymru (Tudalennau 13 - 19)

3.5 P-04-536 Rhoi’r Gorau i Ffatrioedd Ffermio Gwartheg Godro yng Nghymru
(Tudalennau 20 - 22)

Diwylliant a Chwaraeon

3.6 P-04-447 Ymgyrch am Gerflun o Harri’r Seithfed ym Mhenfro (Tudalennau 23
- 27)
3.7 P-04-539 Achub Cyfnewidfa Lo (Tudalennau 28 - 68)

Cyllid

3.8 P-04-436 Gwariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru (Tudalennau 69 - 72)

Addysg

Bydd y ddwy eitem a ganlyn yn cael eu trafod ar y cyd

3.9  P-04-437 Gwrthwynebu cofrestru gorfodol ar gyfer plant sy’n derbyn addysg
yn y cartref (Tudalen 73)

3.10 P-04-517 Atal Llywodraeth Cymru rhag cyflwyno system i fonitro plant sy’n
dewis cael eu haddysgu gartref o dan wedd diogelu (Tudalennau 74 - 76)

lechyd

3.11 P-04-448 Gwella gwasanaethau iechyd rhywiol yng ngorllewin y Fro
(Tudalennau 77 - 78)

3.12 P-04-449 Ysbyty Tywysoges Cymru Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr - Achub ein
Gwasanaethau - Atal yr Israddio! (Tudalennau 79 - 80)

3.13 P-04-456 Dementia - Gallai hyn ddigwydd i chi (Tudalennau 81 - 90)

3.14 P-04-502 Canolfan Lles ar gyfer Cymru (Tudalennau 91 - 96)

3.15 P-04-530 Labelu Dwyieithog (Tudalennau 97 - 98)

Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd

3.16 P-04-500 Galw am Reoleiddio Sefydliadau Lles Anifeiliaid yng Nghymru



(Tudalennau 99 - 140)



Eitem 2.1

P-04-557 Y Gwasanaeth Tribiwnlys Prisio
Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym ni, y tanysgrifiedig, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog
Llywodraeth Cymru i gynnal adolygiad llawn o weithdrefnau, rheolaeth a
gweinyddiaeth Gwasanaeth Tribiwnlys Prisio Cymru a darparu gwasanaeth
effeithiol, tryloyw ac atebol i bobl Cymru.

Prif ddeisebydd: Mr David Grant
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 3 Mehefin 2014

Nifer y llofnodion: 8 Cyflwynwyd deiseb bapur gysylltiedig a chasglwyd 5 o

lofnodion.

Tudalen y pecyn 1



Eitem 3.1
P-04-526 Gwnewch Senedd TV yn hygyrch i bobl fyddar

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i ddarparu gwasanaeth
isdeitlo ac iaith arwyddion pan fydd dadleuon a thrafodion y Cynulliad yn
cael eu darlledu ar y teledu, er mwyn i’r 300,000 o bobl sydd a byddardod a
nam ar y clyw yng Nghymru ddilyn y broses ddemocrataidd fel pobl eraill.
Prif ddeisebydd: Mervyn James

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 21 lonawr 2014

Nifer y llofnodion: 25

Tudalen y pecyn 2



Y Fonesig Rosemary Butler AC f%

Dame Rosemary Butler AM
Llywydd

Presiding Officer
.

William Powell AM

Chair, Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

Your ref: P-04-526
Our ref: PO743/RB/HP

20 May 2014

™

{17 f/! . g/,!
Petition 04-526 - Please Make Senedd TV Accessible to Deaf People

Thank you for your letter of 30 April which seeks clarification about the work
undertaken with S4C to pilot the provision of British Sign Language
interpretation of First Minister’s Questions, and the future of the service.

As | outlined in my letter to you of 21 February, the service was welcomed by
members of the Deaf community who were in contact with Assembly staff but
there was some concern about the accuracy of the interpretation due to the
pace and complexity of the subject matter of plenary proceedings. The
speed of the proceedings and the need for interpreters to qualify large
figures or finger spell acronyms to contextualise the discussions for Deaf
users meant that sometimes the efficacy of the interpretation could be
compromised.

The interpreters themselves were also concerned about the accuracy and
guality of their provision due to the speed of proceedings and, as a result,
they did not feel comfortable in having their work archived. This meant that
there was no lasting record of First Ministers Questions with BSL subtitles.
More significantly, because of these concerns, it had proved to be difficult to
secure interpreters to continue this service and, regretfully, in conjunction
with S4C, we decided to place the pilot on hold.

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg/We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd CF99 1NA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff CF99 1NA
Swyddfa.Breifat@cymru.gov.uk Private.Ofhice@wales.gov.uk
www.cynulliadcymru.org www.assemblywales.org

T +44 (0)29 2089 8230 Tudalen 'y pecyn 3T 144 (0)29 2089 8230




o

Llywydd
Presiding Officer

However, we have recently restarted discussions with S4C and the Wales
Council for Deaf People on reintroducing the service, discussing how it can
be improved based on the findings of the pilot and using interpreters that
are comfortable with the requirements of the task. These discussions are at
an early stage, and we will of course provide you with updates in due course.
Members of the Deaf community will be consulted on the development of the
service.

Also, we are working on a new Senedd TV service, which will have enhanced
accessibility functions such as the ability to view transcripts of plenary
meetings alongside archived videos, and captions identifying who is speaking
in Plenary meetings.

As it stands, we feel our subtitled videos of First Minister’s Questions, which
are usually available within 24 hours, offer an accurate interpretation of
proceedings.

| hope this provides the clarification you seek.

Dame Rosemary Butler AM
Presiding Officer

Tudalen y pecyn 4




P-04-526 Please make Senedd TV accessible to deaf people -
Correspondence from the Petitioner to the Committee, 28.05.14

HI

The recent response sent to me seems directed to someone else ? My petition is
not about BSL access to the Senned TV, | never asked for that, just captions
preferably in English, because the deaf cultural community in wales cannot put up
any statistic to show they follow welsh, when they say 'bi-lingual' they mean
English-sign language, not, English-welsh. | hope this clarifies the petition

which doesn't support signed access to the assembly. | think the assembly is
confusing deaf of the cultural variety and persuasion and sign-dependent, with the
majority of deaf who do not. There is no viable demand from 3-400,000 welsh with
hearing loss, for signed access. There is however an overwhelming need for
captioned or subtitled access, especially at the Senedd and particularly, at the
Cross-party Committee that is dedicated to our sectors, who so far haven't
supported access to own proceedings for some reason, this is not a very democratic
approach via the Assembly at all. | Understand 'BBC' output the assembly suggests
it has no voice or control over, even if | disagree with that. We also are awaiting the
Aseembly website response to reviewing how it lists the deaf and other people with
hearing loss with more clarity, to drop the sensory loss blanket approach. Itis
clear the petition committee itself is in some confusion if it is sending me info
about BSL charities and deaf culture, in response to a subtitled English petition, that

is a via different sector altogether.. I've not asked for BSL or a welsh access form.

M James

Tudalen y pecyn 5



Eitem 3.2

P-04-319 Deiseb ynghylch Traffig yn y Drenewydd

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i:
1. Osod cylchfan ger y gyffordd a heol Ceri ac, os bydd llif y traffig yn
gwella, osod cylchfan barhaol yno.
2. Cyhoeddi dyddiad cychwyn cynnar i adeiladu ffordd osgoi i’'r
Drenewydd ac i’r gwaith hwnnw fynd ar drywydd carlam hyd nes ei
gwblhau.

Cyflwynwyd gan: Paul Pavia
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: Mis Mehefin 2011

Nifer y llofnodion: 10 (casglwyd tua 5,000 o lofnodion ar ddeiseb
gysylltiedig).

Tudalen y pecyn 6



Edwina Hart MBE CStJ AC / AM (\ f
Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth N /

Minister for Economy, Science and Transport j}

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-319

Ein cvf/Our ref EH/04323/13
William Powell AM

Chair
Petitions Committee

committeebusiness@Wales.g
si.gov.uk

14 May 2014

Dear William,

Further to my letter to you of 6 January 2014 regarding traffic in Newtown, | am
writing to provide you with an update.

| have provided Powys County Council with funding to complete two minor
improvements adjacent to the A483 in Newtown, with the aim of improving the
traffic flow prior to the construction of the bypass.

The improvement at the junction between Park Street and New Road has been
completed, and the traffic signals at the Pool Road/Kerry Road junction have
been upgraded to introduce a left turn filter exiting Cambrian Way. However,
the works to extend the length of the left turn lane on the approach to the
junction have been delayed until Powys County Council have completed the
purchase of the land necessary to permit the works to be undertaken.

R/éM”- y

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd Cardlff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
TU a I\y eC nvy Correspondence.edwina.Hart@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (1007%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



Eitem 3.3

P-03-315 Deiseb i gael croesfan newydd dros Afon Dyfi
Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn cefnogi ac o blaid unrhyw gynnig i
adeiladu croesfan newydd dros afon Dyfi (neu i ailgyfeirio ffordd yr A487) i
gysylltu de Meirionnydd a Phowys, Dyfed a Cheredigion, a hynny er mwyn
bodloni ac addasu i ofynion traffig modern, ac rydym yn annog y dylid rhoi
blaenoriaeth i ariannu a rhoi cychwyn ar unrhyw gynnig o’r fath. Rydym yn
galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i roi
blaenoriaeth i’r prosiect.

Cynigwyd gan: Fforwm Pobl Hyn De Meirionnydd
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: Mis Chwefror 2011

Nifer y llofnodion: 3,204

Tudalen y pecyn 8



4

. A L
Edwina Hart MBE CStJ AC/ AM — ( .l

Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth '\/ J(
Minister for Economy, Science and Transport J /JA

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-03-315
Ein cyf/Our ref EH/04319/13

William Powell AM
Chair
Petitions Committee

committeebusiness@wales.qgsi.gov.uk

31 March 2014

Dear William

In my letter of 6 January | committed to provide the Petitions Committee with
quarterly progress updates regarding improvements at Dyfi Bridge.

Please find enclosed an updated Appendix 1 showing progress on the
improvement actions.

| will write again with a further update at the end of June.

e

Bae Caerdydd . Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd - Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400

TUd&I’W‘II\y pecyn ®] Correspondence.edwina.Hart@Wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



mailto:committeebusiness@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Appendix 1: Dyfi Bridge Actions

Short Term

Activity Progress Report Date
Complete

3 The short term study will Investigations have found July 2014
consider the anecdotal references to the dredging of
evidence that the River Dyfi small estuarine channels
used to be dredged and this downstream of Dyfi bridge.
might be an option for the Further investigations will
future continue.

Strategic diversions and the Planning to install VMS in Winter 2014
use of Variable Message Sign | 2014/15.
(VMS) at Cross Foxes.

Tudalen y pecyn 10



8 Temporary pump/storage Work has been undertaken to | Existing
drainage system for the low assess the drainage in the works
spot beneath the rail bridge. area of the rail bridge and the | complete.

outfalls. The results of those Complete
works will inform future pump / | options
storage solution. report by
end of May
2014

Longer term

10 | Observations during flooding My officials will contact the
events. Town Council to discuss their
concerns and observations
during flooding events

Tudaleny pecyn 11



P-03-315 New Dyfi River crossing - Correspondence from the
petitioner to the Committee, 27.05.14

South Meirionnydd Older People’s Forum DYF| BRIDGE PETITION

On behalf of our community, | would like you to take into consideration the
difficulty that would arise, if the alleged planned route was adopted.

We, who live in South Meirionnydd are dependent on health care provided by
Bronglais Hospital in Aberystwyth and with the closure of the existing bridge,
when flooded and damaged by large vehicles, we are forced to travel a
further 12 mile trip via a small narrow road, which has very few passing
places and is also subject to flooding.

| understand that it is hoped to build the new bridge near to the new foot
bridge which is acceptable but surely not to come out onto the Newtown
road, sending the traffic back into Machynlleth causing one almighty
bottleneck as the traffic hit’s the original route at the town clock, especially
on market days. Long lorries would face the difficulty as before, as they
endeavour to turn left to Aberystwyth.

With respect to the Machynlleth Community, they rarely experience difficulty
travelling to Bronglais hospital for emergency care, so we in South
Meirionnydd feel once again forgotten and not taken into consideration .
Our lives are at risk.

Unless further plans to bypass the town on an easterly route, rejoining the
A487 south of the Plas/Leisure Centre, providing the fastest road to
Bronglais Hospital, we in South Meirionnyded will always feel as we are being
treated as second class citizens.

Nevertheless we are delighted that the funding has been allocated and thank
the Minister, Edwina Hart, for her positive input, bringing about this much
needed road improvement for both lives and livelihoods.

Gwen Stevens
Chairman

Tudalen y pecyn 12



Eitem 3.4

P-04-487 A Welsh Government deposit loan scheme for first time
Welsh home buyers

Petition wording:

We call on the Welsh Assembly to urge the Welsh Government to offer an
annual deposit loan scheme for first time Welsh house buyers and/or
renters.

It is proposed that Welsh mortgage companies would also need to take part
in this scheme and agree to ask for no more than 5% of a deposit on any
suitable property (as well as offer a low interest own what you pay for
mortgage). This for example would all mean that up to 15,000 Welsh first
time house buyers (first time buyers whose earnings are below a certain
threshold and have lived or worked in Wales continuously for at least 10
years, or have full time business links to Wales) could be helped annually
with a deposit loan of around £7,500 each for an averaged priced house,
with the loan back payments deferred for at least one year. Once sellers and
buyers agree to the scheme, the property in question would keep its eligible
occupancy clause, as happens with similar schemes in the Peak District and
North York Moors National parks.

Supporting information:
Although the Welsh Government can’t interfere with private properties,

owners including second homeowners could be encouraged to consider
selling through the scheme if they decide to sell their property. First time
renovators of derelict properties/farmhouses should also be eligible for the
scheme. It’s proposed that Welsh estate agents and the house sellers would
be paid a monthly fee (paid for by the interest on the deposit loans) for
taking part in the voluntary scheme by agreeing to only advertise, sell or rent
within Wales and to eligible Welsh citizens for the first 6 months of a
property being put on the market - after which time it would be open to

anyone.

This scheme would help to give families and individuals a chance to live and

work within their own areas and not be priced out of the market by

Tudalen y pecyn 13



unreasonable average wage to property price ratios, whilst also ensuring
more money stays within local economies, boosting a more sustainable and

productive Welsh economy in general.

Petition raised by: Sovereign Wales

Date petition first considered by Committee: 18 June 2013

Number of signatures: 17

Tudalen y pecyn 14



Carl Sargeant AC / AM ’\/ (ﬁ

Y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio o
Minister for Housing and Regeneration J)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-487
Ein cyf/Our ref CS/00522/14

William Powell AC
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

%\Ebrill 2014

Annwyl William
Diolch am eich llythyr yn gynharach yn y mis.

Trosglwyddais awgrym polisi eich deisebydd i'm swyddogion er mwyn iddynt edrych arno'n
fanylach, ac maent wedi tynnu sylw at rai materion a allai olygu y byddai'n anodd rhoi'r
fenter ar waith.

Dan gynnig eich deisebydd, byddai Llywodraeth Cymru'n darparu benthyciadau i aelwydydd
yn lle'r blaendal traddodiadol. Y perygl yw na fyddai prynwyr dan y cynllun hwn yn
buddsoddi unrhyw arian eu hunain yn yr eiddo ac, o ganlyniad, byddai llawer mwy o berygl
o ddiffygdalu ac adfeddiannu'r ty - a Llywodraeth Cymru'n wynebu'r colledion.

Hefyd mae'r cynllun yn gofyn i fenthycwyr gymryd rhan. Mae hyn yn debyg o fod yn anodd
gan y byddai'r benthycwyr hefyd yn wynebu'r perygl uwch o ddiffygdalu ac adfeddiannu fel y
nodwyd uchod. Dyma un o'r ffactorau a ddaeth i'r golwg wrth lunio'r cynllun Cymorth i
Brynu - Cymru, a'r rheswm dros ddewis gosod amod o 5% o flaendal.

O ganlyniad, ar ei ffurf bresennol, rwyf o'r farn y byddai'r cynnig hwn yn anodd ei ddilyn.
Fodd bynnag, os oes gan eich deisebydd awgrymiadau pellach ar sut i liniaru’r peryglon
hyn, byddaf yn fwy na pharod i'w hystyried.

Carl Sargeant AC/ AM
Y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio
Minister for Housing and Regeneration

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales. gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i aitgx‘dwgﬁ%)pecyn 15 Printed on 100% recycled paper



P-04-487 A Welsh Government deposit loan scheme for first time Welsh
home buyers - Correspondence from the Petitioner to the Committee,
25.05.14.

Annwyl Mr Sargeant,

Thank you for your latest response to the Sovereign Wales petition asking for a
deposit scheme for first time Welsh home buyers. With approximately 15,000 new
home buyers in Wales annually according to a 2005 report, it is thought that around
half of those would be likely to take advantage of the proposed deposit offer. This
would mean that, annually as an example, 7,500 lower earners could receive a 5%
deposit of £7,500 for a new home at an average home price of £150,000,
amounting to a total annual loan fund figure of £56 million a year. In essence this
would be a 'Finance Wales for houses' fund. However, interest rates could obviously
be less business orientated than Finance Wales, with a small admin fee for the first
couple of years before the gradual repayment process started with a proposed

minimal interest that is just over the base rate.

This annual capped fund by the Welsh Government could therefore be of enormous
help to first time home buyers in Wales whose earnings are below a certain
threshold, as long as they were properly means tested of course, and also fell
within the local residency test or worked / had a business within the area. Even a
less ambitious fund of half this figure again at £28 million a year would provide a
deposit for an impressive 3,750 lower income new home buyers a year. | can see no
reason why renters needing deposits couldn't also be eligible for this scheme

provided they are means and eligibility tested in the same way.

The fund would therefore target those who need it the most; people who are
working but need that first leg up the housing ladder. It would also help these
citizens to not be priced out of their localities by disproportionate house prices and
deposit demands. | believe such a scheme is especially necessary in many parts of
Wales as the cost of a basic home and deposit is often above the means of many
working people. House prices have rocketed whilst average wages in Wales remain
relatively low. As mentioned, provided that the home buyers in question were
properly means tested and the mortgage lenders agree to take part and accept the

5% deposit as has happened elsewhere, there is no reason why the scheme would

Tudalen y pecyn 16



not be a success. There is also the possibility that the Welsh Government could deal

directly with the mortgage lenders when administering the loan.

Mr Sargeant mentions the risks of defaulting and repossession, and the Welsh
Government being exposed to losses. However the Help to Buy Scheme that the
Welsh Government is offering also has equivalent if not more risks involved and
fails to address one of the main problems facing new home buyers on lower
incomes - being able to afford the initial deposit for a home. Mr Sargeant also
mentions the risks of defaulting involved when buyers have none of their

own monies invested in a property. This may or may not be the case but could be
overcome by offering that the first time home buyer puts in between 1% - 1.5%
towards the deposit — a far more achievable and realistic sum for low earners for
homes up to the value of £150,000 in my view. Any percentage sum considerably
higher than this would defeat the object of the fund although it would also mean

that the proposed Welsh Government fund could be reduced.

The Welsh Government (through Help to Buy (Wales) Ltd) is offering a shared equity
loan of up to 20% of the purchase price of a new home which will mean offering on
average a £40,000 per home shared equity loan using tax payers money (on a
£200,000 home) - £32,500 more risk by the Welsh Government per home buyer
than what the Sovereign Wales deposit petition proposes. There is a potential for an
even riskier £60,000 shared equity loan if a maximum full £300,000 loan is given

under the Help to Buy Scheme.

The dangers of the Help to Buy Schemes have been outlined at great lengths in the
British press and elsewhere. One area of concern is that the potential of falling
house prices and another housing bubble could mean Welsh citizens taking part in
the Help to Buy Scheme could make a considerable loss on their homes. Another
concern is that these schemes are essentially large scale guarantees using tax
payers money. Many are also worried about the uncomfortable relationship between
government and house builders who have less incentive to be competitive if

effectively subsidised by government.

I'm sure there are areas of this deposit fund proposition that could be bettered and
improved and | also can't see a reason why in theory both these schemes couldn't

work alongside and complement each other. But | believe that the deposit fund

Tudalen y pecyn 17



could answer a more immediate and bigger need in Wales, especially at this point in
time. I'll try to sum up what | believe are the main advantages of the proposed First

Time Home Buyer Deposit Scheme as opposed to a Help to Buy Scheme below:

Proposed Deposit Fund for first time buyers advantages

A deposit fund for first time home buyers will help people on to the housing ladder

and to overcome the main first hurdle of finding a deposit.

This deposit fund would only be on offer to first time buyers in Wales rather than
first time buyers and movers as offered by the Help to Buy Scheme, therefore
specifically helping those facing the initial biggest hurdle in buying a first home in
Wales

The proposed deposit scheme would cover homes valued up to around £150,000
which is a more realistic price for those starting out on the property ladder in Wales
at this point (as opposed to the Help to Buy Scheme which is for new-build homes
worth up to £300,000 which, along with the necessary deposit, is out of reach for

most buyers in Wales)

The Welsh Government would not only be offering a deposit loan fund, they would
also be investing in the future of sustainable local communities and economies by

helping local first time buyers stay living and working in those communities.
The deposit fund could apply to both existing homes and new development homes.
Help to Buy Scheme disadvantages

There are obvious dangers if a house slump occurs and the value of the house
drops. Help to Buy is also stacked in favour of the better off who can afford a bigger

deposit as there is a stipulation that a 5% deposit has to come from the buyer first.

The Help to Buy Scheme is only valid for new build developments and only with
house builders registered with the scheme. Existing homes and buildings are not
covered. This also raises concerns about over familiarity and cosiness between the

Government and the registered house builders which could lead to a lack of

Tudalen y pecyn 18



competitiveness in this area and a generally unhealthy situation.

If dealing with the total £170 million available in the pot up to the year 2016 as set
out by the Welsh Government, this Help to Buy scheme would only help a total of
approximately 4250 buyers in Wales if using an average £40,000 shared equity loan
per buyer. In contrast, an equivalent 15,000 first time home buyers in Wales could
be helped in the same period via this proposed deposit fund. If the scheme carried

on indefinitely, at least 7500 buyers could be helped annually in Wales.

The Wales Help to Buy Scheme is available to those wishing to purchase new-build
homes worth up to £300,000 which, along with the necessary deposit, is out of

reach for most buyers in Wales.

As mentioned, the Welsh Government (through Help to Buy (Wales) Ltd) is offering a
shared equity loan of up to 20% of the purchase price of a new home which will
mean offering on average a £40,000 per home shared equity loan using tax payers
money - £32,500 more risk by the Welsh Government per home buyer than what
the Sovereign Wales deposit petition proposes. The dangers of the Help to Buy
Schemes have been outlined at great lengths in the British press and elsewhere.
One area of concern is that the potential of falling house prices and another
housing bubble could mean Welsh citizens taking part in the Help to Buy Scheme
could make a considerable loss on their homes. Another concern is that these
schemes are essentially large scale guarantees using tax payers money. Many are
also worried about the uncomfortable relationship between government and house
builders who have less incentive to be competitive if effectively subsidised by

government.

| appreciate everyone's time and diligence in considering these proposals once
again and hope that the proposals and suggestions are found to be constructive
and of interest in general,

Sincerely,

G.Meredith"

Tudalen y pecyn 19



Eitem 3.5

P-04-536 Rhoi’r Gorau i Ffatrioedd Ffermio Gwartheg Godro yng
Nghymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ddiweddaru Polisi Cynllunio Cymru a dogfennau cynllunio perthnasol eraill,
fel Nodyn Cyngor Technegol 6: Cynllunio ar gyfer Cymunedau Gwledig
Cynaliadwy, er mwyn sicrhau na chaiff ffermydd gwartheg godro dan do ar
raddfa fawr eu creu er elw byrdymor ac, o bosibl, ar draul llawer o ffermydd
bach. Wrth gymeradwyo’r fferm yn y Trallwng yn ddiweddar, cyfeiriodd
Cyngor Sir Powys yn benodol at baragraff 7.2.2 o Bolisi Cynllunio Cymru gan
ddweud ei fod yn "...(c)ydnabod y bydd y manteision economaidd weithiau’n
gwrthbwyso’r ystyriaethau cymdeithasol ac amgylcheddol”, ac rydym o’r farn
y dylid adolygu hyn ar frys, gan na ddylai’r posibilrwydd o greu nifer fach o
swyddi newydd wrthbwyso’r buddion economaidd hirdymor a ddaw yn sgil
pori, sy’n ased digonol, effeithlon a chynaliadwy, ac mae llawer o ffermwyr
godro yng Nghymru yn cydnabod hynny’n llwyr.

Mae ffatrioedd ffermio gwartheg godro dan do ar raddfa fawr wedi’u
cynllunio i gadw buchod dan do, yn hytrach nag allan ar dir pori, a gwelwyd
enghreifftiau eisoes o sut y gallant gynyddu niwed i’r amgylchedd, gwneud y
gymuned leol yn dlotach, effeithio’n ddifrifol ar les anifeiliaid a bod yn faich
ariannol ar yr ardal gyfagos. Yn dilyn penderfyniad Llywodraeth Cymru i
gymeradwyo’r fferm yn y Trallwng, credwn ei bod yn hollbwysig cynnal
adolygiad o ddeddfwriaeth gynllunio er mwyn sicrhau bod Cymru yn cyflawni
ei dyhead i fod yn wlad wirioneddol gynaliadwy.

Prif ddeisebydd: World Society for the Protection of Animals

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 18 Chwefror 2014

Nifer y llofnodion: 9246

Tudalen y pecyn 20



Carl Sargeant AC/ AM N / (\ ﬁ(

Y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio f
Minister for Housing and Regeneration J)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-536
Ein cyf/Our ref CS/00518/14

William Powell AM

Chair Petitions committee

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk April 2014

Dear William Powell AM

Thank you for your letter of 7 April concerning the petition submitted by the World Society
for the Protection of Animals (WSPA) about large scale dairy farming in Wales.

My decision to allow the planning appeal against refusal of planning permission for the
expansion of Lower Leighton Farm is presently the subject of a High Court challenge. As a
consequence it is not appropriate for me, other Welsh Ministers, or Welsh Government
officials to discuss the case or any issues arising from it.

The Welsh Government is seeking to stimulate the investment and innovation needed to
create the conditions to support long-term economic growth in rural Wales. It will use the
next Rural Development Programme (RDP) to increase sustainability, resilience and
diversity, and manage our natural resources efficiently in order to create a more prosperous
future for Wales. It will also seek to put in place conditions to allow farm businesses to
grow, become more efficient and economically viable with less public financial support. The
Welsh Government does not have a policy on the scale of a farming enterprise and will
continue to support farms of all sizes.

In terms of animal welfare, the UK continues to achieve and put in place the highest animal
welfare provisions, and is among the highest in achieving standards in a very competitive
and retail driven market. The UK’s Governments have been at the forefront of implementing
higher standards domestically but are active both on a European and international level in
trying to improve standards.

In Wales and the UK, the Animal Welfare Act 2006 protects the welfare of animals on-farm
and makes it an offence to cause suffering to any animal. The Act also contains a “duty of
care to animals” - this means that anyone responsible for an animal must take reasonable
steps to ensure the animal’s welfare needs are met. A person must look after an animal's
welfare as well as ensure that it does not suffer. In addition, the Welfare of Farmed Animals
(Wales) Regulations 2007 specify in detail the welfare conditions under which livestock and
animals used in producing food, must be kept.

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales. gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailq-ybcgélgHOQ pecyn 21 Printed on 100% recycled paper



The health and welfare requirements of farmed animals are no different in a herd or flock of
10 animals to that of 1000 animals. The infrastructure, husbandry and management
practices will vary and differ in scale, but the need to provide the same minimum level of
care remains - the legal minimum health and welfare requirements apply to both.

In terms of national planning guidance, Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and Technical Advice
Note (TAN) 6 Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities provide planning guidance about
rural and agricultural development; neither makes specific reference to dairy farming.
However, it is considered that existing planning policy and advice provides sufficient
flexibility to allow the issues raised by dairy farms (or other types of farm), both large and
small, to be properly assessed and determined on their planning merits.

PPW states that planning policies, decisions and proposals should support initiative and
innovation, and avoid placing unnecessary burdens on enterprises so as to enhance
economic success of both urban and rural areas, helping businesses to maximise their
competitiveness.

Local planning authorities are required to ensure that the economic benefits associated with
a proposed development are understood, and that these are given equal consideration with
social and environmental issues. PPW indicates that planning policies for economic
development must provide developers and others with scope to make choices to secure the
efficient and effective use of resources and land. The expansion of existing businesses
located in the open countryside should be supported provided there are no unacceptable
impacts on local amenity.

Technical Advice Note 6 states that strong rural economies are essential to support
sustainable and vibrant rural economies. A strong rural economy can help to promote
social inclusion and provide the financial resources necessary to support local services and
maintain attractive and diverse natural environments and landscapes.

Planning Policy Wales Chapter 7 Economic Development was revised in November 2012,
and TAN 6 was revised in July 2010. |1 do not feel it is necessary to review or make
changes to PPW or TAN 6 at this point in time, and have not been provided with specific
evidence to suggest otherwise.

Carl Sargeant AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio
Minister for Housing and Regeneration

Tudalen y pecyn 22



Eitem 3.6

P-04-447 : Ymgyrch am Gerflun o Harri’r Seithfed ym Mhenfro

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ariannu cerflun o Harri’r Seithfed ym Mhenfro, y dref lle cafodd ei eni a’r
man lle dechreuodd llinach y Tuduriaid . Nid oes cerflun o’r dyn hwn na
chofeb iddo yn y dref. Gallai cerflun wella economi’r dref fel lle hanfodol i
bobl sydd a diddordeb yn y Tuduriaid ymweld ag ef.

Prif ddeisebydd: Nathen Amin

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 29 lonawr 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 144

Tudalen y pecyn 23



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 24



Eitem 3.7

P-04-539 Achub Cyfnewidfa Glo Caerdydd

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Mae’r ddeiseb hon yn gofyn am ymrwymiad gan Lywodraeth Cymru i sefydlu
ymchwiliad cyhoeddus i’'r digwyddiadau o amgylch y Gyfnewidfa Lo ac i
gefnogi’r farn gyhoeddus sy’n ceisio diogelu a gwarchod yr adeilad.

Mae’r Gyfnewidfa Lo yn un o adeiladau pwysicaf Caerdydd ac yn un o’r
adeiladau mwyaf godidog yng Nghymru. Yn y Gyfnewidfa Lo y cafodd y
cytundeb miliwn o bunnoedd cyntaf ei wneud yn ystod oes aur ddiwydiannol
y ddinas (mae hyn yn cyfateb i dros £100 miliwn heddiw). Fodd bynnag, yn
hytrach na pharchu’r adeilad arbennig hwn, mae Cyngor Caerdydd yn cynnig
dymchwel prif gorff yr adeilad, gan gadw dim ond y ffasadau.

Os bydd hyn yn digwydd, yna bydd y tu mewn godidog gyda’i arwyddocad
hanesyddol aruthrol yn cael ei golli am byth. Mae’r adeilad gradd 2*
rhestredig hwn yn haeddu gwell, ac mae’n rhaid i farn y cyhoedd gael ei
chlywed.

Mae’r Cyngor wedi bod yn dweud ers blwyddyn ei fod ar fin cwympo. Nid oes
unrhyw waith wedi cael ei wneud, ond nid oes unrhyw dystiolaeth amlwg bod
yr adeilad ar fin cwympo. Mae yna amheuaeth a fyddai Cyngor Caerdydd yn
gallu defnyddio pwerau adran 78 o dan y Ddeddf Adeiladu i ddatblygu’i
gynlluniau, ac mae angen ymchwilio hyn yn agored.

Mae cymaint o dreftadaeth gymdeithasol ac adeiledig Bae Caerdydd wedi
cael ei dinistrio.

Mae’n aneglur pam mae’r cyngor yn gwrthod gweld y gwerth o adfery
Gyfnewidfa Lo i warchod yr adeilad eiconig hwn ar gyfer defnydd a mwynhad
cenedlaethau’r dyfodol.

Mae’r materion hyn o ddiddordeb mawr i’r cyhoedd, ac mae’n hanfodol bod

ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus agored yn digwydd i adolygu’r materion.

Prif ddeisebydd: Jon Avent

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 11 Mawrth 2014

Tudalen y pecyn 28



Nifer y llofnodion: TBC

Tudalen y pecyn 29



i County Hall
/ ' Cardiff,
,/ . CF10 4UW

Tel: (029) 2087 2000

‘;S Neuadd y Sir

SWYDDFA’'R ARWEINYDD
LEADER'S OFFICE

‘ Caerdydd
yaa,
CARDIFF CF10 4UW
Fy Nghyf / My Ref: CM27433 CAERDYDD Ffon: (029) 2087 2000
Eich Cyf / Your Ref: P-04-539
Dyddiad / Date: 7th May 2014

William Powell AM

National Assembly For Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Annwyl / Dear W 42(,6(/1 (~
&

Thank you for your letter dated 25" March 2014 regarding the petition received from
Jon Avent.

It is important to first of all outline that the City of Cardiff Council does not own the
Coal Exchange building. However, given the importance of the building, the
decades of underinvestment, and the absence of any other party willing to
undertaken any meaningful actions to secure the future of the building, the Council
has sought to work with partners and stakeholders to halt the years of neglect that
has left the building in its current state.

The Council’s actions relating to the use of Section 78 powers were undertaken in
the interests of public safety and in the absence of any other body able to take
responsibility for securing the safety and future of the building. The Cabinet Report
‘Saving the Coal Exchange’ of 29" January 2014 sets out the reasons for the use of
Section 78 powers. The City of Cardiff Council remains committed to securing a
sustainable future for the building, and will continue to work with all relevant
stakeholders to deliver this outcome.

Previously the building was granted planning permission for a scheme that involved
partial demolition of the building to enable a mixed use development, a decision that
was referred to the National Assembly for Wales. Subsequently, a report by the
Planning Inspectorate for Wales recommended that listed building consent be
granted, subject to conditions outlined within the Inspector’s report. Following this,
the then Minister for Environment Sustainability and Housing accepted the
recommendations, and granted listed building consent for the partial demotion and
restoration of the [Coal Exchange] building to accommodate a mixed use

ATEBWCH |/ PLEASE REPLY TO:

Swyddfa'r Arweinydd, Ystafell 525, Neuadd y Sir, Glanfa’r Iwerydd, Caerdydd CF10 4UW
Ffén (029) 2087 2500 Ffacs (029) 2087 2599

Leader’s Office, Room 525, County HaljctketicyMber€\gar8@ CF10 4UW . .
Tel (029) 2087 2500 Fax (029) 2087 2599 ybetyn ool W o




development, subject to the conditions outlined. | have attached a copy of the
correspondence that details the conditions and background to the case.

Following the outcome of the National Assembly for Wales’ findings, and the
granting of planning permission, it is my understanding that the property market
crash in 2009 meant that the proposed scheme was no longer considered viable by
the developer. As a result no further major investment in the building took place.
However, given the building is clearly of significant interest to Cardiff and Wales, and
the concerns (such as those raised in the Inspector’s report) relating to prolonged
lack of investment in the Coal Exchange Building, the City of Cardiff Council has
been active in seeking to develop a sustainable use for the building working within
the parameters set out within the Inspector’s report that will maximise the amount of
the building that can be retained. This work included the development of a vision
document for the Coal Exchange titled ‘Time for Change’.

| am aware that some public opposition has been raised in relation to concepts that
have been released to the public, which | understand relates to exercises that have
been undertaken to explore viable options for the future of the Coal Exchange. The
City of Cardiff Council anticipates that the cost of refurbishing to the building in line
with the Inspectors Report will be in excess of £30m, and therefore a range of
services have been explored to determine the extent of development required to
realise the necessary development value. Rest assured however, that it is not the
intention of the City of Cardiff Council to participate in a scheme that does not
respect the building’s heritage, and we would expect any scheme to adhere to the
conditions set out in the previous Inspector's report. It is worth noting that the
planning permission for the building has lapsed, and therefore new planning
permission would be required for any new developmeiit.

It is important that we find a sustainable future for the building, and it is clear that a
lack of action cannot persist if the building is to be saved. In particular, the City of
Cardiff Council Cabinet Report ‘Saving the Coal Exchange’ of 29th January 2014
outlined the key issues that need to be addressed, namely:

e Whilst the short-term safety concerns have been addressed, concerns relating to
the structure of the Coal Exchange building remain, and the building remains at
significant risk without enabling assistance.

e As a result of the current state of the Coal Exchange building, the local
community and economy derive little benefit from the building.

I will be more than happy to ask officers to arrange for a visit to the Coal Exchange
building for the Petitioners, and | will ask officers to contact your Committee Clerk
directly to arrange. | have also attached a copy of a letter on behalf of the Minister
for Environment Sustainability and Housing outlining the response to the Inspector’s
Report, as well as the Cabinet Report of January 2014. Please contact me if you
require any further detail.

Yn gywir,
Yours sincerely,

CYNGHORYDD / COUNCILLOR PHIL BALE
ARWEINYDD, CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

LEADER OF THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
Tudalen y pecyn 31



- o ok ToOVoRmaTion

w 4 ;é% )
/S

- Llywodraeth Cynulliad Cymru
Welsh Assembly Government

Mr D Kerfoot -5 MAR
Messrs Eversheds e S 00

1, Callaghan Square

! . O 60 C v ran yr Amgylchedd, Cynaliadwyedd a Thai
Cardiff L——ci-(-l %Departméﬁt fjr Environment, Sustainability and Housing
CF10 5BT

Eich cyf . Your ref; KERFOOD/156027-000002
Ein cyf . Our ref: A-PP171-98-018
Dyddiad . Date: 4 March 2008

Dear Mr Kerfoot

PLANNING (LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS) ACT 1990 —
SECTIONS 12 AND 16

APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT MADE BY MACOB
EXCHANGE LIMITED FOR PROPOSED PARTIAL DEMOLITION AND MIXED USE
DEVELOPMENT COMPRISING RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL OFFICE, RETAIL
AND CAFE/RESTAURANT SPACE, AND RESTORATION WORKS, INCLUDING
THE RETENTION OF THE EXCHANGE HALL FOR PUBLIC ACCESS AT THE
COAL EXCHANGE, MOUNT STUART SQUARE, BUTETOWN, CARDIFF

1. Consideration has been given to the report of the Inspector, Clive Cochrane
DipArch RegArch MSc MRTPI, who reported on your client’s application for listed
building consent for the above proposal. The application was heard at a public local

inquiry.

2. On 9 November 2006 the National Assembly for Wales directed, under Section
12 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (the 1990
Act) that the application be referred to it rather than be determined by the local
planning authority. Under the transitional provisions of the Government of Wales Act
2006 the power to determine applications called in under Section 12 of the 1990 Act
has been transferred to the Welsh Ministers and this function has been allocated to .
the Minister for Environment, Sustainability and Housing (the Minister).

Parc Cathays
Caerdydd
CF10 3NQ

Cathays Park
Cardiff
CF10 3NQ

\l, ‘Qv
§ Ffon » Tel: 029 2082 3891
A4 GTN: 1208 3891

Ffacs * Fax: 029 2082 5622

Bmmv;nmmmvg’éom TUd.aIen y peCyn 32 Ebost » Email: stephenm.jones@wales.gsi.gov.uk




3. The Inspector’s conclusions are set out at paragraphs 106 - 143 of his report, a
copy of which is enclosed, and are reproduced as Annex A to this letter. The
inspector recommended that listed building consent be granted, subject to the-
conditions indicated at Annex A to his report.

4. The Inspector’s overall conclusions on the application were as follows:

“The proposed works for the conversion of this listed building to a mixed use scheme
are extensive and go well beyond the minimal intervention advocated in Circular
61/96. However, it is clear to me in this case that there are inherent problems with
this large building which demand a fairly radical approach to its conversion. The poor
structural condition of much of the building, its rigid cellular layout of offices and the
manner in which the interior has been badly compromised by later alterations, lead
me to the conclusion that its internal reconstruction to form residential apartments
around a larger courtyard would not destroy any notable architectural or historic
features.

The original layout of the building has largely been lost, due to recent alteration of the
circulation areas, corridors and partitions, so that the planned layout and
interconnectivity that existed between the trading floor and galleries of the Exchange
Hall and the ranks of offices etc has long gone. The significant interest of the building
is in my view limited to the ground floor public rooms; the foyer, Hall and ante-rooms,
and the main fagades of the architectural envelope of the building, including the roof
features.

The effect of the proposed demolition and reconstruction of the interior, west wing
and roof has to be weighed against the significant benefits of the proposed
conversion, and a balanced view must be taken of the scheme as a whole. The
special architectural and historic elements, particularly the Exchange Hall, the ante-
rooms and the southern entrance and foyer would all be restored in a way that would
recapture the grandeur of its original form and the building would once again be open
to public use. The cleaning, repairing and restoring of the north, east and south
elevations, and the creation of a new public urban piazza would improve the setting of
the building and vitality of the Mount Stuart Square Conservation Area. Both the
building and the conservation area would remain alive and prosperous, and the
historic building would be preserved as an important resource for future generations.”

5. The Minister agrees those conclusions and the reasoning employed by the
Inspector in reaching them. Consequently she accepts his recommendation that the
listed building consent be granted. She also agrees that the consent should be
subject to the conditions indicated by the Inspector.

6. For the reasons given above the Minister for Environment, Sustainability and
Housing hereby grants listed building consent for the partial demolition and
restoration of the building to accommodate a mixed use development at the Coal
Exchange, Mount Stuart Square, Butetown, Cardiff, in accordance with the terms of
application reference 06/764/C, dated 31 March 2006, subject to the conditions set
out in Annex B to this letter. '

7. This letter, a copy of which has been sent to the Chief Officer of Strategic
Planning and Environment, Cardiff County Council, does not convey any approval or
consent which may be required under any enactment, bye law, order or regulation

Tudalen y pecyn 33




other than section 7 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

Yours faithfully

Tad. Dawuy

Teresa Davies
Decisions Branch
Planning Division

Signed under authority of the Minister for
Environment, Sustainability and Housing,
one of the Welsh Ministers

Encs: Leaflets ‘HC(LBCA)' and ‘H’

Tudalen y pecyn 34




Yr Arolygiaeth Gyniiunio, Adeilad y Goron, Parc Cathays,
Caerdydd CF10 3NQ % 029 2082 3889 Ffacs 029 2082 5150
e-bost wales @planning-inspectorate.gsi.gov.uk

Adroddiad Report

Ymchwiliad a gynhaliwyd ar 04-06 September 2007 Inquiry held on 04-06 September 2007
Ymweliad 4 safle a wnaed ar 06/09/07 Site visit made on 06/09/07

The Pianning Inspectorate, Crown Buildings, Cathays Park,
Cardiff CF10 3NQ % 020 2082 3889 Fax 029 2082 5150
e-mail wales @planning-inspectorate.gsi.gov.uk

gan/by Clive I Cochrane Dip Arch Reg Arch MSc MRTPI

Arolygydd benodwyd y Gweinidog dros yr an Inspector appointed by the Minister for
Amgylchedd, Gynaliadwyedd a Thai, un o Environment, Sustainability and
Weinidogion Cymru Housing, one of the Welsh Ministers

Dyddiad/Date 25/10/07

PLANNING (LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS) ACT 1990:
SECTION 12 CALL-IN

Cardiff County Council

Application for Listed Building Consent

by
Macob Exchange Ltd

Cyf ffeil/File ref: APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

Tudalen y pecyn 35




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

File Ref: APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

Site address: The Coal Exchange, Mount Stuart Square, Butetown, Cardiff CF10 5EB

* The application was called in for decision by the Minister for Environment, Planning and
Countryside, one of the Welsh Ministers, by a direction, made under section 12 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, on 09/11/06.

* The application is made by Macob Exchange Ltd to Cardiff County Council.

¢ The application Ref: 06/764/C is dated 31/03/06.

The development proposed is partial demolition and mixed use development, comprising residential,
commercial office, retail and café/restaurant space and restoration works, retaining the Exchange Hall
for public access.

e The reason given for making the direction was that the proposals raise issues of exceptional
significance or controversy, which may be in conflict with national planning policy.

*  On the information available at the time of making the direction the following matters were considered
relevant to the Minister’s consideration of the application: -

i. The statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

1. Relevant national and development plan policies, including Welsh Office Circular 61/96
“Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas”.

iii. Regard to the desirability of enhancing or preserving the character or appearance of the Mount
Stuart Square Conservation Area.
Summary of Recommendation: That listed building consent be granted subject to
conditions.

Procedural Matters

1. The Coal Exchange is listed as being of special architectural or historic interest Grade II*,
and it is situated in the centre of the Mount Stuart Square Conservation Area, designated in
July 1980. In determining this application sections 16(2) and 72(1) of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 require that special regard should be paid to the
desirability of preserving the listed building, its setting and any features of special
architectural interest that it possesses, and of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of the conservation area.

2. The inquiry only considered the application for listed building consent. The Council resolved

to grant planning permission for the proposed development (Ref: 06/0760C) in July 2006,

. with planning permission being granted in March 2007 following the completion of a section

106 planning agreement. The Council also resolved to grant listed building consent for the
proposed works in July 2006, subject to there being no objections from Cadw.

3. This report contains a description of the listed building and surrounding area; a descriptionof

the proposed works, the cases for each party, and my conclusions and recomméndations.” =~~~ =
Lists of those attending the inquiry and documents presented at the inquiry are appended.
The Welsh Assembly Government call-in letter identified 3 areas for consideration in
determining this application and I have dealt with the evidence from the parties on each of
these matters, before reaching conclusions and making recommendations at the end of the
report.

Tudalen y pecyn 36




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

Site and Surroundings

4,

10.

The application site of the Coal Exchange building and its forecourt to the south covers an
area of some 0.4ha and forms the centrepiece of Mount Stuart Square. It is located
approximately 1.5km south of the city centre, linked to the centre by the railway to the old
Bute Road Station, Bute Street and the recently constructed Lloyd George Avenue.

The site lies within the Butetown area, and forms part of its older 19" century development
on the west side, comprising historic port-related businesses around Mount Stuart Square,
with some original housing and workshops. Nearby lies the Inner Harbour to the south-east
with remnants of docklands along the waters edge which are now converted to leisure uses
with the new development of Mermaid Quay. This area has been recently transformed by the
creation of the Cardiff Bay Barrage with new road links to the M4 and the Peripheral
Distributor Road. Cardiff Bay has become a major civic area, home to the Welsh Assembly
Offices and Senedd, the Wales Millennium Centre, Mermaid Quay restaurant quarter,
Atlantic Wharf Leisure Village, hotels and other visitor attractions.

The Coal Exchange building forms a single mass that fills the centre of Mount Stuart Square.
Its footprint is not square and the main elevations are not straight. The west elevation has a
slight convex curve and the south elevation is built in a U-shape enclosing the original grand
main entrance to the Exchange floor. There are additional entrances to the Exchange Hall
from the north and east elevations.

The building is largely three storeys with attic accommodation, apart from the north elevation
which has 4 full-height storeys and the west wing in part has only 2 storeys with dormer
windows. It is built in an ornate French Renaissance style of Bath stone on the north, east
and south elevations on a Pennant stone plinth. The later west elevation is built in
yellow/buff brickwork with Bath stone dressings and corner sections. The ground floor level
of the south front is dominated by a 1970s concrete semi-basement car park development.
The ornate style of the original building has a complicated series of pitched, pyramidal and
turreted slate roofs.

When fully in use, the Coal Exchange building provided some 9,755 sq m (105,000 sq ft) of
offices, mainly in small rooms of about 20 sq m along corridors. These were occupied by
importers, brokers, ship owners, agents and professionals associated with the coal and
shipping trades. At the centre of the building, the floor of the Coal Exchange Hall and ante-
rooms provided a stock exchange for the shipping trade of South Wales, of immense
importance in the national economic and industrial history for over 20 years. These rooms
are used today for occasional TV recordings, media events and concerts. The ground floor of
the north-east corner of the building has been occupied by Barclays Bank since the building
opened. There is a caretaker’s flat on the top floor.

Commissioned in order to meet a growing need for local business trading facilities in the
Docks, the Coal Exchange was designed by Edwin Seward of Seward & Thomas Architects.
The first- phase at the south end of the building was opened in 1886. This comprised the
south wing with the main front entrance, grand entrance stairs and courtyard, which led to the
main foyer, Exchange Hall and ante-rooms, together with the east wing of offices, which also
provided a second entrance to the Hall and staircase to the upper floors from a narrow
entrance hall.

The Exchange Hall comprises an oak panelled room 15m x 29.5m with 2 tiers of balconies
above the trading floor. It had a glazed roof at the full 17.5m height of the Hall, supported on

Tudalen y pecyn 37




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

11.

12.

13.

14.

iron trusses. The ante-rooms were also finished in panelling with stained glass windows and
fittings in the architectural style of the day.

The first phase of the building was extended in 1893 by the addition of offices in the south-
west wing. The north wing was added between 1894 and 1897 with an additional storey and
a third entrance. This was followed by the north-eastern corner and finally the west wing was
added in brick. These additions departed from Seward’s original plans as a piecemeal’
development of the site. Instead of a fairly symmetrical 3-storey building, the additions were
of four storeys at the north end and 2 storeys on the west side, which was constructed in buff
brick with stone dressings. On the roof, domed corner roof turrets were omitted from the
north-west and south-west corners of the building and the incremental nature of the
development resulled in a complicaled rool design, a maze of pilched roofs, valleys, flat
roofs, domes, cupolas, gulleys and parapets.

Some unsympathetic alterations of the listed building have been carried out during the 20"
century, including the insertion of a false acoustic ceiling in the Exchange Hall in the 1970s,

which hides the upper level gallery and the roof trusses. The ante-rooms to the Hall, the

ground floor bars and offices have been altered, some with suspended ceilings, walls

removed and partitions added. Much of the office space and corridors in the north and west

wings was revamped in the 1970s in an attempt to revitalise the building.

When the building was proposed as the new home for the Welsh Assembly in 1976, a blast-
proof concrete bunker and car park was added to the south front. In September 1984 a fire
gutted the east wing, destroying the main staircase to the upper floors, leaving this part of the
building an empty and derelict shell.

The building has effectively been vacant since it ceased trading in 1961. Internally and
externally, the building is currently in poor condition. The applicants’ Structural Appraisal
by Borroughs Consulting Engineers (2006) (Doc 4) provides details of extensive damage
wrought to the building by water penetration and structural failure. These are: -

(a) Water ingress through the roof;

(b) Failure of internal timber joists and lintels due to water ingress;

(c) External cracking of stone window heads due to failed internal timbers;
(d) Wet rot in non-structural timber, e.g. window frames;

(e) Wetrot and collapse of floors due to water penetration;

(f). Damage to support walls from collapse;

(g) Collapse of lath and plaster ceilings;

(h) Extensive dry rot;

(i) Extensive fire damage to southern part of east wing, destruction of main staircase and
internal fabric;

- (§) Settlement in north-west corner of building;

(k) Loss of decorative features and non-structural elements.

As it stands today, the southern part of the east wing of the building is a burned out shell,
partially supported by scaffolding, and Barclays Bank has recently vacated the ground floor
of the northern end of this wing largely due to the poor state of the rest of the block. The
north wing and the upper level of the west wing have suffered badly from water penetration
and wet rot throughout the ceilings, walls, floors and windows. Despite the efforts of the
owners to make the building weatherproof, in several of the upper floor rooms rainwater

Tudalen y pecyn 38



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

15.

16.

17.

leaking through the roof is channelled into makeshift polythene tanks on the floor below
where it is collected and piped to the outside of the building.

Although the building is semi-derelict and vacant in part, it still contains some commercial
office uses. It retains its impressive elevational presence in the Square even though its
condition has deteriorated, and the decorative stone facades preserve a great deal of its former
grandeur. The southern aspect of the building and the main entrance has been seriously
disfigured by the addition of the concrete car park and raised forecourt, but the Exchange
Hall, ante-rooms and foyer remain as the central feature of the Coal and Shipping Exchange
building.

The Coal Exchange Building is the focal point of the Mount Stuart Square Conservation Area
(plan in Doc 8, All), which comprises the historic commercial and financial hub of
Butetown, including Mount Stuart Square, Bute Street, West Bute Street, the north side of
James Street and Bute Place. The special architectural and historic interest of the area derives
from its place in the history of the commercial growth of Cardiff and the 19" century
character and detailing in many of its buildings.

This is an area of import/export offices and banks that evolved during the massive increase in
shipping trade during the latter half of the 19™ century. The names of the original buildings
evoke the historic character of the area; such as Baltic House, Empire House, Imperial Hotel,
Cambrian Buildings, The Mercantile Marine Office and the Custom House. Many of the
buildings and structures in the conservation area are listed, including 24 within Mount Stuart
Square. Several of the original important buildings have declined and have been demolished
in the conservation area. The Coal Exchange Building, Empire House, Bute Road Station
and the National Westminster Bank are listed Grade II* and the remainder are in Grade II
(see Doc 8, Al4).

Planning Policy

18.

19.

The Council refers to policies B1, B2, B3, EV2, MV12, MV13, H1, H5 and MV11 of the
South Glamorgan (Cardiff Area) Replacement Structure Plan 1991-2011, policies 03, 11, 19,
20, 17, 18, 24, 31, 34, 36 and 39 of the City of Cardiff Local Plan (1996), Supplementary
Planning Guidance in the City Centre Strategy 2003-2006 and Consultation Draft 2007-2010,
and policies 2.51, 2.53, 2.20, 2.21, 2.23, 2.24, 2.26, 2.31, 2.55 and 2.57 of the Deposit Cardiff
Unitary Development Plan 2003 (see Document 9). All of these policies have been given due
consideration by the Council in granting planning permission.

Whilst some of these policies deal with listed buildings and conservation areas and are
therefore material considerations, they are mostly relevant to planning applications for
development. - As Planning Policy Wales 2002 (PPW) points out, there is no statutory duty
under section 38(6) of the 2004 Act to have regard to development plan policies when
determining listed building consent applications. Instead, there has to be clear regard to
sections 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and
government guidance in Planning Policy Wales and Welsh Office Circular 61/96 regarding
historic buildings.

The Proposals

20. The proposed scheme sets out to balance the exceptional costs associated with giving the

Coal Exchange Building a new life with the benefits of an economically sound scheme. This
involves the provision of additional floorspace, mainly in the form of residential units, to

Tudalen y pecyn 39




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

21.

22.

23.

24.

provide a viable development. In order to achieve this, it is proposed to redevelop the west
wing whilst respecting the architectural and historical qualities of the remaining listed fabric.

The proposed development aims to arrest the decay of the listed building and to secure its
long term future use; to utilise the site to its full potential; to achieve a sustainable
development through its change of use; to revitalise the building; and to enhance its urban
environment. The development would provide a mixed-use redevelopment comprising 116
residential units of 1, 2 and 3-bedroom apartments, the refurbishment of the Exchange Hall as
a venue for public use, the reintroduction of café/restaurant units at the lower ground floor
level of the south entrance forecourt, commercial office space and retail units at ground level,
and basement car parking and cycle parking, accessed by a ramped entrance from the north.

The Exchange Hall, the main ground floor foyer and ante-rooms and the Bath stone
elevations of the south, east and north wings would be retained, restored and refurbished.
This would include the removal of modern partitions and ceilings to allow the restoration of
these spaces to their former grandeur. Most of the interior of the east and north wings and
virtually the entire west wing would be demolished. This would allow for the reconstruction
of the upper levels of accommodation around a larger internal courtyard, with a completely
new design for the main section of the west wing.

The building would be completely .re-roofed so as to reintroduce aspects of the original
design of the building. It would provide a balanced symmetrical composition with corner
turrets and central cupola on the east and south elevations. The additional floors of duplex
loft apartments above the north and west fagades would have modern metal-clad roofs, set
back from the street, behind parapets.

The south forecourt proposals would provide a feature stone staircase up to a new balcony
terrace in front of the main entrance to the foyer and Exchange Hall, with additional
entrances to the residential units in the south wing. Below the ground floor terrace there
would be a modern glazed fagade to café/bar/restaurant facilities in the sub-ground floor
level. The removal of the concrete bunker car park would allow the forecourt and street
between the Coal Exchange entrance and Baltic House to be levelled and paved with tree
planting to form a new urban space.

Case for the Applicants — Macob Exchange Ltd

25.

The material points are: -

The applicants acquired the building in 2000 through a project presentation and shortlist
selection from the Cardiff Bay Development Company (CBDC), who had failed to secure a
viable scheme for the regeneration of the Coal Exchange building as part of their strategy for
Cardiff Bay. The bid was accepted on the basis of the current proposed development scheme.
The proposals presented to CBDC were similar, in terms of the amount of demolition
required, to the media scheme that CBDC had already promoted and would have
implemented had they secured grant aid. el

Condition of the Listed Building

26.

The Exchange buildings are only partly lettable due to fire damage and structural failures
caused by damp, wet rot and water ingress. Their use is currently restricted to the main
Exchange Hall and ancillary rooms, which are let for functions including TV shows, a small
amount of Bl office space and, until recently, Barclays Bank. The useable floor area
amounts to approximately 15% of the building. There is insufficient car parking space and

Tudalen y pecyn 40




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

27.

28.

the accommodation lacks the ability to provide modern offices with facilities such as ITC
cabling and comfort cooling.

The structural appraisal (Doc 4) shows the failing condition of the building fabric due to the
poor quality of the roofs of the various phases of building and the extensions, which have
seriously compromised the water tightness of the building. It is concluded that the prime
cause for concern is associated with the long term effects of water penetration through the
complex, aggregated roof form.

Since March 2006, temporary works have been installed to the external walls of the south-
east elevations to prevent masonry falling from the structure. This part of the building has
suffered recently from progressive failure of all its internal clinker covered wooden floors
after the structural collapse of the top floor joist ends, leaving the external walls without
lateral support over their full height. The roof over this area is inaccessible, and the walls
have therefore been shored to prevent the roof and cupola from collapsing. Further collapses
have recently occurred in the north-east corner of the building and supports have been
inserted under window heads as internal timber lintels have failed, causing stress and
cracking to external stone heads. More than £3/4m has been spent on repairs and
maintenance of the building since its acquisition in 2000, including some £100,000 spent on

essential maintenance and temporary works since the grant of planning permission in March
2007.

Justification for Demolition

29.

30.

31

32.

The proposed partial demolition of the building is seen as a result of its overall condition and
the costs of repairing and maintaining it in relation to its importance and the value to be
derived from its current use. The Coal Exchange has suffered over many years through
indecision about its future use since trading ceased in 1961. No new initiatives were
forthcoming until 1976, when the building was considered as accommodation for the Welsh
Assembly and the heavily reinforced concrete car park was built across the forecourt. The
Devolution Referendum the following year was unsuccessful and the Coal Exchange was
again redundant.

Following the designation of the Mount Stuart Conservation Area in 1981, two adjacent
historic buildings collapsed in the bad winter of 1982. The Exchange was considered as a
possible conference and exhibition centre in 1984, but a fire gutted the majority of the east
wing in September of that year. In 1987 a proposal to convert the building into a 300 bed
hotel came to nothing and throughout the period up to the present day, the fabric of the
Exchange Building has slowly deteriorated, particularly due to water ingress as well as fire
damage and vandalism.

Despite attempts by the current owners to secure commercial uses in the building, it still lacks
a cohesive viable future and there remains an urgent need to address the years of neglect and
decay. Various proposals have failed through lack of viability and this radical approach is
now required in order to secure a viable future for the building.

Currently, the Coal Exchange building is a complete build out of the whole site, which
finished with the construction of the west wing. In order to remove and rebuild the
dilapidated parts of the building, the only effective and realistic method would be to undo the
poor quality extensions so as to gain access from the west side. The west elevation also
relates to the part of the conservation area and setting of the listed building that has been
compromised by new residential developments nearby. This so-called “coal-face” approach

Tudalen y pecyn 41




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

33.

would be the only Health & Safety. compliant method for the installation of temporary - - - -

support and for the demolition elements of the proposed scheme.

The general approach would be to unify the reconstruction of Seward’s missing elements to
produce one building, as opposed to the piecemeal construction throughout the early 1900s.
This approach would avoid the current pitfalls and problems affecting the lifespan of the
building. It is intended to remove the cellular office space layout of much of the building and
its small-span structure and to replace this with a wider span framed structure. There would
be a 50:50 split between retained structure and new framed structure in the finished
development. The new roof structure would reflect the form intended in Seward’s original
design, which would be rationalised to overcome the weather-proofing problems of the past.

Economic Viability

34. The proposals seck to achieve a balance between refurbishment and reconstruction. Costings

35.

show that it would not be economically or commercially viable to carry out a totally
refurbished building (Doc 17, App 2), and the finished building would be technically flawed
in terms of roof design. The preferred scheme would incorporate new-build, framed elements
whilst retaining the quality stone facades. The alternative refurbished scheme indicates a loss
of about £9m and a viable scheme would need to show an initial margin of about £3m. There
is no possibility of grants being available to make up this shortfall in the mid to long term.

The consultations on the scheme make it clear that all the responses, apart from Cadw, can
see the benefits in the £25m investment proposal in delivering a viable and successful
development, whilst not only maintaining and enhancing the important and significant
features of the Coal Exchange, but also improving and regenerating public interest in the
building.

Conservation & Restoration

36.

37.

38.

The existing main access to the Hall would be reinstated as an integral part of the new
southern piazza, with a new stone staircase and terrace above the lower courtyard. Both this
main entrance and the north access would lead to the public accommodation on the ground
floor, giving flexibility of use for the Hall and the north and south ante-rooms for separate
functions. These rooms and the Hall retain most of the building’s internal original features,
which the proposal would retain, restore and refurbish. The suspended ceiling would be
removed from the interior of the Hall to allow the full restoration of the galleries, iron trusses,
oak panelling and top light glazing.

The Bath stone French Renaissance style elevations on the south, east and north sides of the
building would be repaired and restored. The chimneys, corner domes and cupolas on the
roof of the south and east wings would also be fully restored. With regard to the west wing,
this would be completely demolished and replaced by French Renaissance style north-west
and south-west corners of the building in the same materials as the south and north elevations

s0 as to match Seward’s original intended design. The central section of the west elevation ...~~~ -

would be rebuilt in a contemporary architectural style.

Internally the layout of the original building has been subjected to substantial modernisation
and alteration of the offices, partitions, doors and ceilings from the late 1950s to the 1970s.
The introduction of fire regulation compartmentalisation of the offices and corridors altered
their relationship to the Exchange Hall so that there are no direct links from the corridors to
the galleries, and the Hall itself has been severed horizontally by the introduction of the
suspended ceiling above the first floor gallery.

7

Tudalen y pecyn 42



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

New Building Works

39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

44.

45.

The new construction would include additional roof level accommodation in the form of 2
added storeys on the east wing with new windows inserted in a mansard roof; additional roof
level duplexes on the north elevation in a new roof form; additional roof duplexes in a new
roof form on the new west wing; and the addition of 2 storeys of accommodation at roof level
and the insertion of new windows in the mansard roof of the south elevation.

The new roof design would be rationalised, whilst still reintroducing aspects of the original
intended design for a formal, axial approach to the roofscape with domes, corner cupolas and
turret features. The new design would overcome technical problems of waterproofing,
accessibility for maintenance and drainage provision. The more modern central roofs to the
north and west wings would be folded and facetted to recede from view when seen from
street level, whilst providing an articulated skyline. Raised seam zinc roofing is proposed for
the new elements, to reflect some of the details of lead roofs with a muted metallic colour.

The proposed west wing elevation would be constructed with vertical and horizontal Bath
stone elements, a Pennant stone plinth and white glazed screen panels with glazed areas. It is
intended that its design would contrast with the original style of the building in a way that
would be innovative, but in harmony with the principles of Seward’s design. The new
elevation is intended to be a modern interpretation of the architectural compositional
principles of the south, east and north facades of the Coal Exchange. It would be a
symmetrical facade with a vertical emphasis to emulate the effect of pilasters and bays of the
Victorian building. The windows would have vertical, rectangular shaped groups and the
horizontal divisions would reflect the positions of cornices, the raised ground floor plinth and
parapets of the original building.

The modern fagade insertion would be set between the reinstated north and south corners in
the French Renaissance style of Seward, with cupola roof details. Visually, the north and
south facades would turn the corner onto the west elevation and stop at the projecting modern
insertion, which would have a raised parapet to provide emphasis to the centre of the fagade.

Overall, the proposals would stem the further deterioration of the listed building and provide
the funding to fully repair and restore the historic parts so as to provide a sustainable future
for the building. The proposed scheme would also regenerate and revitalise Mount Stuart
Square with an appropriate new mix of uses. It would improve the public areas around the
building by removing the 1970s car park structure and creating a new pedestrian piazza to the
south between the Coal Exchange and Baltic House.

Internally, the 2 existing small light-wells would be replaced by a single large light-well to
form an internal courtyard for the apartments facing the repaired north side of the Exchange
Hall. The original small light-wells were designed to provide light and air to the internal
offices, but are not considered adequate to provide the necessary daylight and privacy for the
proposed habitable rooms of apartments.

The proposals are supported by the Design Commission for Wales and the Pierhead and
Mount Stuart Square Conservation Group. All the statutory consultees on the application,
including the Victorian Society and the Ancient Monuments Society, have welcomed and
accepted the need for a radical approach to the conservation and re-use of the building, which
includes the demolition of the west wing and its rebuild in a contemporary style. Cadw
alone, despite their earlier support in 2000, have now raised objections to the design and
detail of the scheme, and to the principles behind the development.

Tudalen y pecyn 43




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

Impact on the Listed Building

46.

47.
- future. With regard to the need to justify the amount of demolition involved in the proposed

48.

49.

50.

51.

The proposals would meet the criteria set out in Welsh Office Circular 61/96, as the scheme
acknowledges the importance of the building in terms of its intrinsic architectural and historic
interest and rarity, particularly through the restoration of its features and the regeneration of
the site. The architectural features and plan form are to be incorporated into the proposals.
Elements of the original design, plan and materials would be reinstated and restored in an
enhanced location through the removal of the concrete car park and the restoration of its
setting in the street scene.

The mixed use scheme would bring new life to the building with a viable and sustainable

scheme, as set out in paragraphs 91 and 92 of the Circular, the failure during the last 50 years
to deliver a meaningful future for the Exchange Building demonstrates that all reasonable
efforts have been made to sustain existing uses or to find viable alternative uses, and these
efforts have failed. The partial demolition proposed would be essential to deliver a mixed use
scheme that would breathe new life into the listed building and to deliver substantial benefits
for the community.

The proposed works take into account the guidance set out at paragraphs 93-99 of the
Circular regarding alterations and extensions to listed buildings. In particular, a balance has
been struck between the effect of the changes on the special interest of the building and the
viability of the proposed uses, or any alternative less-damaging uses. This is a listed building
that has already sustained a great many changes and alterations over the years. The proposed
alterations are based on specialist expertise and the current proposals would have a positive
effect on the building and arise from a committed long-term ownership.

The original Seward design for the whole building was severely compromised by changes to
the north and west wings and the roofscape. Cadw’s view that the evolution of the building
as we see it today is important is not accepted. The proposed scheme should be judged as a
completed work of architecture rather than as archaeological reconstruction. The north-west
corner of the building is a meeting point of two facades with different architectural treatment,
such that the materials and fenestration change, and the west facade is demeaned further by
the lack of a roofscape to match the rest of the building. The west elevation does not follow
the style or composition of the template set by the richly ornamented and symmetrical east
fagade.

Contrary to Cadw’s views, it is argued that the west wing is architecturally the weakest part
of the building, and it provides an opportunity for new development to evolve from the
historical fabric of the whole building to replace this wing through to roof level. The modern
central section of the elevation would be flanked by new “bookends” in the French
Renaissance style where the south and north elevations would turn the corners onto the west
elevation. This is described by Cadw as inappropriate replication of the original design in the

form of “pastiche”. It is not accepted that this derisory term applies to this proposed copy of =

the earlier style rooted in the Classical idiom. It would be the genuine -restoration-of
Seward’s intended building to give solidity to these important corners, complete with
cupolas.

Having criticised this replication of the original design for the corners as pastiche, Cadw also
criticises the proposed non-pastiche, contemporary approach taken with regard to the design
of the central section of the west elevation. Cadw’s objections to this part of the design fail to
take account of the fundamentally flawed roofscape and inherent failing of the original design

Tudalen y pecyn 44




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

52.

53.

54.

to provide a secure and sustainable future for the Exchange Building, and the new roof design
reinstatement of the unexecuted elements of Seward’s design, notably the replacement of 2
bland modern dormers and the completion of the fagade and roofscape of the original design.

Although Cadw has criticised the proposed removal of the 2 existing small light-wells, the
creation of a larger open light-well is considered essential to secure the future residential use
of the Exchange Building. This is the only way to provide acceptable standards of natural
light and ventilation, whilst also providing privacy for the new units. It has the added
advantage of allowing the opening up of original windows in the Exchange Hall itself onto
the northern galleries above the original trading floor.

Replacement car parking would be introduced into the basement and lower ground floor
levels to the rear of the listed building. This would have a ramped access from the north of
Mount Stuart Square through a former service access. The spaces would serve the new
residential units and also provide service access and staff spaces for the other uses in the
building.

Examples of schemes where a similar approach to the restoration, refurbishment, extension
and rejuvenation of listed buildings through a change of use is given from the Architect’s
portfolio. These are: St Andrew’s the Great, Cambridge; Prince of Wales Road, Norwich;
George Street/Castle Street, Edinburgh; The Lanesborough Hotel, Hyde Park Corner,
London; The Royal Exchange, London; Crowne Plaza, Blackfriars, London; The Grove,
Chandlers Cross, Hertfordshire; and David Morgan Department Store, Cardiff.

Effect on the Conservation Area

35.

56.

The regeneration and enhancement of the building and its immediate setting would bring new
life to this central part of the conservation area. The removal of the disfigurement of the
main entrance courtyard caused by the 1970s concrete car park bunker and the reintroduction
of retail and restaurant/bar frontages with community involvement in a landscaped outdoor
piazza would enhance considerably the public realm.

The building would be reinstated as the focal heart of the Mount Stuart Conservation Area.
The mixed use of residential and food/drink/retail uses and the restoration of the Exchange
Building as the centrepiece of a communal open space would allow this commercial and
residential area to remain alive and prosperous. The restoration of the historic fagades and
the Exchange Hall rooms would enhance the area’s special architectural and historic
qualities.

Case for the Local Planning Authority — Cardiff County Council

57.

58.

The material points are: -

Following extensive consultations and discussions with the applicants from 2000 to March
2006, and negotiation for certain changes to the proposals, the Council finally granted
planning permission for a revised scheme on 19/07/06 (Ref: 06.0760C). A section 106
agreement was also submitted for the provision of a sum of £100,000 for an off-site
affordable housing contribution and public open space and improvements to the public areas.

In determining the listed building consent application the Council has followed the guidance
set out in Welsh Office Circular 61/96 “Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic
Buildings and Conservation Areas”, particularly paragraphs 70, 91 and 92. Although
paragraph 91 advises that the demolition of a Grade IT* listed building requires the strongest
justification, paragraph 6.5.10 states that “there will very occasionally be cases where

10

Tudalen y pecyn 45



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

demolition is unavoidable”. With regard to paragraph 92 of the Circular the Council has had
regard to the condition of the building, the cost of repairing it and maintaining it in relation to
its importance and to the value to be derived from its continued use; the adequacy of efforts
made to retain the building in use; and the merits of alternative proposals for the site.

Condition of the Listed Building

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

The Exchange Building has deteriorated to a poor condition over the last 40 years due to
water ingress, infestation, subsidence, fire damage and vandalism. The fire damage in the
east wing has resulted in large areas of dereliction, and the current problems include
extensive wet rot and dry rot, structural timber failure, collapse of floors and ceilings, damage
to supporting walls, settlement and cracks in window heads. The integrity of the listed
building has also been damaged over decades by intrusive building works and alterations,
particularly the concrete bunker in the south forecourt and the suspended ceiling in the
Exchange Hall. The applicants have carried out extensive maintenance of the building over
the last 7 years.

The applicants submitted a Structural Appraisal (Doc 4) which concludes that whilst the
foundations of the building are sound, a radical solution is needed that would provide a
watertight covering whilst respecting the facades and setting of the building. A ‘do nothing’
approach is not an option for this building as it would inevitably lead to further dereliction
and possible loss of the listed building. All parties, including Cadw, agreed in 2005 to advise
the owners that the building should not go through one more winter in its present state, and it
was placed on the Council’s register of ‘Listed Buildings at Risk’.

The approach adopted for the development has been informed by the current condition of the
building. The strategy for the submitted scheme is to demolish much of the interior of the
building and the west wing. There is a fundamental need to rationalise the roof to overcome
water penetration problems, which would be achieved by a replacement roof structure. The
internal structure of the fire-damaged east wing would be demolished and rebuilt.

The Council accepts that the cost of repairs and restoration alone would be in the rcgioh of
£6m, and that the current proposals for the Exchange Building would invest some £25m into
the building and its surrounds.

It is accepted that a refurbished existing building would be unlikely to be viable for reuse for
office space. The cellular layout of the original small offices, access and floor to ceiling
heights fail to meet today’s expectations for office accommodation. The present day lack of
demand for cellular office space, compared to the large availability of new hi-tech offices in
Cardiff Bay, make a return to refurbished offices untenable. Therefore new uses for the
building had to be explored.

In the light of this, the Council concludes that the current scheme is justified in the terms set
out in the Circular. It is accepted that substantial demolition of existing fabric would be
justified and necessary to arrive at a viable scheme that would restore as much of the existing.

character of the building as possible and to ensure the long term preservation of the building. -~ - o

Having considered the desirability of preserving the listed building, its setting and its
features, and the removal of the frontage concrete bunker, the Council finds the level of
demolition of the west wing and part of the internal structure would be justified by the
retention, repair, restoration and refurbishment of the grandeur of the French Renaissance
architecture of the Exchange Building, the Hall itself and the rooms associated with it on the
ground floor. '

11

Tudalen y pecyn 46



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

66.

The applicants have shown that significant intervention would be necessary, and that the
amount of demolition involved would be justified. Following the lack of a viable
comprehensive proposal for the use of the building for over 40 years, its current condition
means that substantial demolition is now unavoidable.

Impact on Setting and Conservation Area

67.

68.

69.

70.

With regard to the effect of the proposals on the setting of the Exchange Building and the
character of the conservation area, the poor condition of the exterior of the building is
compounded by its mass and scale in the centre of the square. The surrounding footways,
highway and street furniture are unattractive and dated, and the south front is disfigured by
the concrete car park bunker. The proposed works to remove the ugly additions, clean and
restore the stone elevations and to create a re-landscaped entrance forecourt would make a
major contribution to the character of the conservation area.

The listed building schedule description refers to the main architectural features of the
Exchange Hall. This concentrates on the ornate Classical style of the main elevations and the
grand internal rooms and the Exchange Hall. The proposed scheme includes the restoration
and reinstatement of the main features, the Exchange Hall and associated rooms, the three
stone facades and the south entrance and entrance foyer.

The scheme would transform the south elevation by recreating the original open paved
approach, with flights of stairs to the entrance terrace and down to the restaurant and bars
from the new piazza. The combined restoration and reinstatement of architectural features
and new works in this area would result in a functional reinstatement of the building and the
visual enhancement of its architectural features. The proposals would restore the Hall to its
former splendour, uplift the French Renaissance architecture of the stone fagades and it
would reinstate the formal grandeur of the main entrance, thus reconnecting the Exchange
Building with the public realm.

The proposed new mix of uses would increase the vitality of the Square and the whole
conservation area through the introduction of Class A3 uses on the ground and lower ground
floor levels. The proposed cafés and restaurants would recreate the original A3 uses in these
locations and the use of the outdoor space for café tables would provide a meeting place and
bring additional activity and vitality into the conservation area.

Demolition

71.

72,

The list description refers to the west elevation as a “less ambitious treatment in yellow brick
with bathstone dressings, three storeys, but bays behind wing of entrance front two storeys
with dormers in attic”, and Cadw considers this elevational treatment to be subordinate but
not inferior to the other three stone elevations. ‘The Victorian Society describes the west
elevation as “lower down in the hierarchical treatment of the facades”, but has some concern
about the loss of this elevation whilst accepting that its demolition may be crucial to the
viability of the project. The Ancient Monuments Society expresses concern about the loss of
the west elevation, and their view is that “the language of the west wing is very much in
sympathy with the general Italianate of the remainder and the fact that it is in brick with stone
dressings, rather than wholly in stone, is merely a sign that it is meant to be subordinate”.

The west elevation is considered to be of historic interest in terms of the evolution of the
Exchange, but it is subordinate architecturally to the highly ornamented stone elevations. Its
redevelopment received the support of the Design Commission for Wales and the Pierhead
and Mount Stuart Square Conservation Group. The removal of this west wall of less

12

Tudalen y pecyn 47




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

73.

74.

architectural significance would facilitate a viable scheme for the restoration of the more ~~ -

significant elements of the building.

None of the national amenity bodies has objected to the removal of the 2 small light-wells
and parts of the internal structure. A significant amount of internal demolition is proposed,
but it is accepted that its removal would facilitate a viable scheme. Efforts to find users for
the existing office space have failed over many years and the cellular office structure is
inappropriate for modern office accommodation. The loss of the internal spaces has to be
weighed against the need to attract investment in the building as a whole and to protect
against its further deterioration.

The Council concludes that, given the length of time that the building has remained vacant
and the efforts made to attract new uses, a radical approach to its refurbishment is justified.
A significant amount of demolition would be necessary to achieve a comprehensive scheme.
In terms of their relative importance and architectural interest, the Exchange Hall and central
rooms and the stone fagades would be preserved in the scheme, whilst the removal of the
internal structure and the west elevation would be the most appropriate way of delivering a
considered and viable development. The proposed scheme would ensure that the most
important architectural and historical features of the building would be preserved and its
group value in the Square maintained and enhanced.

Scheme Benefits

75.

76.

The proposed scheme would restore the Coal and Shipping Exchange Hall the most
important part of the building. The false ceiling inserted to accommodate 20" century events
has reduced the Hall to a panelled room of 2 storeys, rather than the original grand void of 4
storeys. Above the ceiling, the Hall has a glazed roof supported by arched iron trusses,
reaching to a height of 17.5m. This height and 2 tiers of balconies, and the ornamentation
added by Seward in 1911, created a dramatic space, befitting the purpose of the building.
The proposals would allow for public use of the Hall and access to it, whereas the building is
not currently open to the public and the Exchange Hall is not generally accessible. The
proposed development would provide an exceptional venue with public access, thus allowing
public appreciation of the building’s architecture and history.

The external facades of Seward’s French Renaissance design would be restored for public
appreciation and the renovation of the south front to expose the lower floors and reintroduce
the grandeur of the main approach to the building would benefit the public aspect of the
building. The access and approach to the building would be improved by reinstatement of the
front entrance and foyer.

Consultations

7.

The Council consulted the statutory amenity bodies on the application for listed building
consent (see Document 11): -

e The Ancient Monuments Society did not object to the principle of a radical-approach but
had concerns about the loss of the west elevation rather than the loss of the wing itself and
about the design of the new west elevation. It was suggested that the new elevation
should not project forward and its design should be more contextual in its rhythm and
architectural language. Also expressed concerns about the new roof design, which should
be quieter and more polite. The Society supported the replica corner sections in the
French Renaissance style, and welcomed the restoration of the Exchange Hall.

13

Tudalen y pecyn 48




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

78.

79.

e The Victorian Society also supported the need for radical intervention and expressed
concern at the proposed loss of the west elevation. The replacement design of the west
elevation should be calmer, and objections were made about the new French Renaissance
style corners. There was support for the restoration of the Exchange Hall and the removal
of the concrete bunker car park, but an objection was raised to the new roof form.

e The Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historic Monuments of Wales only
commented on the historical significance of the structure and the adequacy of the record.
The proposal and restoration works were supported in principle.

e The Pierhead and Mount Stuart Square Conservation Group support the approach and
welcomed the scheme for the restoration of the building. There was no objection to the
roof form or the new west elevation, and the new Victorian style corner blocks were
welcomed. There was also support for the removal of the car park subject to-the design of
the lower ground floor of the south elevation.

e The Design Commission for Wales supports the radical approach and proposals. There
are no objections to the demolition of the west elevation although some concerns were
expressed about the design of the new elevation. The new replica corner buildings were
considered to be acceptable and proposals for the removal of the bunker car park and
creation of a new piazza were welcomed.

In response to these comments the scheme was revised by amendments to the design of the
west elevation and its relationship to the corner sections. The new roof of the north and west
wings was softened by flattening the outer sections and the fenestration to the south and east
elevation amended. On the south front, the lower ground floor elevation was revised to give
more solidity and parking in the new piazza was removed. The amended drawings were
submitted on 15/06/06 and new perspective drawings on 22/06/06. These were considered to
address the concerns of the amenity bodies, the advice given by the local planning authority
and the pre-application advice given by Cadw.

Amendments have been made to the scheme to meet the pre-application comments of Cadw,
who it is felt have not given sufficient weight to the poor condition of the building and the
high costs of essential repairs and restoration work. Similarly, Cadw does not appear to have
taken a balanced view of the length of time the building has been without a proper use and
the financial viability of the proposed scheme. Nor have the benefits of the scheme for the
restoration of the building and the Hall been taken properly into account. The Council
concludes that Cadw’s objections do not warrant refusal of the application. Consequently,
the application for listed building consent was reported to the Planning Committee with
recommendation for approval on 19/07/06 (Doc 11, D68).

Conditions

80. In the event that listed building consent is granted for the proposed scheme, the Council

suggests the use of 10 conditions, some of which require the approval of details of the new
build sections of the development, the restoration of the fagcades and the Exchange Hall and
careful controls over demolition works (Doc 6, section F).

14

Tudalen y pecyn 49



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

Case for Cadw

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

The material points are: -

It is pointed out that the initial phase of the Seward & Thomas design for the Coal Exchange
was executed between 1884 and 1886. The south-west wing was added in 1893 and further
additions to the north and west were undertaken between 1894 and 1897. That it is an
important and significant building for the City of Cardiff and for the Welsh nation is reflected
in the Grade IT* listing and its list description as “one of the most historically important
commercial buildings in Wales, illustrating the region’s immense commercial power in the
late 19" and early 20" centuries”.

It is recognised that the building is in poor condition, having suffered from fire damage and
vandalism during the latter part of the 20" century. A major concern is that the building has
been allowed to fall into a state of disrepair with no planned maintenance or repair
programme for many years. Cadw has not surveyed the structural and other defects in the
building, and no estimates have been made about how much historic fabric remains internally
following the 1950s-1970s alterations.

The main areas for proposed intervention in the building are the demolition of the west wing -
and rebuilding of new accommodation, the removal of internal structural fabric and roofscape

alterations. Whilst the repair and re-use of the building is considered a laudable objective,

Cadw objects to the loss of so much historic fabric and the introduction of additional

accommodation at roof level and within the west wing.

The parts of the building which are proposed to be demolished are not unimportant or
insignificant. The evolution of the design of the building is important and later works
undertaken about a decade later than the initial phase of construction are no less important
historically or architecturally. This view is supported by paragraph 71 of Circular 61/96
“Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas”.

It is accepted that the current owners have spent a total sum of about £3/4m on repairs and
maintenance of the building since 2000. The purchase price of £1/2m should have reflected
the state of repair of the building, and the cost of the necessary repair and refurbishment
works could not have been a surprise for the owners. Cadw suggested in an earlier meeting
that the owners should make a grant-aid application for the repair of the building. This would
be part of a total budget for all listed buildings in Wales, which is in the region of £1.5m to
£2m and some 50 grants are taken up each year. Such grant-aid could have rendered the
whole roof watertight and alleviated current defects, in advance of the commencement of a
viable use for the building.

Demolition of the West Wing

86.

The proposed demolition of the west wing and its replacement with a modern elevation is a
major concern for Cadw. The west wing was constructed approximately 10 years after the

south front of the building. Its architectural language accords with the details and style of the = svs i

original design, but the west elevation was built of yellow brick with dressed stone. It is well
detailed and constructed, particularly with regard to the fenestration, window heads, pilasters
and chimneys. It is not clear why there was a change in material to brick from the Bath stone
of the original facades. It could have been due to a lack of availability of materials, or to
identify the west elevation as a later phase of the development. The choice and use of
materials suggests that it was designed to appear subordinate to the earlier phases, and not

15

Tudalen y pecyn 50



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

inferior, as the applicants have suggested. There is no suggestion in the structural survey that
the wing is beyond repair or that repair would be a major undertaking.

87. The forward projection of the new elevation insertion would exaggerate it as a dominant
element compared to Seward’s building line, and the modern elevation could visually
dominate the listed building. The design lacks “contextualism” and appreciation of the
horizontal and vertical composition of the original fagade. The end parts of the new elevation
intend to replicate the original design on each side of the contemporary fagade insertion.
Contrary to Circular advice, this would introduce a pastiche approach, with the proposals not
being distinguishable from the original design.

Internal Demolition

88. A great deal of internal structural historic fabric would be removed around the two original
light-wells, with the creation of a large void near the centre of the building. This would
sacrifice the conservation principle of minimal intervention and the building would undergo
major changes due to the proposed change of use. In contrast, one of the principles of listed
building legislation and government guidelines is to provide redundant historic buildings with
new uses that should be adapted to fit the historic building. The approach taken in this
application does not attempt to recognise the restraints of the existing structure, which is to be
removed wherever it does not suit the new design. There is no clear indication by the
appellants as to the precise extent of the proposed internal demolition.

Proposed Roof Alterations

89. The existing roofscape would be dramatically altered to provide additional floors and
accommodation. The existing balanced composition would be compromised by alien modern
additions. The result would be an unresolved combination of contemporary roof design in
some places and a replica of the original concept in others. The result would be
unsympathetic to the original building, and the scale of the extended building would
dominate its surrounding built environment. The alien and inappropriate top-heavy building
would affect its overall character.

Details of Design

90. There are many unresolved areas in the design and application drawings, which require
approval of numerous items by conditions. In particular, the Council’s suggested condition
No. 3 requires: -

o Full design details of the contemporary section of the west elevation;

e Full details of the north-west and south replica corners to the west elevation;

e A scheme for the main front entrance (south elevation) and entrances to the north and
east elevations;

e Details of the south-facing terrace, balcony, stairs, lift and lower ground floor glazed
frontage;

e Details of the car park entrance (north elevation);

e A scheme for the inner residential courtyard;

o A fully detailed scheme for the new and replacement roofs and extensions plus
restoration works to original roofs including rainwater goods.

This represents a significant number of alterations or changes that may be detrimental to the
character of the listed building. These matters should be considered before a fully informed
decision can be made on the application for listed building consent.

10

Tudalen y pecyn 51




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

91.

It is concluded that the proposals would be detrimental 4o the special character of the listed
building. The argument put forward in support of the partial removal of so many elements of -
the historic fabric lacks justification. Cadw has requested, but has not seen, drawings of a
rationalised scheme within the existing structure that would retain more of the historic fabric
currently proposed for demolition.

Case for Interested Persons

92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

The material points are: -

On behalf of the Central Area/Mount Stuart Square & Pierhead Conservation Group,
Mr S Evans (Doc 19) expressed the view that the proposals are a competent and sensitive
design, based on a well-researched assessment of the architectural quality of the Grade IT*
listed building and the history of its construction. The proposals would fulfil the need to
create new functional spaces in order to fund the restoration of the fabric. The proposed
elevational treatment would introduce a modern intervention without devaluing the
architectural integrity of the existing building.

The removal of the unfortunate alterations and the proposed treatment of the main (south)
facade and entrance would be a major improvement. Internally the spaces have been
reorganised or newly created to ensure that the scheme would be a workable and marketable
residential and commercial building. Although this would require the removal or adaptation
of some of the original structural elements, in particular the loss of the 2 internal light-wells,
it is accepted that the degree of alteration would be consistent with the need to reorganise the
interiors.

Public access to the restored Exchange Hall, which would be retained for public use, would
be an improvement. This is considered to be one of the most iconic elements in the whole
building as it symbolises the maritime and industrial heritage of Cardiff.

The “part-demolition” of the brick west elevation is considered to-be justifiable in view of its
present condition and appearance which is poor in comparison to the remainder of the
building constructed largely in Bath stone. The new clevation is considered to be acceptable
in that, although it is modern it would be well-mannered and carefully inserted with a
considered vertical junction detail between the old and new.

Although the proposed intervention at roof level would be most dramatic in its form, due to
the narrow angle of views from the street level surrounding the building and the interface
with the new west elevation, it would not appear incongruous if detailed properly and linked
to the retained roof structures.

Written Representations

97.

98.

The Ancient Monuments Society (Doc 11) expressed concern at the proposals for the west
wing and the external elevation. Although the existing building lacks coherence due to its

stages of construction, the existing west elevation is regarded as being in sympathy-with the-- - ,
general ‘Italianate’ style of the rest of the building. The use of brick with stone dressings is= ~: === mmii]

considered a sign that it was merely subordinate, not downgraded from the original. The new
elevation design lacks ‘contextualism’ and although the new domed features are welcomed,
the proposed rhythm and language of the new elevation would be at odds with Seward’s
design.

The proposed new roofscape and the forward projection of the west elevation are considered
unacceptable. The new roof on the west side would be composed of substantial, but rather

17

Tudalen y pecyn 52




Report APP/26815/X/06/514904

99.

100.

101.

102.

misshapen lumps that would break through onto the south elevation. This is considered to be
ugly and alien, competing with, rather than complementing the existing composition. The
projection of the contemporary facade would exaggerate its role in slicing into the existing
elevation. If the principle of redevelopment of this side is accepted, the new elevation should
be more ‘polite’, with a quieter roof line, and pushed back to be flush with the existing
building.

It should be clarified which elements of the building would be salvaged, with particular
concern about the stairs in the fire damaged east wing. The proposed retention of the
Exchange Hall and removal of the suspended ceiling is applauded. Following the modified
plans the Society still considers the new roof shape to be alien and therefore sustains the
objection.

Due to the poor condition of the building, the Victorian Society accepts the need for
considerable intervention to safeguard its future. The proposals are considered reasonable
in that the proposed internal demolition would be offset by the restoration of the Hall and
the removal of the concrete parking bunker from the south front.

There are three concerns about the proposals. Firstly, the west elevation, although later than
the others and despite its unfinished roofline, has a design rationale and quality of detailing,
particularly to the window heads, pilasters and chimneys. If its demolition is crucial to the
viability of the project, it should be replaced with a design more in sympathy with the
building. Secondly, the insertion of replica stone facades at each end of the elevation,
although based on Seward’s original drawings, is contrary to Circular advice. Thirdly, the
Society’s greatest concern is reserved for the proposed roof form, extending above the
retained fagades, which would be a significant, unwelcome change from the original design.

The Design Commission for Wales supports the principle of the refurbishment as a

mixed use scheme, combining respect for the original building with the new elements. It is

considered an acceptable solution to the brief and the requirements of the site, in particular:

o Itis accepted that the current west fagade is redundant and should be replaced with a new
design of elevation and roof form;

e The design of the west elevation should be developed further by lowering and staggering
if possible;

e The proposed demolition of the concrete car park and terraces and the opening up of the
lower ground floor for sociable uses is greatly welcomed,

o The attempt the re-animate the square, provide active frontages and extend pedestrian use
is supported,

e The new public forecourt should be treated as an urban open space with minimal
shading, and the treatment of the stairs and entrance balcony need careful detailing;

e The disabled access needs to be relocated and details of the front entrance and forecourt
facades faithfully reproduced.

Conditions

103.

In resolving to grant listed building consent for the works, the Council drew up a list of 10
conditions, including the statutory 5 year time limit for the commencement of the works
(Doc 20). The Council also requests an additional condition regarding the chimney stacks,
requiring the submission of details of those to be retained and removed, those to be
replaced, and details of their replacement.

I8

Tudalen y pecyn 53




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

104. Cadw consider it necessary to attach further conditions requiring an approved landscaping. ... -

105.

scheme for the paved forecourt, and details of the vertical and horizontal service runs to be
provided as part of the mixed use scheme (water, electricity, mechanical, lifts, and gas) and
their intervention in the building before the works commence. However, the applicants
consider it unnecessary to require landscape details, as this is already required by the
planning permission for the development and the paved areas lie outside the listed building.

As the proposals include the removal of much historic fabric, the Council suggest a
condition requiring the submission of a schedule of all the features and areas of the building
to be retained and protected during demolition works. The applicants would be content to
abide by an appropriately worded condition.

19

Tudalen y pecyn 54



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

Conclusions’

106.

107.

108.

109.

The starting point in the consideration of this application for listed building consent is the
statutory duties set out under sections 16 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. These require that special regard should be had to the
desirability of preserving the listed building, its setting and any features of special
architectural interest that it possesses, and to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of the Mount Stuart Square Conservation Area. These duties are
enlarged upon through the advice and guidance set out in Welsh Office Circular 61/96
“Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas” (the
Circular).

The proposed works to the listed building for the creation of the mixed use development
“would involve substantial alteration of the structural fabric of the building. This would
involve a significant amount of demolition of the existing office accommodation and the
reconstruction of large parts of the interior and the west wing to produce a largely
residential scheme. Externally, there would be significant changes to the south fagade, west
elevation and north, in terms of the new roof and other changes to the form and composition
of the roofscape. Landscape improvements are planned for the southern courtyard, with the
creation of a new paved piazza across the street.

Although it is proposed to retain the Exchange Hall and ante-rooms internally, and the
south, east and north elevations intact, this is clearly a scheme that involves substantial
demolition of the listed building. Government guidance for dealing with proposals for this
scale of intervention with a listed building is set out in paragraphs 91 and 92 of the Circular.
This states that “the demolition of any Grade I or II* building should be wholly exceptional
and require the strongest justification”, and that the Secretary of State (Welsh Minister)
“would not expect consent to be given for the total or substantial demolition of any listed
building without convincing evidence that all reasonable efforts have been made to sustain
existing uses or find viable new uses, and these efforts have failed”.

In order to assess the merits of the proposals, paragraph 92 of the Circular requires the
following matters to be considered:

(i) The condition of the building, the costs of repairing and maintaining it in relation to its
importance and to the value derived from its continued use. In those case where it is
clear that a building has been deliberately neglected, less weight should be given to the
costs of repair;

(if) The adequacy of efforts made to retain the building in use. This should include the offer
of the unrestricted freehold of the building on the open market at a price reflecting the
building’s condition;

(iii) The merits of alternative proposals for the site.

Condition of the Building

110.

As described and photographed in the 2006 Structural Appraisal'* P, the building is in
poor condition. Structurally, the main areas of concern are the southern half of the east
wing, which is a fire-gutted shell, supported by scaffolding; the lower ground floor of the
south section which has suffered progressive collapse and dereliction; parts of the north

The superscript numbers etc refer earlier paragraphs and documents which are the sources for factual
statements.

20

Tudalen y pecyn 55




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

111.

112.

wing badly affected by wet rot and structural failure; and the upper level of the west wing
where rainwater ingress has badly affected the roof and floor structures. Many of the timber
roof and floor members and window lintels have failed or are on the point of failure in these
areas.

Of over-arching importance with regard to the condition of the building, the whole of its
roof structure, which appears to be a complicated maze of pitched and turreted forms with
hidden gutters and flat roof areas, has failed in numerous locations. Apart from the 1984
fire, the roof is a major contributory cause of the poor structural condition of the building,
with outbreaks of wet rot and dry rot throughout the unoccupied parts. As a result,
approximately 85% of the building is unlettable and empty.

It is accepted by the Council®® and Cadw® that some 40 years of neglect took place before
the applicant company took over the building in the year 2000, when it was already in very
poor condition. It is also acknowledged that the applicants have already spent a
considerable sum on maintenance in the latter periodzs. It is clear on any inspection
however, that these maintenance works have not, and will not halt the steady decline in the
state of the building. Such problems are on a huge scale in this vast building, and parts of
the structure already represent health and safety hazards.

The importance of the building

113.

114.

115.

The architectural value of the building lies in the grandeur of its external envelope
comprising the Bath stone elevations in the French Renaissance style and, to a slightly lesser
extent, the brickwork western elevation; the domed and turreted slate roofscape; and the
major internal spaces of the Exchange Hall, the foyer entrance rooms and the ante-rooms on
the north side. Apart from these architectural features, it has to be said that the rest of the
interior is disappointing, due to the extensive modern alterations carried out over the years.

It is a building of enormous historic interest in the economic and commercial development
of Cardiff and South Wales, worthy of every effort being made to preserve it as an
important part of the Butetown area. It has to be accepted however, that the use it was
designed to accommodate has gone forever, and that the cellular layout of the offices and
corridors does not lend itself to adaptation for modern office suites. The original Seward
layout was centred on the Exchange Hall as the hub of activity with corridors and offices
linked directly off the upper galleries and the trading floor. However, the connectivity and
physical relationship between the offices and the Exchange Hall was irrevocably altered in
the late 1950s and 1970s when fire partitioning was introduced within and around the Hall
and corridor escape routes. This effectively closed the upper galleries off from the rest of
the offices, and later alterations and re-modelling in the 1970s appear to have removed
much of the original fabric from the interior.

From my inspection of the interior, there appears to be very little of the original fabric left
above ground floor level, particularly in the wings most affected by the current proposals.

Although paragraph 98 of the Circular advises that “the preservation of facades alone,and..... ... ... ...

the gutting and reconstruction of interiors, is not normally an acceptable approach to the
reuse of listed buildings; it can destroy much of the building’s special interest and create
problems for the long-term stability of the structure”, in this instance much of the interior is
either gutted by fire or destroyed by water penetration, and the existing west and north
wings contain a large proportion of modern and bland partitioning and staircases. The
current condition of the building and the necessity to renew sections of the interior presents
an opportunity to remodel the accommodation so as to achieve the best return from the floor
space, through residential and office uses compatible with the exterior of the building.

21

Tudalen y pecyn 56



Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

Costs of Repair and Refurbishment

116.

117.

118.

The applicants’ figures indicate that it would not be an economicallg viable proposition to
carry out a total refurbishment of the building in its current form> °°“'7, and the resultant
building would be likely to be technically flawed without a redesign of the roof form. The
refurbishment option would be some £9m short of being a viable scheme and it would not
provide the required initial profit margin of £3m.

The proposed scheme includes approximately £6m of repairs and refurbishment of the
retained parts of the historic building, and these figures, based on the proposed scheme
costing £25m, are not disputed by the Council or Cadw™ %2, Although Cadw suggests the
possibility of grant-aid for the repair/restoration option®, it is clear from the current national
budget even a maximum level of grant would not sufficiently offset the £9m shortfall to
make the refurbishment scheme viable. Even then the final scheme would not produce a
profit.

On a building of this scale, it is clear to me that pursuance of a non-viable, unprofitable
scheme would be likely to store up future maintenance and repair problems for the future,
just as it has in the past. Although Cadw suggest that the purchase price in 2000 ought to
have taken into account the costs of repair of the Grade II* building, which implies that the
new owners should have been able to proceed with the refurbishment of the building to a
standard that would allow its full use, the evidence shows that expenditure so far is well in
excess of the purchase price, and it has not secured a viable use. In fact, the use of the
building has declined rapidly in recent years, and the recent loss of the bank lease in the
north-east corner has dealt the owners a severe economic blow.

Efforts Made to Retain the Use

119.

120.

The applicant’s and Council’s evidence indicates that the layout and condition of the
building has been responsible for the various owners’ failure over 50 years to secure a long
term and adequate level of use of the accommodation to make the building a viable
proposition. This is regarded by the Council as evidence to show that successive owners
have made strenuous efforts to secure the use of the building. . Whilst Cadw does not agree
that sufficient effort has been made to re-use the building, it is clearly the case that the
various owners had been attempting to secure lettings throughout the period since the Coal
Exchange ceased trading®™".

The Exchange Building was built for a specific use in the 19" century, and although its
main architectural spaces and features are preserved through the listing, neither these nor
the ancillary offices are in a useable form today. The unconventional layout, combined with
the poor state of the building and the large scale nature of the problems appear to render the
building quite unusable in today’s commercial market place. The applicants’ costings
demonstrate that a radical solution is needed to preserve the best architectural features of the
building to secure its future through a change of use within its structure. This approach to
its conservation, adaptation and reuse was also adopted by the CBDC in the years prior to
2000, and I do not doubt that if the building was to be sold freehold today, the new owners
would be forced to adopt a similar approach to the problems of refurbishment and reuse.

Merits of the Proposals

22

Tudalen y pecyn 57




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

121.

122.

Although a substantial amount of renewal of the building would be involved, the submitted
scheme is far from being a proposal for a replacement building on the site, and it needs to be
judged as to whether it would preserve the character of the listed building, its setting and its
architectural features. The main benefits of the scheme are that it would preserve and fully
restore the south, east and north elevations of the building, the Exchange Hall, foyer and
ante-rooms internally, and it would remove the concrete car park bunker and create a paved
courtyard and public piazza on the south side.

Clearly, the proposals aim to incorporate the listed building into the new development; and
the notable historic architectural features of the building would define and enclose the new
uses within the building. This would be a scheme led by the need to conserve the best
features of the Exchange Building. There are more controversial elements to the proposed
scheme, particularly the insertion of a contemporary west elevation with its replica corners,
and the proposed contemporary roof extensions, and I deal with these aspects below.

Demolition

123.

124.

125.

Apart from the Hall and important public rooms on the ground floor, which would be
preserved and restored, I can confirm that the majority of the rest of the interior that would
be removed in order to construct the new accommodation is unprepossessmg and mundane.
Although Cadw objects to the demolition of internal features®™, there is little of architectural
or historic interest remaining in the corridors of small offices and the two small light-wells
are fairly unattractive, utilitarian features intended to provide ventilation and a little light for
the internal offices. Clearly, if these light-wells were to be retamed they would not provide
sufficient light or privacy for the proposed residential apartments In my view these are
not of such historic or architectural importance that should be allowed to stand in the way of
a mixed use scheme that would revitalise this badly run-down building.

In order to construct the new apartments, it is proposed to create a larger open internal
courtyard, exposing to view the north side of the Exchange Hall. Although it is not clear
from the submitted plans, it appears that in order to achieve this, a large proportion of the
interior of the east, north and west wings would be reconstructed over the ground floor ante-
rooms level. Due to the built-out nature of the whole site, and the depth of the floor plans,
this appears to be a reasonable solution to the conversion of this large building.

Whilst the proposal to demolish the south front car park has received universal approval, as
it would clearly enhance the building, the proposed demolition and replacement of the west
elevation has had a mixed reception.

West Elevation

126.

127.

The existing west elevation is described in the Grade II* listing as “a less ambitious
treatment” compared to the other fagades. Cadw points out that although constructed 10
years after the original Bath stone elevations, the west side displays the same architectural
language and although of yellow brick, it has dressed stone details to match®. It is claimed

to be ‘subordinate’ rather than ‘inferior’ to the earlier phases of the building.. The applicants. ... .=

on the other hand claim that the west wing is the weakest part of the architectural
composmon ° and it is clearly unfinished at roof level.

One of the aims of the new scheme is to add 2 floors and a proper roof to the west wing.
The applicants explain that if the scheme is to be carried out with health and safety concerns
in mind, there has to be a breach of the ‘perimeter wall’ of the Sl[e to allow -access for the
removal and reconstruction of damaged parts of the building®>. The west clevation was

23

Tudalen y pecyn 58




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

128.

129.

130.

131.

selected for this so called ‘coal face approach’ because it was felt to be the weakest in terms
of architectural style and materials®.

Whilst it is not unattractive in terms of its character and architectural composition, to my
mind the brick west elevation definitely lacks the scale, grandeur, warmth and colour of the
rest of building. It appears somewhat utilitarian and the craftsmanship of the other Bath
stone fagades is missing. It looks very much as though it was conceived as the rear of the
building. This impression is reinforced by there not being an entrance to the Coal Exchange
on this side (in contrast to each of the other elevations), and at only 2 storeys high, the roof
remains truncated and unfinished. I conclude that if there has to be intervention on the scale
proposed in order to put the building right, this is the one side where it would inflict least
damage on the character of the building.

With regard to the replacement elevation, Cadw and the Ancient Monuments Society take
the view that the proposed contemporary design for the central part of this elevation lacks
“contextualism™®” *7, in that it would not relate well to the style and composition of the
original facades. It is explained by the applicants however, that the modern design of the
projecting elevation follows the proportions, vertical rthythm and horizontal lines used by
Seward throughout the building4 . ‘The slight forward projection of this fagade is a device
designed to divorce the contemporary section from the replica corner sections that would
link with the north and south-west elevations.

In my view, the new elevation is well-mannered and follows the proportions and symmetry
of the other main elevations. The corner ‘book ends’ are intended to replicate Seward’s
designs for these in Bath stone, and I find it difficult to fault this approach, particularly as it
allows for the restoration of the cupolas at each corner of the roof and it would provide an
appropriate transition from the 19" century fagades on the adjoining north and south
elevations to the modern central section.

In contextual terms, it would be difficult to justify an entire replica fagade in the French
Renaissance style, because the west side of Mount Stuart Square opposite the Exchange
Building already contains some modern residential buildings, and the general approach to
the redevelopment of the west wing with a predominantly contemporary design would not
look out of place in this street scene.

Roof Design

132.

133.

Cadw, the Ancient Monuments Society and the Victorian Society object to the proposed
new roof form on the west side®*®!°! on the grounds that it would be top-heavy, alien and
unsympathetic. However, it has to be borne in mind that the whole building would be re-
roofed, mainly in the original pitched slate roof style with domes, turrets and cupolas to
form symmetrical compositions on each elevation, as envisaged in Seward’s original
plans39’40. Additional floors of accommodation would be provided in new, contemporary
roof forms on the north and west elevations.

Whilst these new zinc covered roofs appear to be substantial additions to the building on the
elevational drawings, in fact they would be set back behind parapets and balconies from the
front face of the main elevations (see Plans B, Sections 10465-PL-02-10 to 12). The
computer generated images (Plans C, Photos 3) show how in street level views from the
south-west, north-west and north-east, the modern roof form would be so far recessed and
pitched at such an angle, as to have little impact upon these views.

24

Tudalen y pecyn 59




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

134. The additional accommodation in the roofs must also be considered as an important part of

135.

the economic viability of the overall scheme, and it is therefore valuable in order to secure
the future preservation of the listed building. Although these modern roof forms would be
visible in some longer distance street views and from the upper floors of nearby listed
buildings, such as Empire House, I find the design to be acceptable in terms of the neutral
appearance and the natural grey zinc colour, which would blend well with the rest of the
slate roof and facades of the building. On the west side, the roof would complement the
modern design of the new fagade, whilst on the north it would be set back to respect the
main elevation.

Due to its inherent problems of water penetration, the existing roof would have to be
removed and rebuilt to a design that would reflect Seward’s original plans. In the proposed
scheme, the roof of the building would be replaced in a more rational form that would ease
future maintenance problems and ensure that the building would have sound weatherproof
covering that would protect and secure the structure of the building. The new roofs on the
south and east elevations would accurately reflect the original, symmetrical design by
Seward, which was not properly implemented, and the result would be in keeping with what
was intended for the listed building. The new zinc roofs on the other hand are a
contemporary approach to finish the north and west elevations with duplex loft apartments,
but I find these to be acceptable additions that would respect the impressive stone
elevations.

Effect on Conservation Area

136.

137.

It is generally agreed that the improvement of the existing Coal Exchange building would
bring a much needed lift to the character and appearance of the conservation area. The
removal of the disfiguring modern concrete extension on the south frontage and the
reinstatement of a new design for the lower forecourt, with a retail/restaurant frontage, stone
stairs to the entrance terrace and a paved area across the street would give the conservation
arca a new focal heart.

The restoration of the external envelope of the building and the opening up of the Exchange
Hall rooms to the public, the creation of an accessible paved frontage for eating and
drinking and the new piazza area would undoubtedly breathe life into this
commercial/leisure/residential area of Butetown. The proposed mixed uses would
complement the character of the arca and the scheme would restore those elements of the
building that give it an important place in the commercial history of the region. I conclude
therefore that the proposals would preserve the setting of the listed buildings in the vicinity,
whilst preserving and enhancing the character and the appearance of the Mount Stuart
Square Conservation Area.

Conditions

"138.

139.

In addition to the Council’s 10 conditions %P> % [ consider it necessary to attach the 2
further conditions suggested by the Council. These are outlined in paragraphs 103 and 105

above, and require the approval of further details regarding the retention and replacement-of -~ - - -~ -

chimney stacks, and a detailed schedule of all the parts of the building to be retained,
protected and preserved during the demolition phases of the development. A full list of
these suggested conditions is attached below at Annex A to my report.

Cadw claim® that the details required by the Council’s suggested condition No. 3 are
matters that should be considered as part of this application, rather than later. However, I
consider that the details already provided are sufficient to determine the effect of the

25

Tudalen y pecyn 60




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

140.

proposals on the listed building, and the approval of further details required by the condition
would ensure that the work would be carefully controlled and carried out in a sympathetic
manner.

The submission of paving and landscaping details is required already by the planning
permission, and as it falls mainly outside the building, it is not part of the listed building
consent. Details of the service runs through the building would be unnecessary as these
would form part of the new build internally, which would be unlikely to affect the historic
fabric that is retained.

Final Conclusions

141.

142.

143.

The proposed works for the conversion of this listed building to a mixed use scheme are
extensive and go well beyond the minimal intervention advocated in Circular 61/96.
However, it is clear to me in this case that there are inherent problems with this large
building which demand a fairly radical approach to its conversion. The poor structural
condition of much of the building, its rigid cellular layout of offices and the manner in
which the interior has been badly compromised by later alterations, lead me to the
conclusion that its internal reconstruction to form residential apartments around a larger
courtyard would not destroy any notable architectural or historic features.

The original layout of the building has largely been lost, due to recent alteration of the
circulation areas, corridors and partitions, so that the planned layout and interconnectivity
that existed between the trading floor and galleries of the Exchange Hall and the ranks of
offices etc has long gone. The significant interest of the building is in my view limited to
the ground floor public rooms; the foyer, Hall and ante-rooms, and the main historic fagades
of the architectural envelope of the building, including the roof features.

The effect of the proposed demolition and reconstruction of the interior, west wing and roof
has to be weighed against the significant benefits of the proposed conversion, and a
balanced view must be taken of the scheme as a whole. The special architectural and
historic elements, particularly the Exchange Hall, the ante-rooms and the southern entrance
and foyer would all be restored in a way that would recapture the grandeur of its original
form and the building would once again be open to public use. The cleaning, repairing and
restoring of the north, east and south elevations, and the creation of a new public urban
piazza would improve the setting of the building and the vitality of the Mount Stuart Square
Conservation Area. Both the building and the conservation area would remain alive and
prosperous, and the historic building would be preserved as an important resource for future
generations.

Recommendation

144.

I recommend that listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions set out in
Annex A below.

C/ive | Cochrane

INSPECTOR

26

Tudalen y pecyn 61




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

ANNEX A

SCHEDULE OF SUGGESTED CONDITIONS: LISTED BUILDING CONSENT 06/764/C

1. The works hereby authorised shall begin not later than 5 years from the date of this consent.

2. Before any work hereby authorised begins, a schedule and plans showing all parts and
architectural features of the building to be retained and protected during the demolition works
and the measures to be taken to protect those parts/features, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Steps shall be taken to secure the safety
and stability of those parts of the building or architectural features which are to be retained.
Such steps shall, where necessary, include measures to strengthen any wall or vertical surface;
to support any floor, roof or horizontal surface; and to provide protection for the building
against the weather during the progress of the works.

3. No works shall take place until a scheme showing the architectural and construction detailing
of the building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and the development shall not be brought into use until the approved scheme is
implemented including but not exclusively:

¢ Full design details of the contemporary section of the west elevation,
e Full details of the north west and south west replica “corners' to the west elevation,
e A scheme for the main front entrance (south elevation) and entrances to the north and
east elevations,
e Details of the south facing terrace, balcony, stairs, lift and lower ground floor glazed
frontage,

Details of the car park entrance (north elevation),

Details of all new doors, windows and balconies to the residential apartments,

A scheme for the inner residential courtyard,

A fully detailed scheme for the new and replacement roofs and extensions plus

restoration works to original roofs including rainwater goods.

4. Before any work hereby authorised begins, samples of the external finishing materials shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

5. Before any demolition work hereby authorised begins, details of the chimney stacks to be
retained, removed and replaced, and details of the design of the replacement stacks, shall have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

6. Prior to commencement of the works a Phased Programme of the demolition and construction = . .. ¢

works shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The works shall
accord with the approved timetable unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning
authority.

7. The demolition works shall be carried out in accordance with a Method Statement to be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any demolition works
commencing. The Statement shall include for the removal of demolition materials from the

21

Tudalen y pecyn 62




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

10.

1L

12.

site, and storage of those materials to be re-used on site, and the works shall be carried in
accordance with the approved statement.

No demolition shall take place until a contract has been signed, completed and let for the re-
development of the site hereby approved.

The consent relates to the application as amended by the revised plans received on 15th June,
2005 and 22nd June, 2006, and letter received 15th June, 2006, attached to and forming part
of this planning application.

Before any work hereby authorised begins, a detailed scheme of cleaning and restoration
works to the external stonework, windows, lintels, doors, steps and railings shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and the approved scheme
shall be implemented prior to beneficial use of the development.

Before any work hereby authorised begins, a fully detailed scheme including scaled 1:50
drawings of the proposed restoration works for the Exchange Hall and ancillary ground floor
rooms shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and
the approved works shall be implemented in full prior to beneficial use of any part of the site.

Before any work hereby authorised begins, detailed scaled drawings of the proposed internal
redevelopment scheme shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority and the approved works shall be implemented in accordance with the details.

23

Tudalen y pecyn 63




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

INQUIRY APPEARANCES o B
FOR THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY:

Mr N J Hanson BSc DipTP MRTPI - Cardiff County Council

FOR THE APPLICANT:
Mr D Kerfoot - Solicitor, Eversheds, 1 Callaghan Square, Cardiff CF10
5BT
He called:
Mr G Cohen BA BArch RIBA - Design Director, Aukett Fitzroy Robinson, Architects
Mr ] M Blake BA(Hons) - Purcell Miller Tritton, Architects
BArch(Hons) RS RIBA AABC
Mr P Morgan - Chief Executive, Macob Group
FOR CADW:
Mr P Ashby - Principal Conservation Architect, Cadw
INTERESTED PERSONS:
Mr S Evans - Architect, Mount Stuart Square & Pierhead
Conservation Group
INQUIRY DOCUMENTS
1 List of persons present at the inquiry
2. Letter of notification and addresses
3 Design Statement
4  Structural Appraisal Volumes 1 and 2 by Burroughs Consulting Engineers + CD
5 Listed Architectural Fabric Appraisal — Jeremy Blake
6  Proof of Evidence and Summary of Mr N J Hanson
7 Planning Permission 06/00760/C of 23/03/07 (finally approved 19/07/06 on submission of ~
S106 Agreement)
8 Mr Hanson’s Appendices A1-23 — Background Documents
9  Mr Hanson’s Appendices B24-30 — Planning Policy & Strategic Framework

10 Mr Hanson’s Appendices C31-62 — Planning History

29

Tudalen y pecyn 64




Report APP/Z6815/X/06/514904

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

Mr Hanson’s Appendices D63-70 — Development Proposal Consultations

Mr Hanson’s Appendices E71-72 — Council’s Case

Proof of Evidence of Mr G Cohen

Appendices 1-3 to Mr Cohen’s Evidence

Mr Blake’s Proof of Evidence

Appendices to Mr Blake’s Evidence

Proof of Evidence of Mr Morgan, including Appendices 1 & 2 (Cost Analysis)
Applicants’ Bundle of Appendices TBA1-TBA19 and TBA JMB

Statement by Mr S Evans on behalf of the Central Area/Mount Stuart Square & Pierhead
Conservation Group.

Council’s suggested list of conditions for Listed Building Consent 06/764/C

PLANS

Plan A Existing Floor Plans, roof general arrangement and Elevations (10465-PL-03-01 to

16), size Al, scale 1:200.

Plan B Proposed floor Plans, Site Plan, Roof Plan and Elevations at A1, scale 1:200

10465-P1-00-08 Basement Level
10465-P1-00-09A Lower Ground Level
10465-P1-00-10A Ground Level
10465-P1-00-11A Level 1
10465-P1-00-12A Level 2
10465-P1-00-12A/A Upper Level 2
10465-P1-00-13A Level 3
10465-P1-00-14A Level 4
10465-P1-00-15A Level 5
10465-P1-00-16A Roof Level

Plan C North, South, East and West Perspective Drawings (10465-P1.-03-10B, 20B, 30B &

40B) and Aerial view of Building at Al.

Plan D A3 Set of Plans and Elevations (10465-PL-00-09A to 16A), including Roof

Comparison Plan.

Plan E Proposed Sections

PHOTOGRAPHS

Photo 1 Existing Views of Building and Exchange Hall
Photo 2 Computer Generated Image (CGI) of Refurbished Exchange Hall

Photo 3 CGIs of West Elevation and South Elevation

30

‘Tudalen y pecyn 65




Welsh Assembly Government
Leaflet HC(LBCA) Cathays Park
‘ Cardiff
CF10 3NQ

RIGHT OF APPEAL TO THE HIGH COURT

1. The decision of the Welsh Ministers on any of the appeals or objections listed in the appendix to this
leaflet may be challenged in the High Court in accordance with the provisions of either Section 63 or Section
65 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Procedures
Section 63

2(i). Any challenge against an order or a decision covered by this Section must be made within 6 weeks
from the date on which the order is confirmed or takes effect or the date of the decision. As that period is
specifically stated in the Act it cannot be extended by the Welsh Ministers or the Courts. Consequently, any
decision or action not challenged within that period is, as far as the 1990 Act is concerned, unimpeachable.

2(ii). A challenge may be brought under this Section only on the grounds that

(a) the action was not within the powers of the 1990 Act (this includes, for instance, failure to take
into account material considerations); or

(b) there has been a failure to comply with any of the relevant requirements ( see paragraph 4
below ).

Section 65

3(i). The procedures for challenging decisions covered by this Section are governed by rules of Court.
These, in turn, require that the leave of the High Court be obtained in order to challenge any of the decisions
covered by the Section. Notice of application for leave to appeal has to be submitted within 28 days of the
decision challenged or good reason has to be shown to the Court why the notice was not lodged within that
period. If leave to appeal is granted Notice of Motion has to be lodged and served within 7 days of the
decision to grant leave.

3(ii). A challenge under this Section may be made only on a point of law.
Relevant requirements
4. The "relevant requirements" referred to in paragraph 2 above are the requirements of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 or the Tribunals and Inquiries Act 1992 (or any other
enactment replaced thereby) and the requirements of any order, regulation or rules made under those-Acts.. ... .+
These include
(i) The Town and Country Planning (Inquiries Procedure) Rules 1992 [SI 1992 No 2038},
(i) The Town and Country Planning (Enforcement)(inquiries Procedure) Rules 1992 [SI 1992 No 1903];

(iiiy The Town and Country Planning (Enforcement Notices and Appeals) Reguiations 1991 [SI 1991 No
2804,

(iv) The Town and Country Planning (Enforcement Notices and Appeals)(Amendment) Regulations 1992
[S1 1992 No 1904];

(v) Planning (Listed Buildings and ComsBRM X BESHLERations 1990 (S1 1990 No. 1519)

Reviewed June 2007




Appendix to Leaflet HC(LBCA)

Appeals and decisions covered by Section 63 of the 1090 Act

(a) Applications for listed building or conservation area consent referred to the Welish Ministers
for determination (Section 12 of the Act) (where a local planning authority is the applicant
Section 12 is applied by Regulation 13 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Regulations 1990); '

(b) Decisions on appeal in respect of applications for listed building or conservation consent
(Section 20 of the Act);

(c) Revocation and modification orders made by local planning authorities in respect of listed
building or conservation area consents (Section 23 of the Act);

(d) Revocation and modification orders made by the Welsh Ministers in respect of listed building
or conservation area consents (Section 26 of the Act);

(e) Any decision to confirm or not confirm a listed building or conservation area purchase notice
(Section 35 of the Act);

(f) Decision to grantlisted building or conservation area consent or to discharge conditions or
limitations or impose others on appeals against listed building or conservation area
enforcement notices (Section 41(6)(a) and (b) of the Act);

NOTE: The provisions relating to conservation areas are applied by Section 74(3) of the Act.

Appeals covered by Section 65 of the 1990 Act

(a) Any decision of the Welsh Ministers on an appeal against a fisted building or conservation
area enforcement notice except that relating to the grant of listed building or conservation
area consent or the discharge or imposition of conditions or limitations.

Tudalen y pecyn 67

Reviewed June 2007




Leaflet H _Welsh Assembly Government
S , Cathays Park
Cardiff
CF10 3NQ

RIGHT TO INSPECT DOCUMENTS

Under the provisions of the Inquiries Procedure Rules any person entitled to be notified
of the decision given in the accompanying letter and who has received a copy of the
Inspector's report may apply to the Welsh Ministers within 6 weeks of the decision for
an opportunity of inspecting any documents appended to the Inspector's report.

Any application under these provisions should be sent to Planning Division of the Welsh
Assembly Government at the above address, quoting the Welsh Ministers’ reference
number shown on the decision letter and stating the date and time (in normal office
hours) when it is proposed to make the inspection. At least 3 days notice should be
given.

Reviewed June 2007

Tudalen y pecyn 68




Eitem 3.8

P-04-436 : Gwariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i baratoi adroddiad ar Wariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru.

Mae gan yr Alban adroddiad Government Expenditure and Revenue Scotland.
Ei nod yw gwella dealltwriaeth y cyhoedd o faterion ariannol drwy
ddadansoddi ystadegau ariannol swyddogol Llywodraeth y DU a’r Alban yn
fanwl. Mae’n bryd i Lywodraeth Cymru gyhoeddi adroddiad tebyg fel y gallwn
weld gwir sefyllfa ariannol Cymru.

Prif ddeisebydd: Stuart Evans
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyligor: 15 lonawr 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 27

Tudalen y pecyn 69



= f’
Jane Hutt AC / AM “\/ (ﬁ

Y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Ty A
Minister for Finance and Leader of the House . PM)

Llywodraeth Cymru

Welsh Government
Eich cyf/Your ref: P-04-436
Ein cyf/Our ref: SF/JH/0532/13

William Powell AM

Chair

Petitions Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA wg

~’ March 2014
@QN M&/\\M (

Petitions Committee: analysis of Welsh and UK Government financial statistics

Thank you for your letter of 19 December, in relation to my response on this subject
in October.

While | addressed the revenue aspects of the petition in my previous letters, | am
happy to provide further clarification. Specifically, in my October letter, | provided a
link to information on Welsh revenues that was expected to be published imminently.
Since | wrote, the information has been published and is available at:

hitps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/disagaregation-of-hmrc-tax-receipts

In my previous correspondence | have also provided links to other statistical
information, including expenditure data for Wales. | therefore believe | have provided
a full response to all the issues raised by the petition.

R@Qk C\YH“ZQ/
™

Jane Hutt AC/ AM
Y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Ty
Minister for Finance and Leader of the House

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@wales. gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled

paper Tudalen y pecyn 70



Useful statistical sources and publications

Public Expenditure Statistical Analyses, published by the UK Government:
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/hm-treasury/series/public-expenditure-
statistical-analyses-pesa

Welsh Government's budget documentation:
http://wales.gov.uk/funding/budget/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/funding/budget/?lang=cy

Holtham Commission reports:
http://wales.gov.uk/funding/financereform/report/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/funding/financereform/report/?lang=cy

Silk Commission's Part 1 report:
http://commissionondevolutioninwales.independent.gov.uk/
http://commissionondevolutioninwales.independent.gov.uk/cy/

Tudalen y pecyn 71



P-04-436 Government Expenditure and Revenue Wales report -
Correspondence from the Petitioner to the Clerking Team, 22.05.14

All this shows is tax receipts. It does not show the revenue generated in Wales that

is credited to England via a company having its head quarters in England.

It does not put a value on any of the natural resources we have stolen from Wales
with no benefit to our people and it doesn't factor in goods from Wales exported

from English ports. Or any of the other myriad of ways of 'cooking the books'.

All | am asking is for the Finance Minister to actually produce a detailed report, like
they do in Scotland with their GERS report. That way we can see how well or how

badly Wales is being run by the Welsh Government and the British Government.
Thank you

Stuart Evans

Tudalen y pecyn 72



Eitem 3.9

P-04-437 : Gwrthwynebu cofrestru gorfodol ar gyfer plant sy’n
derbyn addysg yn y cartref

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i roi’r gorau i gynlluniau ar
gyfer cyflwyno cofrestr orfodol ar gyfer plant sy’n derbyn addysg yn y cartref
fel rhan o Fil Addysg (Cymru) drafft. Mae’r gyfraith yn nodi mai rhieni, nid y
wladwriaeth, sy’n gyfrifol am addysg eu plant, sy’n golygu bod cofrestr o’r
fath yn amhriodol ac yn ddiangen.

Prif ddeisebydd: Wendy Charles-Warner
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 20 Tachwedd 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 1614

Tudalen y pecyn 73



Eitem 3.10

P-04-517 Atal Llywodraeth Cymru rhag cyflwyno system i fonitro

plant sy’n dewis cael eu haddysgu gartref o dan wedd diogelu

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Mae adolygiadau achos gwirioneddol wedi dangos mai awdurdodau, nid
dewis addysgu plant gartref, sydd wedi gwneud cam a phlant. Ymrwymodd y
llywodraeth i gyflawni hawliau’r plentyn yn 2004, a nododd bryd hynny y
bydd yn ymgynghori a phlant cyn newid pethau sy’n effeithio ar blant. Nid
yw’r llywodraeth yn ymgynghori a’n plant, sydd eisoes wedi dangos mewn
ymgynghoriad gwahanol y llynedd eu bod yn gwrthwynebu system fonitro.
Rydym ni, felly, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog
Llywodraeth Cymru i atal cyflwyno system i fonitro plant sy’n dewis cael eu
haddysgu gartref o dan wedd diogelu.

Prif ddeisebydd: New Foundations Home Education

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 26 Tachwedd 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 864

Tudalen y pecyn 74



\/ (f
R
Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

DATGANIAD YSGRIFENEDIG
GAN
LYWODRAETH CYMRU

Addysg Ddewisol yn y Cartref — Dadansoddiad o ymatebion i
ymgynghoriad Llywodraeth Cymru ar gynigion i gyflwyno cynllun
cofrestru a monitro gorfodol i'r rhai sy’n dewis addysgu eu plant
yn y cartref

TEITL

DYDDIAD 6 Mai 2014

GAN Huw Lewis, Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau

Ar 21 Rhagfyr 2012 fe wnaeth fy rhagflaenydd ddatgan mewn datganiad ysgrifenediqg, yn
dilyn ymgynghoriad gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar gynigion deddfwriaethol i gyflwyno cynllun
cofrestru a monitro gorfodol i’r rhai sy’n dewis addysgu eu plant yn y cartref, na fyddai
Llywodraeth Cymru yn deddfu yn rhan o’r Bil Addysg (Cymru). Nododd yn ei ddatganiad y
byddai’'n rhoi diweddariad maes o law. Rwyf felly yn rhoi i chi nawr yr wybodaeth
ddiweddaraf am ganlyniad yr ymgynghoriad a fy mwriadau wrth fynd yn ein blaen.

Amlygodd yr ymgynghoriad wahaniaeth barn clir. Roedd y mwyafrif o’r rhieni oedd yn
addysgu yn y cartref, plant a phobl ifanc oedd yn derbyn addysg yn y cartref a chyrff oedd
yn cynrychioli teuluoedd sy’n addysgu yn y cartref yn gwrthwynebu cyflwyno unrhyw fath o
ddeddfwriaeth yn gryf. Fodd bynnag roedd y mwyafrif o awdurdodau lleol a chyrff &
chyfrifoldeb am blant o’r farn fod deddfwriaeth yn gwbl hanfodol i sicrhau bod plant sy’n
derbyn addysg yn y cartref yn cael addysg addas.

Ar 0l ystyried yn ofalus yr ymatebion i'r ymgynghoriad oddi wrth yr holl randdeiliaid rwyf
wedi penderfynu na fydd Llywodraeth Cymru'n deddfu ar gyflwyno cynllun cofrestru a
monitro gorfodol yn ystod tymor cyfredol y Cynulliad. Rwyf wedi gofyn i fy swyddogion, fodd
bynnag, ddatblygu canllawiau anstatudol ar addysgu yn y cartref erbyn mis Mai 2015 i
gynorthwyo awdurdodau lleol i gefnogi teuluoedd sy’n addysgu yn y cartref a helpu i greu
trefn fwy cyson i awdurdodau lleol ymgysylltu 8'u cymunedau addysgu yn y cartref. Caiff y
canllawiau eu datblygu mewn ymgynghoriad ag Awdurdodau Lleol a’r gymuned addysg
ddewisol yn y cartref er mwyn rhoi cyfle iddynt gydweithio i adeiladu consensws ac
ymddiriedaeth. Bydd y canllawiau’n cynorthwyo Awdurdodau Lleol i ddatblygu lefel o
wybodaeth ac arbenigedd ar addysg yn y cartref a amlygwyd fel maes i’'w ddatblygu
ymhellach yn ystod yr ymgynghoriad.

Roedd yr ymgynghoriad yn pwysleisio bod arferion da ac ymgysylltu da yn bodoli rhwng rhai
Awdurdodau Lleol a’r gymuned addysgu yn y cartref. Byddwn yn tynnu ar yr arferion da hyn

wrth ddatblygu’r canllawiau.
Yo Tudalen y pecyn 75


http://wales.gov.uk/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2012/electivehomeeducation/;jsessionid=35697229AB2D99218B25054819332BA1?skip=1&lang=cy

Bydd datblygu canllawiau anstatudol yn ein galluogi ni i roi cynnig ar wahanol ddulliau a dod
i farn ynglyn & pha un fydd yn cyflawni’r canlyniadau dysgu gorau i ddysgwyr sy’n derbyn
addysg yn y cartref.

Heddiw rwyf i wedi cyhoeddi dadansoddiad o’r ymatebion i'r ymgynghoriad ac mae hwn i'w
weld ar wefan Llywodraeth Cymru:

http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/education/reqgisteringandmonitoring/?skip=1&lang=cy

Tudalen y pecyn 76


http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/education/registeringandmonitoring/?skip=1&lang=cy

Eitem 3.11

P-04-448 : Gwella gwasanaethau iechyd rhywiol yng ngorllewin y
Fro

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i gynyddu’r cyllid i Fwrdd lechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro. Dylid defnyddio’r
cyllid ychwanegol hwn i wella gwasanaethau iechyd rhywiol yng ngorllewin y
Fro.

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol

Ar hyn o bryd, cynhelir dim ond un clinig yr wythnos bob amser cinio ar
ddydd Gwener yn Llanilltud Fawr. Mae’r clinig hwn yn gwasanaethu pawb yng
ngorllewin y Fro. Mae’n darparu gwasanaethau cyngor iechyd rhywiol a
chynllunio teulu. Nid yw’r gwasanaeth hwn yn ddigonol i ateb gofynion yr
ardal ddaearyddol fawr hon. Cynhelir tri chlinig yr wythnos yn nhref y Barri.
Helpwch ni i wella iechyd rhywiol nifer o bobl ifanc a phobl agored i niwed
nad ydynt yn gallu teithio 10 milltir neu fwy yn aml i glinig lleol. Mae’r
clinigau hyn yn cynnig gwybodaeth/addysg/cefnogaeth/triniaeth feddygol
hanfodol y mae ar bobl ifanc eu hangen. Gall gwella gwasanaethau iechyd
rhywiol helpu i ddangos y ffordd i’r grwpiau mwyaf agored i niwed yn ein
cymdeithas, i’'w cefnogi ac i ofalu amdanynt. Helpwch ni i wneud
gwahaniaeth. Er bod cyfraddau beichiogrwydd ymysg y glasoed yn gostwng,
mae cyfraddau erthylu yn codi (fel y dyfynnwyd gan Helen Rogers,
Cyfarwyddwr Coleg Brenhinol y Bydwragedd, ffynhonnell BBC Wales
29/03/12). Yn ei hymateb i’r adroddiad hwn, addawodd Llywodraeth Cymru
y byddai’n cynyddu’r cyllid drwy lechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru i wella mynediad i
ganolfannau iechyd rhywiol integredig (BBC Wales 29/03/12). Daw’r bobl
ifanc hyn sy’n agored i niwed yn aml o deuluoedd difreintiedig, nad ydynt yn
cael y gofal sydd ei angen arnynt. Pe bai’r bobl ifanc hyn yn byw yn y Barri,
byddent yn cael gwasanaeth llawer gwell. Caiff ardal wledig y Fro ei diystyru
fel ardal "gyfoethog", ond mae enghreifftiau o amddifadedd economaidd-
gymdeithasol i’'w cael yn yr ardal. Mae angen rhagor o glinigau. Mae Cymru
am gael "Gwasanaeth lechyd o’r Safon Uchaf" ar gyfer y dyfodol. Y bobl ifanc
hyn yw ein dyfodol. Gall beichiogrwydd/erthyliadau ymysg y glasoed gael

Tudalen y pecyn 77



effaith niweidiol eang ar bobl ifanc yng Nghymru. Gellir atal clefydau a
drosglwyddir yn rhywiol os rhoddir y wybodaeth gywir i bobl.

Prif ddeisebydd: Rebecca Lowrie
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 29 lonawr 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 16

Tudalen y pecyn 78



Eitem 3.12

P-04-449 : Ysbyty Tywysoges Cymru Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr -
Achub ein Gwasanaethau - Atal yr Israddio!

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Ddydd Mercher 26 Medi 2012, cyhoeddodd Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Abertawe Bro
Morgannwg newidiadau a allai gael effaith radical ar sut mae ein
gwasanaethau ysbyty yn cael eu darparu ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Er nad
oes unrhyw beth yn bendant, mae’n debygol, os caiff y newidiadau eu rhoi ar
waith, o arwain at golli rhai agweddau ar ofal pediatrig, obstetreg, newydd-
anedig a damweiniau ac achosion brys. Yn syml, os oes arnoch angen gofal
dwys, os oes gennych blentyn sal neu os ydych yn debygol o gael
beichiogrwydd a allai fod yn gymhleth, bydd raid i chi deithio i Gaerdydd,
Abertawe neu un o’r Safleoedd Gwasanaethau Arbenigol eraill yn Ne Cymru.
Mae poblogaeth Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn tyfu o hyd; felly, rydym angen mwy,
nid llai, o wasanaethau lleol. Rydym yn condemnio cynlluniau Bwrdd lechyd
Lleol Abertawe Bro Morgannwg yn chwyrn, ac yn mynnu bod Llywodraeth
Cymru yn gwario mwy o’i chyllid ar gynnal y gwasanaethau lleol hanfodol
hyn yn hytrach na pheryglu bywydau’r cleifion sy’n fwyaf agored i niwed.
Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i
annog Llywodraeth Cymru i ddiogelu gwasanaethau yn Ysbyty Tywysoges
Cymru Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a sicrhau bod yr ysbyty yn cadw’r holl

wasanaethau hanfodol hyn heb orfod israddio.
Prif ddeisebydd: lan Matthew Spiller
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 29 lonawr 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 4,218. Casglwyd deiseb gysylltiedig 154 o lofnodion.

Tudalen y pecyn 79



P-04-449 Bridgend Princess Of Wales — Save Our Services - Stop the
Downgrade! - Correspondence from the petitioner to the Committee,
20.05.14.

Hello Kayleigh
Many thanks for your response.

Thankfully the South Wales Plan included Princess of Wales Hospital as one of the
centres for A&E and services that were under threat.

Unless things change, there is no need for this petition to be heard at this time as it
is no longer relevant.

Best regards

lan spiller

Tudalen y pecyn 80



Eitem 3.13

P-04-456: Dementia - Gallai hyn ddigwydd i chi
Geiriad y ddeiseb:
Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i

annog Llywodraeth Cymru:

i. | roi terfyn ar wahaniaethu yn erbyn dioddefwyr dementia yng Nghymru
sydn gwneud cais am Arian Gofal Parhaus y GIG, drwy ganiatau iOr categori
gwybyddiaeth o angen (a elwir yn ObarthO) godi i lefel ODifrifold yny
fersiwn Gymraeg odr Offeryn Gwneud Penderfyniadau. Byddai hyn yn ei

gwneud yn gydnaws adr fersiwn Saesneg; a

ii. Bod Byrddau lechyd Lleol uniongyrchol yn gweithreduOr Fframwaith
Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Arian Gofal Parhaus y GIG, yn gywir, o ran cymhwysedd
cleifion a heb ystyried cyfyngiadau cyllidebol.

Prif ddeisebydd: Helen Jones
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Chwefror 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 1413

Tudalen y pecyn 81



P-04-456 Dementia - This Could Happen to you - Correspondence from the
Petitioner to the Committee, 12.05.14

Hi Kayleigh,

The meeting with Lynda Chandler was as | thought it would be, a waste of her
valuable time and a patronizing waste of my time. Lynda Chandler is a very
pleasant woman who was just doing her job but nothing was achieved and | felt that
she was there simply because the health department had to be seen to be doing the
right thing following having ignored the fact that they had written to the petitions
committee inviting me as petitioner to become a stakeholder and not bothering to
follow through. | came away feeling warmly encouraged and praised which

presumably was the object of the exercise. Sorry if that sounds cynical.

If the Welsh Assembly Government Health Department and their special advisers
don't listen to Professors of Law and Dementia Experts who have been battling away
for years in an attempt to address the multitude of unjust ineligibility decisions that
have been wrongly made by abuses to the National Framework and the incorrect
withholding of Continuing Healthcare Funding, then what hope have | as a mere

member of the public.

I will say this though, as long as there is breath in my body | will continue to stick

pins in those who blatantly and pompously bend the rules for financial reasons.

As | see it the only good thing to come out of the hour or so | spent with Mrs.
Chandler was the suggestion about forming a Dementia Task Force, but | would
suggest that it should be made up of people who have been in the unfortunate
position of being badly treated by the system as it stands, and not NHS cronies, so
that in addition to the charities who support people who find themselves in a
position of coming up against (.....and | use this term from experience) the hugely
complex system as it stands, there is another option, that of choosing to be
supported by those who managed to get a handle on the National Framework and
jargonlike terminology like Multi Disciplinary Team Assessments and Decision
Support Tools (the tick box administration). Often this data is not properly
understood or correctly implemented/completed by the very people who are using
them on a day to day basis, which is really scary, and of course there are those who
are advised how to complete forms in a way that will ensure their continued

employment, and YES | did say that!

Tudalen y pecyn 82



Kind regards,

Helen

Tudalen y pecyn 83



P-04-456 Dementia - This Could Happen to you - Correspondence from the
Petitioner to the Committee, 20.05.14

Hi Kayleigh,
Thanks for your email.

The relevance of the documentation I've sent on to you surrounding my petition,
and of course the time factors involved in dealing with each individual petition data
suggests to me that wading through all of the emails | have sent to you recently
would be best left to you and your colleagues discretion as to what you feel are the

prurient points to bring to the attention of the committee.

The real question is, do the politicians want to tackle the problem of the lack of
consistency and Health Boards in Wales evading the decisions of the Courts in
Coughlan, Pointon etc., by the use of Guidance that is difficult to challenge by way
of judicial review in the Courts. Without the political will to tackle the problem the
Health Boards the CCGs can continue to ration Continuing Health Care funding by
stealth. Possibly with an ageing population and an increasing, press led and social
media awareness of dementia, the electorate will start taking a great deal more
interest in this rather obscure and complex area of health care law. Unfortunately
in the meantime the culture which currently allows personnel to falsify records (see
BBC NEWS bulletin from last week concerning the arrest of several nurses the the
Bridgend area for this) will hardly be discouraged from manipulating the Continuing
Health Care assessment system if the goal of achieving costs savings can be
achieved with no risk of sanctions and little prospect of the families challenging
decisions which rely on the 'professional judgement' of Continuing Health Care
assessors. From my experience the manager of the local Spar would have been

better placed to judge my Mother's eligibility.

Ideally | would like the petitions committee to see all of the emails. | do not want
this issue to get kicked into the long grass. |, as well as others are unimpressed
with what has been the changing of a few words to satisfy what they see as the
dissatisfied aggressor. | recognize that some positive changes have been made
and | hope that some of them are because of my petition. The health department
appear to agree that the 'cognition' domain should not have had the 'severe' tick
box removed which was instigated by Lesley Griffiths the former Health secretary,

after public consultation. This does bring it back in line with the English version of

Tudalen y pecyn 84



the Decision Support Tool, on the one category. This does not mean that they have
made it any easier for anyone to be considered eligible for this funding, in fact they
have further messed with the decision support tool so that other areas have been
negatively impacted upon! Rather than a meaningless consultative process
whereupon the charitable organizations etc., who were consulted were listened to,
perhaps these opinions should not have been just considered and then largely

ignored, but acted upon honestly and with integrity?
Thanks Kayleigh and
Kind regards,

Helen

Tudalen y pecyn 85



P-04-456 Dementia - This Could Happen to you - Email exchange between
Tony Alexander, Member of the Alzheimer's Society's Volunteer CHC Support
Group and Lynda Chandler, Welsh Government Official, 09.05.14

Dear Lynda

My sincere apologies for being unable to attend the meeting on Friday with Helen. |
have volunteered as an “engineer” with REMAP which carries out bespoke alterations
for appliances for handicapped people. | have an appointment at the home a
handicapped lady and the occupational therapist on Friday.

| am a retired solicitor and a member of the Alzheimer's Society's Volunteer CHC
Support Group which advises people who have been refused CHC. Only people who
have successfully appealed a refusal are considered for the Group and in my case it
was my father in law who had been refused and the decision reversed at the Local
Appeal Panel.

| have been a member of the Group for two years and dealt with about 94 cases of
which only 4 or 5 have been Welsh. Those have been similar to the English cases in
that:-

(@) Assessments which the Framework require to be comprehensive, detailed
and holistic are rarely, if ever, anything of the kind. Typically the assessments rely
on Care Home notes (the majority of the cases have patients in care homes, unlike
Helen's case) and those notes are at best superficial, as to be fair to the carers, they
simply do not have the time to make detailed notes; frequently however, they are
inaccurate and omit essential details as the carers are so used to such things as
challenging behaviour so that unless it is exceptional, it is not mentioned. The
extent to which the opinions of psychiatrists and GP s are sought or taken into
account varies. Frequently it is a phone call and no written report is obtained. As far
as | am aware (it was certainly the case in my father in law's case) the GP s know of
the existence of a system for assessing for CHC but do not know the details.

(b) Although the Framework requires the family to be fully informed of the
process so that they can play a meaningful role in the assessment process, this has
not happened in any of the cases that | have dealt with. Sometimes they are
provided with an explanatory leaflet, but no one has been handed the Framework or
the DST and had those documents explained to them. The whole process is
exceedingly complicated and no leaflet could do it justice. The majority of the
families that | speak to say that they are daunted by the system and do not
understand how it is supposed to operate.

Tudalen y pecyn 86



(c) The assessors have a superficial knowledge of the Framework/DST, but are
adept at interpreting the descriptors for the 12 domains in a prescriptive manner
notwithstanding the guidance given in the Framework to the contrary.

The Welsh Audit Office report on CHC published in June 2013 sets out the many
shortcomings in its implementation. In my opinion it did not pay sufficient attention
to the problem of quality control of decision making and ensuring uniformity. A
number of respected commentators have criticised the system including Luke
Clements (Professor of Law at Cardiff University), the Law Society, the RCN, and the
Alzheimer's Society. | believe that the problem of uniformity/consistency of decision
making is not being addressed and will not be resolved until there is publication of
anonymised case studies. If the Welsh Government adopt the whole of the English
Framework (2012 edition) this will further hamper any drive towards consistency.
Para 90 of the 2012 English Framework with superb civil service double speak
states :-

“CCGs should be aware of cases that have indicated circumstances in which
eligibility for NHS continuing healthcare should have been determined, and where
such an outcome would be expected if the same facts were considered in an
assessment for NHS continuing healthcare under the National Framework (e.g.
Coughlan or those cases in the Health Service Ombudsman’s report on NHS funding
for the long-term care of older and disabled people). However, they should be wary
of trying to draw generalisations about eligibility for NHS continuing healthcare
from the limited information they may have about those cases. There is no
substitute for a careful and detailed assessment of the needs of the individual
whose eligibility is in question.”

In other words CCGs can ignore Coughlan etc but at the same time should be aware
of those decisions. Both the Westminster Government and the English Ombudsman
found that using cases decided by the Ombudsman as comparators was useful. In
1994, Virginia Bottomley, then Health Secretary, referred to the care needs of the
patient involved in the Leeds case (Ombudsman Report Case No E.62/93-94,
January 1994) as a benchmark for funding, and the Ombudsman also compared the
care needs of Pamela Coughlan in the Wigan and Bolton Case (E420/00-01 2002-
03). However as can be seen from Para 90 of the English Framework, the Dof H are
steering assessors away from using comparators.

It is my submission that in the absence of case studies/comparators, it is
impossible to tell if assessments across the Boards in Wales and CCGs in England
are consistent, in fact | would argue that in the absence of case studies it would be
miraculous if they were.

Tudalen y pecyn 87



| compare the situation to various legal principles. For example, the law of
negligence. That has been developed over several centuries, but the modern law is
based on the 1932 case of Donoghue v Stevenson which laid down four criteria
which needed to be applied for a claimant to succeed. Those criteria have been
analysed, dissected and subjected to minute scrutiny by the Courts ever since and
everyone has access to those decisions to see how the criteria are applied in various
circumstances and how the principles of the decision have been developed over the
82 years since 1932. The availability of this body of case law means that as far as
humanly possible a court in Newcastle faced with the same facts as a court with a
case in Wrexham or Swansea will arrive at the same conclusion. However in the case
of CHC no one knows if the assessments are consistent. The fact that the number of
cases being awarded CHC is declining when the numbers diagnosed with dementia
are increasing would suggest that if there is any consistency it is as a result of the
bar being unlawfully raised as a means of cost saving. Furthermore, it is difficult to
challenge decisions and have them tested forensically in Court because of the
decision in the case of Provincial Pictue Houses Ltd v Wednesbury Corporation,
which means in practice that unless the decision to refuse CHC is
perverse/manifestly wrong, then the Courts will not interfere with the decision.

Once again my sincere apologies for not being able to attend the meeting. If you
feel that it would be of any benefit to discuss the matter further, please let me
know.

Regards

Tony Alexander

Dear Tony

Many thanks for taking the time to compile this e-mail. I’'m sorry that we didn’t get
to meet, but your comments are informative and helpful; | completely understand
the need to prioritise your appointment.

Many thanks to Helen also, for taking the time to meet with me this morning. It is
impossible not to be deeply moved by your story and the experiences of others that

you shared with me.

| sincerely hope that the amendments to the Framework | described will go some
way to improving the experience of carers in navigating the CHC process. As we

Tudalen y pecyn 88



discussed, and as Tony alludes to below, issuing guidance will only take us so far
and Welsh Government is committed to working with the NHS to monitor
compliance with the Framework going forward and to address the challenges. This
is a longer-term improvement programme rather than a one-off event.

Perhaps it would also be helpful to refer to the specific points you detail below. We
have received similar representations from other parties and have sought to
address them as follows:

The revised Framework requires that a care co-ordinator is nominated and is
responsible for ensuring that the assessment contains all the evidence needed for
the MDT to make an informed and rational decision on CHC eligibility. When we
publish the Framework at the end of June we will also provide an online Complex
Care Information and Support Service, which will be publicly accessible. This will
include templates for the submission of specialist clinical opinion. | must admit that
we haven’t as yet considered specific GP training, but | will take this suggestion
back to our training group.

We hope that the role of the Care Co-ordinator (which is explained in detail in the
Framework) will improve the experience for families and carers. We have developed
three information leaflets: ‘Public Information Leaflet on CHC’, ‘Preparing you for a
CHC Eligibility Meeting’ and ‘What receiving CHC services means for you’. These
have been developed with help from the Older People’s Commissioner and Age
Cymru, and have been tested with over 50’s forums - so hopefully will help a little.
They inform carers about what information, support and written feedback they
should expect. The leaflets, Framework and DST will be publicly available on our
website and linked from others. We have also required that families/carers are
routinely offered access to advocacy services.

Helen and I discussed the cynicism with which some eligibility decisions appear to
be made, and to which you allude in your e-mail. The revised Framework clearly
separates the eligibility decision from financial considerations and stresses the
importance of professional integrity and judgement (as opposed to rigidly ‘ticking
the boxes’) in the assessment process. This will be re-emphasised in the training
programme. Monitoring will include peer review and annual audit. We do also need
to consider how we can best capture the experiences of carers, such as those you
and Helen have described. Your suggestions would be very welcome.

Ensuring consistency of decision making is, as you rightly point out, an ongoing

challenge. A number of mechanisms are proposed in the revised CHC Framework
and in the Performance Management Framework. These include peer review and an

Tudalen y pecyn 89



annual audit of a sample of cases. The issue of using case studies continues to be
debated. As you recognise, there is some sense of caution though we are working
with the Ombudsman in the first instance, to hopefully develop a ‘Lessons Learnt’
section in our online resource.

Helen and | also discussed the importance of values-based training and earlier
education e.g. in schools. The importance of wider publicity regarding CHC was
acknowledged. Publicity regarding the cut-off date for retrospective claims has
been distributed to voluntary sector organisations and GP surgeries etc; there is no
reason why we can’t repeat the exercise with the general Public Information leaflets.

We are currently amending the draft Framework in response to the feedback
received through the consultation exercise. This will then be submitted to the
Minister with a briefing which will highlight any stakeholder views that remain
unresolved. Whilst | believe we have addressed many of the concerns raised with
regard to dementia, we will acknowledge that the issue of the potential removal of
CHC eligibility as the disease progresses may not be resolved to everyone’s
satisfaction. We have however included some flexibility with regard to progressive
disease where the assessors believe that the plateau may be short-term and/or
require more frequent review.

| will also raise Helen’s suggestion of a Dementia Task Group to examine how we
can set the standard for a straightforward system for people with dementia and
CHC.

| hope this response is helpful, though we do not underestimate the joint effort
required to ensure that words and translated into action. | hope that you will both
feel able to come back to me with any feedback you may have, or if you would like
an update, at any time.

Kind regards

Lynda

Tudalen y pecyn 90



Eitem 3.14

P-04-502 Canolfan Lles ar gyfer Cymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol i
annog Llywodraeth Cymru i sefydlu Canolfan Lles newydd ar gyfer Cymru a
fyddai’n rhoi lles unigolion a chymunedau(1) wrth wraidd gwleidyddiaeth
Cymru, a byddai ei harian craidd yn dod oddi wrth y llywodraeth.

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol:

Er ein bod yn sylweddoli bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cymryd camau mawr
ymlaen o ran polisi lles, dengys yr ystadegau diweddaraf gan Rwydwaith
lechyd Meddw! Cymru Gyfan bod iechyd meddwl gwael, er enghraifft, yn
costio £7.2 biliwn y flwyddyn(2) i economi Cymru a bod sgoriau lles
goddrychol ardaloedd diwydiannol de ddwyrain Cymru ymhlith y sgoriau isaf
yn y Deyrnas Unedig.(3)

Rydym ni o’r farn bod angen datrys y sefyllfa hon.

Byddai Canolfan Lles i Gymru yn darparu datrysiadau polisi sy’n seiliedig ar
dystiolaeth i broblem lefelau lles yng Nghymru sydd, ar gyfartaledd, yn is
na’r lefel gyfartaledd ar gyfer y DU. Byddai’n defnyddio arbenigedd
amrywiaeth eang o bartneriaid ar draws y sectorau; gan gynnwys y bobl
hynny sydd ag arbenigedd ym maes llunio polisi a hanes blaenorol o
ymgysylltiad gwleidyddol effeithiol; unigolion sydd a phrofiad o ddarparu
cynlluniau lles sylfaenol, er enghraifft cynrychiolwyr o’r sector gwirfoddol;
pobl sydd a chefndir ym maes ymchwil gweithredu; yn ogystal ag

academyddion a rhwydweithiau academaidd.

Byddai Canolfan Lles i Gymru yn cael ei hysbrydoli gan sefydliadau polisi
mawreddog fel y Ganolfan Gyfiawnder Cymdeithasol (CSJ). Fel yn achos
Cynghrair Brwydro yn erbyn Tlodi'r Ganolfan Gyfiawnder Cymdeithasol,
byddai’r Ganolfan hefyd yn ceisio adeiladu ar sylfeini’r rhwydwaith bywiog o

elusennau a sefydliadau gwirfoddol sy’n gweithio yn y maes. Sefydlwyd y

Tudalen y pecyn 91



rhwydwaith hwnnw eisoes gan Lles Cymru Wellbeing Wales, i greu
Rhwydwaith Lles deinamig a fyddai’n gweithredu, nid yn unig i arddangos
modelau o arfer gorau ac i lunio atebion deallus o ran polisi, ond hefyd i

bontio rhwng cymunedau a’r llywodraeth.

Gallai Canolfan Lles i Gymru hefyd ddarparu ffocws ar gyfer ystod eang o
fentrau arloesol sy’n hybu lles. Er enghraifft, drwy weithio gyda’r sector
cyhoeddus a’r sector preifat gallai ddarparu rhaglenni hyfforddiant yn y
gweithle wedi’u seilio ar faterion lles, gan gynnwys hyfforddiant lles yn y
gweithle a dargedwyd ar gyfer pobl ar incwm isel; gan uwchraddio adnoddau
fel y Pecyn Cymorth Lles Cynaliadwy, a ddatblygwyd gan Lles Cymru
Wellbeing Wales, i gynorthwyo sefydliadau i weithredu a mesur rhaglenni
lles; i fapio asedau cymunedol yng Nghymru er budd y cyhoedd; neu greu
adnoddau digidol i gynyddu ymwybyddiaeth y cyhoedd o faterion lles, fel
creu aps electronig am ddim i fesur lles unigolion. Byddai’r Ganolfan yn
chwilio am arian ar gyfer ei rhaglen o brosiectau a digwyddiadau gan
ymddiriedolaethau a sefydliadau elusennol, yn ogystal a chan noddwyr

corfforaethol, unigolion preifat, a phartneriaethau a’r sector preifat.

Yn gryno, rydym ni sydd wedi llofnodi isod yn credu bod angen ymdrech ary
cyd gan asiantaethau niferus, oll yn cydweithio, i wireddu amcanion lles y
llywodraeth, a amlinellwyd yn ei rhaglen ddeddfwriaethol. Byddai Canolfan

Lles i Gymru yn gyfrwng perffaith i geisio sicrhau newid.

[1] “Mae lles yn gyflwr corfforol, cymdeithasol a meddyliol cadarnhaol; nid
absenoldeb poen, anesmwythder ac anallu yn unig mohono. Mae’n deillio,
nid yn unig o gamau unigolion, ond o gasgliad o elfennau a pherthnasoedd a
phobl eraill. Mae lles person yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol bod ei anghenion
sylfaenol yn cael eu diwallu, bod ganddo ymdeimlad o bwrpas, a’i fod yn
teimlo y gall gyrraedd nodau pwysig a chymryd rhan mewn cymdeithas. Caiff
y cyflwr ei wella gan amodau sy’n cynnwys perthnasoedd personol cefnogol,
cael eich cynnwys mewn cymunedau grymus, iechyd da, sicrwydd ariannol,

cyflogaeth foddhaus, ac amgylchedd iach a deniadol.

Tudalen y pecyn 92



Darn allan o ‘Local Wellbeing: Can We Measure it?” New Economics
Foundation, Medi 2008

(2) Promoting mental health and preventing mental illness: the economic
case for investment in Wales - gan Lynne Friedli a Michael Parsonage Hydref
2009. | gael rhagor o fanylion ewch i:

http:/ /www.publicmentalhealth.org/news.cfm?orgid=749&contentid=15934

[3] http://www.wiserd.ac.uk/training-events/annual-

conference/programme/health-and-wellbeing/analysis-subjective-

wellbeing-wales-evidence-annual-populati/

Prif ddeisebydd: Wellbeing Wales

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 24 Medi 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 52

Tudalen y pecyn 93



Mark Drakeford AC / AM ’\/ (ﬁ

Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol .
Minister for Health and Social Services ,J}

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-502
Ein cyf/Our ref MD/02674/13

William Powell AM
William.powell@wales.gov.uk

2| October 2013

(e s uanns

Thank you for your letter of 3 October calling on the Welsh Government to establish a new
Wellbeing Centre for Wales. We are already supporting work on wellbeing.

Together for Mental Health sets out the Welsh Government’s joined-up, 10-year strategic
approach to improving the lives of those with mental health problems, and, where possible,

preventing such problems developing in the first place by improving the mental wellbeing of
the population.

The All Wales Mental Health Promotion Network, managed by Public Health Wales,
provides strong leadership and a focus for mental health promotion and wellbeing in Wales.
It increases public and professional understanding of public mental health, develops
evidence and learning exchanges, and acts as a conduit for the dissemination of promising
practices in public mental health wellbeing.

To guide and develop the network an Advisory Board, chaired by Professor Sir Mansel
Aylward, meets on a quarterly basis and comprises experts in the field of mental health and
representatives from mental health promotion and wellbeing. The Board is currently
reviewing its terms of reference and membership to ensure that it is ‘fit for purpose’ in
relation to its role in the delivery of aspects of Together for Mental Health, which includes a

commitment to build skills to support policy development and practical action for promoting
mental wellbeing.

| have asked Public Health Wales to liaise with Dafydd Thomas, Executive Director of Lles
Cymru, to determine how the work on wellbeing can best be taken forward.

&%va(\h
M

Mark Drakeford AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services
Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300

Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford @wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi TH%U M(ﬁ%: yn 94 Printed on 100% recycled paper



P-04-502 Wellbeing Centre for Wales - Correspondence from the Petitioner
to the Clerking Team, 08.05.14

Dear Stephen

| am writing in response to William Powell AM Chair of the Petitions Committee. |
have also had a copy of the letter from the Minister for Health and Social Services,

Mark Drakeford AM to the Petitions Committee.

Firstly | would like to thank the Chair and the Petitions Committee for considering

the issues through the petitions process.

In answer to the points made in the various items of correspondence, | would like to
say that for the last 4 years | have been an active member of the Public Health Wales
All Wales Mental Health Promotion Network Advisory Board and have worked with
some very passionate and forward thinking individuals on delivering the Network's
terms of reference - which | would suggest are tailored more towards mental health

than wider, community wellbeing.

| have also learned that this particular network will be merged with a number of
other Public Health Wales Networks to form the All Wales Public Health Network in
the very near future - which challenges the idea that the All Wales Mental Health

Promotion Network's work will continue to unchanged on this agenda.

It seems to me that there has been a considerable shift in Wales away from
networks and nodes that identify good practice in project delivery; and provide the
forums that develop policies that are 'fit for purpose.' Organisations in Wales are
having to focus their efforts on project delivery, because that is what their funding
is telling them to do. As organisations get more involved in delivery they become
less skilled at evaluation; reflection and ironically learning how to deliver a better
service. | am concerned that this will result in unnecessary duplication of effort; the
waste of limited financial resources and ultimately services that don't deliver what

their users need.

That said, | totally understand and support the Welsh Government's desire to
champion delivery and change on the ground, but | do feel there is a role for
evaluation, reflection and challenge. And | believe a Wellbeing Centre for Wales
could help do that.

Tudalen y pecyn 95



If as the Chair, you feel that the Petitions Committee would benefit from a
discussion about wellbeing and what it means for the National Assembly's
activities, | would be more than happy to present to the Committee. | have recently
finished wellbeing evaluation's for the Arts Council in Wales; World Wide Fund for
Nature in Namibia; the HR department in Cardiff City Council and Port Talbot Young

People's Services - where wellbeing is the common theme that unites them all.

Thank you again for your time and consideration on the issue of a Wellbeing Centre

for Wales. If | can help at all, please by all means let me know.
Kind regards
Dafydd Thomas

Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol - Executive Director Lles Cymru Wellbeing Wales

Tudalen y pecyn 96



Eitem 3.15
P-04-530 Labelu Dwyieithog

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Fel pob gwlad gwerth ei halen sy’n ddwyieithog yn swyddogol, (fel Canada),
mae angen deddfwriaeth ar Gymru i sicrhau bod yr holl gynhyrchion bwyd a
werthir yng Nghymru yn cael eu labelu yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Rydym felly’n
galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i ddod a

deddfwriaeth o’r fath i rym heb ormod o oedi

Prif ddeisebydd: Simon Foster

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 21 lonawr 2014

Nifer y llofnodion: 98

Tudalen y pecyn 97



P-04-530 Bilingual labelling - Correspondence from the Petitioner to the
Committee, 04.05.14.

To Whom it May Concern,

My response to the observation outlined by Welsh government minister Mark
Drakford is profound dismay at our lack of self-determination coupled with a
recognition of the threat posed by the EU government, and to a lesser extent, the

UK government, to our continued national identity and existence.

| would urge the Welsh government to enact legislation requiring the bilingual
labeling of food products sold in Wales (as outlined in the petition) regardless of

rules and regulations external to our nation.

The European Union would then either have to recognise Welsh as a real language
(i.e. give it 'official' status) or challenge the legislation in court where the merits of

supporting the Welsh language could be debated in a transparent manner.

The argument from a Welsh perspective should be: if Welsh is an official language
in Wales, then it should be recognised as such in the EU. Disparate standards and
recognitions among two governments purporting to represent the same nation (in

this case Wales), is clearly unacceptable.

| therefore urge the Welsh government to enact the said legislation requiring
bilingual labeling in Wales (regardless of current EU or UK legislation) in order to

affect positive change for Wales in her relationship to the EU and UK.
Sincerely,

Simon Foster

Tudalen y pecyn 98



Eitem 3.16

P-04-500 Galw am Reoleiddio Sefydliadau Lles Anifeiliaid yng
Nghymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i
annog Llywodraeth Cymru i reoleiddio Sefydliadau Lles Anifeiliaid a deddfu
bod holl sefydliadau achub anifeiliaid yn bodloni gofynion gorfodol yn unol
a’r adroddiad a luniwyd gan Weithgor Sefydliadau Lles Anifeiliaid Rhwydwaith
Lles Anifeiliaid Cymru ym mis Hydref 2012. Mae angen i Lywodraeth Cymru
roi deddfwriaeth ar waith yng Nghymru o dan Ddeddf Lles Anifeiliaid (2006),
i ddiogelu anifeiliaid rhag esgeulustod a cham-drin.

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol:

Mae mwy a mwy o anifeiliaid yn dioddef cam-drin, esgeulustod ac yn cael eu
bridio mewn sefydliadau heb eu rheoleiddio sy’n hysbysebu ei hunain yn
Ganolfannau Achub, ac rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cymru i ddeddfu o dan
Ddeddf Anifeiliaid 2006 i geisio rhoi’r gorau i hyn.

Prif ddeisebydd: Lisa Winnett

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 24 Medi 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 265

Tudalen y pecyn 99



P-04-500 Call For Regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales -
Correspondence from the RSPCA to the Committee, 14.04.14

Could I also draw your attention to the attached report by the Animal Welfare
Network for Wales (of which | am Chair). We conducted a lengthy investigation into
the need for regulating sanctuaries/rescues. This was a formal process which
included a working group of experts (which included the Welsh Government and
local authorities), oral evidence sessions and a written consultation process. We
presented this to the Minister's predecessor (John Griffiths) but unfortunately we

have yet to receive the Government's response.

If | can be of any further help, please do let me know. We would be more than

happy to attend a committee meeting if that would be of use.
Best wishes,

Claire Lawson

Head of External Affairs

RSPCA Cymru

Tudalen y pecyn 100



ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES

a4

The case for the regulation of
Animal Welfare Establishments
In Wales

A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare
Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

October 2012




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES <@ <az-

Every possible effort has been made to ensure that the information contained in this report is accurate at the time of going to press, and
the publishers and authors cannot accept responsibility for any errors of omissions, however caused. No responsibility for loss or damage
occasioned to any person acting, or refraining from action, as a result of the material in this publication can be accepted by the editor, the
publishers or any of the authors.

First published in the United Kingdom in 2012 by the Animal Welfare Network for Wales.

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or criticism or review, as permitted under the Copyright, Designs
and Patents Act 1988, this publication may only be reproduced, stored or transmitted in any form or by any means, with the prior permis-
sion in writing of the publishers, or in the case of reprographic reproduction in accordance with the terms and licences issued by the CLA.

© Animal Welfare Network for Wales 2012.

AWNW, C/o RSPCA Cymru, 10 Ty Nant Court, Morganstown, Cardiff CF15 8LW.



The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES == <as-

CONTENTS

FOREWORD 4

SECTION 1: BACKGROUND

1.1 Introduction 5
1.2 Working group members 5
1.3 Why legislation is needed 6
1.4 Size of the sector involved 6
1.5 Problems to be addressed 7
1.6 Case studies 8
SECTION 2: PARAMETERS

2.1 Interpretation of terms 11
2.2 Past definitions of what constitutes an ‘animal sanctuary’ 12
2.3 Agreed working definition of an ‘Animal Welfare Establishment’ for this report 12
2.4 Legislative positioning (K
SECTION 3: METHODOLOGY

3.1 Timeline of inquiry 14
3.2 Engagement 15
3.3 Evidence forms 16
SECTION 4: FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 Role in society 17
4.2 The issue of hoarding 17
4.3 Examples of concerns raised during the enquiry 19
4.4 Options for regulation 20
4.5 Size of Animal Welfare Establishments 20
4.6 Data collection and visibility 21
4.7 Animal welfare policy documents 21
4.8 The question of wildlife 24
4.9 Accountability 25
410 \Veterinary surgeons 25
4.11 Inspections 25
412 Compliance and penalties 27
413 Costs and charges 27
SECTION 5: CONCLUSION 28
APPENDIX A: THE ROLE OF AWNW 29
APPENDIX B: CALL FOR EVIDENCE LETTER AND FORM 30
APPENDIX C: EVIDENCE 33
APPENDIX D: RSPCA INSPECTION STANDARDS 33
APPENDIX E: DEFRA CIRCULAR 02/2003 — ZOO LICENSING ACT 1981, ANNEX E 34



The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES

P TR

@a*™

“Compassion needs to be encouraged, but
compassion without a sense of responsibility

can lead to cruelty.” Gower Bird Hospital

FOREWORD

The Animal Welfare Network for Wales (AWNW) has been involved in the issue of Animal Welfare
Establishments' (AWES) or ‘sanctuaries’ and the possibility of regulation from an early stage in the group’s
history. It is an issue which is of particular concern to our members, many of whom could be classified as
AWEs. Our members are therefore highly informed as to the factors that are necessary for running a
successful AWE to high welfare standards, and also what can go wrong.

Back in 2009 AWNW's work in this area led to the organisation of a popular seminar on the subject in North
Wales. This event clearly illustrated that Network members were eager to engage in a lively debate on the
issue and that there was a considerable level of concern about AWEs that were not being run properly and
where animals were at risk. Discussions from this seminar led to the formation of the Sanctuaries Working
Group, which later changed its name to the AWE Working Group, who began work on investigating the
opinions of the sector.

This report, built on that wide variety of evidence gathered both within and outside the animal welfare sector,
lays out the case for secondary legislation by the Welsh Government under the Animal Welfare Act (2006)
and the form that this could take. The group has done its utmost to secure the opinions of all who may be
affected by future regulation, along with independent legal advice, and feel that the end result is a balanced
and achievable set of recommendations on how to move forward in this area towards proportionate regulation.

The structure of the working group that has produced this report has also been an interesting exercise for
AWNW. Working with the Welsh Government, from the beginning of the process, and bringing together a
diverse group of partners to achieve a coherent consensus has at times been a significant challenge, but also,
a productive achievement. It is hoped that this form of external subject based working group run in partnership
with the Welsh Government could be used as a template for future work going forward.

Many thanks go to those working group members who have attended meetings and contributed their valuable
opinions towards the report over an extended period of time. Special thanks also need to go to RSPCA Cymru
for their considerable commitment of staff time and resources needed to produce this report. Without this
support this considerable body of work would have been unlikely to reach fruition.

P

Tina Reece, AWNW Network Manager

4 "Henceforth referred to as AWEs. TUdaIen y pecyn 104




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales

A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

SECTION 1: BACKGROUND

1.1 Introduction

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES <as-

S

From the smallest organisation perhaps with just one individual acting on their own initiative to take in animals,
to the largest rehoming centres of major UK charities, there are many issues that affect how well an AWE is run.

The Welsh Government has the opportunity to put in place legislation for Wales under the Animal Welfare Act
(2006), or through an Assembly Act, which would both protect animals in this sector and ensure best practice.
Public expectation would be high as to the protection of animals through the regulation of these establishments.

AWNW has a vested interest in this issue, as many of its members are AWEs. The Network has therefore
investigated the issue and widely canvassed opinion from the animal welfare sector and those establishments
who would be most affected by regulation, to produce this mapping document and a series of recommendations.

1.2 Working group members

Chair: RSPCA Cymru/AWNW chair Claire Lawson
Members: BirdsFirst Greg Glendell
Born Free Chris Draper
British Rabbit Council Alan Gibbs
Catnip Liz Thomas
Cats Protection Catherine Smith
Dogs Trust Paula Boyden/Chris Laurence
Gower Bird Hospital and BWRC Simon Allen
Great Dane Care Liz Davies
HelpMyPet Sarah Marsh
Hope Rescue Vanessa Waddon
Horse Trust Liane Crowther
Independent Rebecca Evans
Pit Pony Sanctuary Roy Peckham
Redwings Horse Sanctuary Nicolas De Brauwere
RSPCA Adam Grogan
Tamlin Watson Animal Behaviour Specialist Tamlin Watson
Torfaen County Borough Council Alison Hughes
World Horse Welfare Phil Jones
Wrexham County Borough Council Graham Capper
Advisor: Aberdeen University Law Department Mr Mike Radford
Observer: Welsh Government Sian Smith
Secretariat: AWNW Network Manager Tina Reece

Tudalen y pecyn 105




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =a=- |

@@=
1.3 Why legislation is needed

There are several pieces of legislation that cover the welfare of animals in Wales, the most prominent being
the Animal Welfare Act (2006) (and its subsequent species-specific codes of practice) however no regulations
exist to sufficiently and specifically govern the establishment of AWESs, nor their ongoing practices.

It is the opinion of this working group that in our experience much of the public are already under the
impression that this area is regulated. However, the current situation is that any person, organisation or animal
welfare establishment who holds themselves out to receive vulnerable animals on a regular basis, whether
companion, farmed, protected or other animals, with a view to either rehoming, rehabilitating or providing
long-term care, can do so. This has led to a catalogue of problems with this practice, including anything from
basic animal welfare problems to the visibility of these individuals or organisations and access rights to monitor
and inspect conditions in which animals are kept.

A precedent for regulation already exists in parts of Europe?, and there are parallels for us closer to home with
the regulation of other animal related undertakings such as riding schools, dog breeders® and dog and cat
boarding in Wales and within other UK nations. Currently, although there is some information available, there
is still no definitive data as to how many animal welfare establishments are operating in Wales*, because they
are not required to register, which has wide ranging implications for animal welfare and disease control.

1.4 Size of the sector involved
The general visibility of the animal welfare sector is a major part of the issue of regulation for AWEs.

Although most AWEs are an invaluable part of animal welfare services, there are times when things go wrong,
often leading to a rapid decline in standards. Resources may become overwhelmed for many reasons. This
may include irregular fees or donations which do not meet the required levels of funding to maintain
operations, capability being surpassed due to large intakes of animals or specialist welfare and husbandry
problems being encountered (such as for wildlife and exotics especially). These are common issues
encountered by both large and small organisations. In these cases a framework or safety net is necessary to
protect vulnerable animals and the organisations trying to deliver their care. There has long been recognition in
the animal welfare sector, and, we believe, amongst informed members the public that this step is a necessary
and positive move that will protect both the people and animals involved.

Of 146 AWNW members, 65 have self-defined their organisations as ‘sanctuaries’ or AWEs within
our definition®, whilst figures gathered by the Welsh Government in 2009-2011 identified 88 ‘sanctuaries’ or
‘refuges’, and 54 ‘collectors’ in Wales®.

2These countries and authorities include Jersey and others.

%Indeed the Welsh Government intends to bring forth stronger legislation in this area in the autumn of 2012.

“The CAWES baseline data project has given us a starting point for numbers of AWEs in Wales, but because of discrepancies in the data reporting of the different Local
Authorities involved, the difficulty identifying relevant organisations and establishments, and the end of the scheme on the 31st of March 2011, we have been left with
an incomplete picture of the scale of the problem.

SAWNW membership statistics — which are self defined by the organisation during their application process - showed that as of the 1st of January 2011 65 of our 145
members classified themselves as a sanctuary, rehoming centre, nature reserve/wildlife centre/zoo, rescue or rehabilitation centre. More would also be included under
the stricter definition set out for an AWEs in section 2.4 above. Please refer to the AWNW website for the AWNW'’s full membership list, http://awnwales.org/search.
asp?hit=true

5The Welsh Government defined ‘collectors’ for the purposes of this data as an: ‘individual who keeps a number of different specimens of the same species for

non-commercial purposes’ which could also mean these premisj; Idﬁ%ﬂiyn@%\/@pﬂﬁ stated that trends cannot be accurately measured by this
data due to differences and difficulties in the local authorities repdrtig: taJca e les.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/101119cawesen.pdf




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales W
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-
G

Welsh Government Baseline Data collected by 22 Welsh Local Authorities under CAWES:

2008-9 2009-10 2010-11
Sanctuary/refuge 85 82 88
Collectors 12 34 54

Unfortunately these figures still do not provide a comprehensive picture of the full extent of the sector. This is
due to the definitions used for the data gathering process, which were not robustly defined, along with
difficulties identifying all relevant individuals and organisations to be counted. As an example of this, wildlife
premises were not included in the Welsh Government data. Local authorities were also only able to identify
those organisations that they had the resources and understanding to cover. It should be noted that it can
often be those who do not openly advertise themselves that are the organisations of particular concern.

The AWNW has very good representation from the active animal welfare sector in Wales, but its
membership is not exhaustive. After an extensive mapping project of the sector in 2006, which was rerun and
updated in 2009, AWNW databases show 122 animal welfare organisations who are not currently members of
the Network. This project showed that overall there were approximately 268 animal welfare organisations in
Wales, as well as many who remain unmapped due to issues such as their size or location’. It is worth noting
here that members of AWNW are self-selecting, as there is no provision for automatic membership and
organisations must apply and be accepted to the group®.

1.5 Problems to be addressed

The primary concern identified by this report has been the poor standards of animal welfare that can
affect AWEs. These concerns can be broken down as follows:

. There are numerous cases of poor standards at AWEs, often reported as a result of concerns
raised by the public. Sometimes the standards have been so poor they have resulted in prosecutions
for cruelty and other welfare offences. Please refer to section 1.6 for case studies;

. There is an element of trust in the system of sanctuaries from the public, which assumes some level of
knowledge, professionalism and accountability which unfortunately is not always the reality;
. AWEs are vulnerable to rapid declines or large fluctuations in standards. The expenditure required to

provide care and treatment can easily exceed income generated from rehoming fees (if any) so
resources are typically strained. When donations are sparse, welfare standards are vulnerable and
may be compromised. Fluctuations in numbers and types of animals depending on the season may
cause difficulties in planning and can lead to AWEs becoming quickly overburdened. With fixed
resources available, taking in more animals can lead to lesser standards of care available for each
individual animal within an AWE. These organisations are typically heavily reliant on volunteers and
thus when key individuals became temporarily or permanently unavailable, welfare standards can
quickly deteriorate;

"Data as collected through AWNW membership review data collected in 2006 showing 629 animal welfare related organisations with dealings in Wales, many of which

could be assumed to fall into the definition of AWEs. l
8To date there have been no organisations that have been-rgju,tqj% Qembysrp%y&mbgsc}plzrms can be found at http://awnwales.org/membersterms.asp 7




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES |
o0 G

-@a*

. There are no safeguards to prevent people who lack the requisite knowledge, skills, resources,
commitment, facilities and equipment, from operating an establishment;

. There is a lack of knowledge about which individuals and organisations are operating as AWEs, what
types of animals they care for and what standards they operate to, which if standards are low may
well lead to poor levels of animal welfare. Given this lack of knowledge it is currently difficult to identify
where problems are occurring until they become of a severe nature and often animals are suffering
considerably. Given that decisions regarding regulation should be based on good quality data,
inspection of AWEs is necessary to obtain this data and identify which are ‘high-risk’ and which already
have systems in place to ensure adequate standards of welfare. For example, small AWEs with limited
funding, run by a small group or an individual, pose a greater risk of poor standards of welfare arising
due to financial pressures. Some AWEs that are not open to the public can also carry a greater risk of
problems not being visible to be picked up by enforcers.

1.6 Case studies

The need for regulation of AWEs can be illustrated by a number of prosecution case studies taken from recent
years. It should be noted that by the time these situations came to light the problems were already at the
suffering stage for the animals involved. Each of the cases below could have been prevented through
regulation and careful regular monitoring. More worrying, are the cases that don’t come to light and the AWEs
that function with no oversight, perhaps with the public assuming wrongly that there is a system of external
monitoring already in place.

Case Summary 1 (RSPCA)°:
Mr and Mrs J — Animal sanctuary run from a three-bedroom semi-detached residential council
house. Both defendants (Mr and Mrs J) were unemployed.

Charges:

Both defendants were charged with causing unnecessary suffering by unreasonably omitting to
provide the animals (being 23 cats, five snakes, three lizards and one rabbit) proper and necessary
care and attention contrary to section 1(1)(a) of the Protection of Animals Act (1911). Mr and Mrs

J effectively became an AWE when they advertised that they would find good and loving homes

for any unwanted animals. The animals were underfed, kept in dirty conditions (also the responsible
Inspector found evidence of ringworm in the house) and the defendants failed to provide adequate
veterinary care. Mr and Mrs J pleaded not guilty to all the charges and trial was heard on 30
September — 3 October 2003. The case was not concluded at this time and was adjourned to 10
November 2003.

Outcome:

Mr J — 30 convictions were brought against him. He received a three-year conditional discharge
and is subject to a disqualification order in relation to all animals for life, except for one dog, one
rabbit and three cats. Mr J was required to rehome the above animals within fourteen days.
following an agreement with the Court. Mrs J — 30 convictions were brought against her.

Tudalen y pecyn 108

°Taken from RSPCA prosecution data.




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

‘.0'.6.'

She received a confiscation order and is subject to a disqualification order in relation to all animals
for life, except for one dog, one rabbit and three cats. Mrs J was required to rehome the above
animals within fourteen days following an agreement with the Court. An appeal was lodged by Mr
and Mrs J against their convictions and sentences. Mr and Mrs J withdrew their appeals on the
day of the appeal hearing.

Case Summary 2 (RSPCA):
Ms P — Ran a small scale animal sanctuary which was based at her home and in some barns. The
defendant was unemployed.

Charges:

The defendant was charged with causing unnecessary suffering by unreasonably omitting to
provide proper and necessary care and attention contrary to section 1(1)(a) of the Protection of
Animals Act (1911) to a Shetland type cross-bred mare pony. The pony was suffering from laminitis
which the defendant made no effort to seek veterinary help to alleviate the animal’s suffering. The
pony was eventually euthanised. Ms P pleaded guilty to the charge and trial was heard on 7 April
2005.

Outcome:
The defendant is subject to an 80 hours Community Punishment Order and was ordered to pay
costs of £100 and compensation of £634.47.

Case Study 3 (A Welsh Local Authority)":

A hobbyist caring for his chosen species of birds soon became known in the locality and people
started taking injured birds to him to rehabilitate. When the residential property could no longer
provide for the accommodation needs of the birds, he relocated and built new aviaries. People
began to visit and give donations to fund his work. The population expanded, more aviaries were
built and publicity resulted in more visitors.

Gradually the hobby and wish to educate people about wildlife became subject to the regulatory
control of the Zoo Licensing Act (1981). The operator explained that there was no intention to
become a business, as a zoo, and was reluctant to accept the situation and wanted to remain as a
‘sanctuary’ not subject to legislative controls. Unfortunately, the escalation in numbers of birds bred
on site, injured wild birds and re-homed unwanted pets, brought about a decline in welfare
standards.

Outcome:

Existing legislation was enforced, a closure notice under the Zoo Licensing Act (1981) was served
and a prosecution taken under the Animal Welfare Act (2006). These actions proved to be very
unpopular with the general public.

"Supplied anonymously by a Welsh Local Authority by an officer involved with the incident.

°Taken from RSPCA prosecution data. TUdaIen y pecyn 109 H




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
w A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES <as- |
L
This unlicensed zoo closed to visitors and continued as a ‘sanctuary’ thus a prosecution was not
proceeded with under the Zoo Licensing Act (1981). The costs associated with prosecution and
conviction under section 4 of the Animal Welfare Act (2006) amounted to £4,000, costs awarded
to the council were £500. It should be acknowledged that the cost would have been substantially
increased without the RSPCA Inspectors who assisted with transportation, accommodation and
responsibility for several of the birds signed over to them without charge to the council.

Case Summary 4 (RSPCA):%

Mr and Mrs M — Wildlife sanctuary. Mr M was employed. Mrs M was unemployed. A prosecution was
not brought against Mr and Mrs M because it failed to meet the evidential and public interest tests.
This was in relation to a number of birds kept at the sanctuary and the investigating Inspector felt the
following offences had been committed:

1. Causing unnecessary suffering by failing to provide adequate care and attention contrary to section
1(1)(a) of the Protection of Animals Act (1911).

2. Keeping the birds in cages that were too small contrary to section 8(1) of the Wildlife & Countryside
Act (1981).

3. Possessing wild birds which was contrary to section 1(2)(a) of the Wildlife & Countryside Act
(1981).

4. Not registering a Schedule 4 bird contrary to section 7 Wildlife & Countryside Act (1981).

5. Displaying Annex A species to the public without the Article 10 certificates contrary to section 8(1)
of the Control of Trade in Endangered Species (Enforcement) Regulations (1997).

Outcome:
Adult Cautions were issued and signed by both Mr and Mrs M.

22The Report On Companion Animal Welfare Establishments: Sanctuaries, Shelters And Re-Homing Centres, The Companion Animal Welfare Council, 2004, 2.1.1,

p14 http://core.kml.open.ac.uk/download/pdf/27685/34&sa:U&eﬁ'ﬂﬂ.@msvhp@Wﬁd'—IC_’E@)F]AH&S|Q2:OQYOKGLCSJ_6Im4ht1-qu&usg:AFQJCNFD

n8fHfuwWLUHTswwjdINOUhrUnw



The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales w

A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES ===
G

SECTION 2: PARAMETERS

2.1 Interpretation of terms

Animal welfare establishment (AWE):
Originally adapted from the CAWC definition'?® which aims to better reflect the function of establishments
and organisations such as ‘sanctuaries’ and provide an umbrella term for what can be a diverse sector. For
the purposes of this report therefore, an animal welfare establishment is any establishment which held itself
out to take in and to care (temporarily, permanently, or both) for vulnerable animals'®. This could include
establishments known as: animal home, sanctuary, shelter, rehoming centre, rest home, hospital,
rehabilitation centre, rescue centre, stray animal facilities (local authority or contractor). The function of
these establishments could include: taking in unwanted animals, rehoming, keeping for life, lost animals,
treatment on a small or large scale or sick or injured animals, taking in retired animals, rehabilitation™. It
would not be possible to create a definition of AWEs based on numbers of vulnerable animals taken in or by
severe limitations on species, but rather the organisation must be defined by what they do.

Vulnerable animals:
The definition of a protected animal can be taken from the Animal Welfare Act (2006).' Animals which are lost,
un-owned, unwanted, injured, diseased, neglected, abused, orphaned, at risk of harm, or whose owners are
unable to cope should be included. These could be companion animals, farm animals or protected animals.

Protected animal:
An animal is a ‘protected animal’ if: it is of a kind which is commonly domesticated in the British Islands; it is
under the control of man whether on a permanent or temporary basis; or it is not living in a wild state.®

Wild animal:
A ‘wild animal’ means any animal (including a wild bird) which is or (before it was killed or taken) was living
wild; ‘wild bird’ means any bird of a species which is ordinarily resident in or is a visitor to the European
territory of any member State in a wild state.

Person:
The definition of human responsibility for an animal can be taken from the Animal Welfare Act (2006)."” For the
purposes of this report a ‘person’ is an individual or company not associated with any group or organisation in
regards to holding themselves out to receive vulnerable animals on a regular basis. For the issue of fostering,
these individuals could be captured under the legal responsibility of the organisation they were acting for,
rather than being personally liable or under a requirement to gain any sort of licence.

2The Report On Companion Animal Welfare Establishments: Sanctuaries, Shelters And Re-Homing Centres, The Companion Animal Welfare Council, 2004, 2.1.1,
p14 http://core.kmi.open.ac.uk/download/pdf/27685/34&sa=U&ei=ib7LTqqPGIWR8gPhyLDgDw&ved=0CCMQFjAH&sig2=0gY0KGLc8]_6lm4ht1-Yqg&usg=AFQjCNFD
n8fHfuwWLUHTswwjdIN9UhrUnw

BFor clarification this does not include veterinary practices.

"This is not an exhaustive list, but the working group as flagged those examples that they particularly want covered by regulation in this area. The group would prefer
to see a non-prescriptive list with exemptions only if absolutely necessary and such a case was proven.

SAnimals to which the Animal Welfare Act (2006) applies are listed in Introductory section 1: “animal” means a vertebrate other than man; (2) Nothing in this Act
applies to an animal while it is in its foetal or embryonic form; (3) The appropriate national authority may by regulations for all or any of the purposes of this Act (a)
extend the definition of “animal” so as to include invertebrates of any description; (b) make provision in lieu of subsection (2) as respects any invertebrates included in
the definition of “animal’; (c) amend subsection (2) to extend the application of this Act to an animal from such earlier stage of its development as may be specified in
the regulations. (4) The power under subsection (3)(a) or (c) may only be exercised if the appropriate national authority is satisfied, on the basis of scientific evidence,
that animals of the kind concerned are capable of experiencing pain or suffering. (5)In this section, “vertebrate” means any animal of the Sub-phylum Vertebrata of the
Phylum Chordata and “invertebrate” means any animal not of that Sub-phylum. http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/45/crossheading/introductory

5Taken from the Animal Welfare Act (2006) definition, Introductory section 2: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/45/crossheading/introductory

7Animal Welfare Act (20086), Introductory section 3: a person responsible for an animal whether on a permanent or temporary basis.; (2) being in charge of it; (3) a
person who owns an animal shall always be regarded as being a person who is responsible for it; (4) a person shall be treated as responsible for any animal for which

a person under the age of 16 years of whom he has actuaFFﬂﬂ;%@ﬂ lvemeS/n 1 1 1 1 1

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/45/crossheading/intro:




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES <as- |
@<
Organisation:
For the purposes of this report an ‘organisation’ is the persons (or committees or departments etc.) who
make up a body for the purpose of administering an animal welfare establishment. If the organisation is a

charity or trustee incorporated association, trustees would hold responsibility.

Holding out:
There was a need to distinguish between individuals buying and keeping animals and those ‘holding
themselves out’ to receive animals. For the purposes of this report advertising or being well known in the
locality for taking in vulnerable animals could be classified as ‘holding one’s self out’ to receive animals.
Hoarders of the type who buy or adopt their animals would therefore not be classified as an AWE. The issue
turns on the vulnerability of the animal (such as the issue of selling rescue animals). Even if it means that
some individuals escape the net, it was agreed that a distinction had to be made in this area.

2.2 Past definitions of what constitutes an ‘animal sanctuary’

Definition of an ‘animal sanctuary’ written in 2001 for the draft Animal Sanctuaries (Licensing) Bill'®:
In this Act “animal sanctuary” means any premises at which ten or more animals, or, in the case of
equines, four, are normally kept for the purpose of protection, rehabilitation, rest or rehoming other than:
any establishment at which any animal is kept and the use of the establishment for that purpose is
licensed in accordance with, any other enactment; any premises owned or operated by a local authority
and used for the detention or care of any animal by that authority in the exercise of its functions under
any enactment.

Definition of an ‘animal sanctuary’ written by Defra in 2006:
An animal sanctuary is any premises which is willing to admit and care for displaced, injured or
unwanted animals on a regular basis, whether companion, farmed, wild or other animals, with a view to
either rehoming, rehabilitating or providing long-term care for them.

And further refined by the RSPCA in 2006":
An animal sanctuary is any facility which seeks to admit and care for displaced, injured or unwanted
animals on a regular basis, whether companion, farmed, wild or other animals, with a view to either
rehoming, rehabilitating or providing long-term care for them.

2.3 Agreed working definition of an ‘Animal Welfare Establishment’ for
this report

For the purposes of this report, an Animal Welfare Establishment shall be defined henceforth as:
A person, organisation or establishment who holds themselves out to receive vulnerable animals on a
regular basis, whether companion, farmed, protected or other animals, with a view to either rehoming,
rehabilitating or providing long-term care.

8Draft Animal Sanctuaries (Licensing) Bill, a Private Members Bill put forward by lan Cawsey MP http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200102/cm-

12 bills/022/2002022. pdf TUdﬁ'Gﬂ%%&Cyn 112

®Email exchange between the RSPCA's Adam Grogan and Sash Foreman, an




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-

@*=
2.4 Legislative positioning

As mentioned earlier the Welsh Government has the capacity to legislate in this area either through
introducing regulations (secondary legislation under the Animal Welfare Act) or by through primary legislation
and what is called an Act of the Assembly. Indeed when the UK Government passed the Animal Welfare Act in
(2006), which is enabling framework legislation, there was an intention by the drafters that the issue of
sanctuaries should be considered next (along with other issues). This Act devolved the responsibility for
introducing secondary legislation to Wales and indeed since it was subsequently implemented by the Welsh
Government in March 2007 there have been several developments, namely Codes of Practice for cats, dogs,
equines and rabbits, as well as a ban on the use of shock collars for cats and dogs.

Although the 2011 referendum saw the whole area of animal welfare devolved to Wales? the Animal Welfare
Act still provides the simplest method for introducing regulations for sanctuaries because the purpose of the
regulations would fit closely to the primary purpose of the Act, to promote animal welfare, although legislation
would also help to make these organisations accountable in other areas, both formally and informally.

The European Convention for the Protection of Pet Animals?!, which the UK has not yet signed up to, has
some areas with which the four nations of the UK does not comply with currently, such as the requirement

to have regulation of sanctuaries. If the UK was to sign up to the Convention in the future, such requirements
would need to be addressed anyway. It is worth noting however, that the Convention’s definition of sanctuaries
is widely considered to be inadequate.

2The exceptions being Hunting and Animal Experiments ngél%QLyEQecyn 113 1 3

2'http://conventions.coe.int/treaty/Commun/QueVoulezVous.a




14

The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =a=

O‘.‘. -

SECTION 3: METHODOLOGY

3.1 Timeline of inquiry

The working group engaged in an investigation and mapping exercise to seek evidence from interested parties
in Wales with the view to producing this report containing recommendations by the end of 2012. This is not a
campaigning group and will cease to exist following the report’s publication.

June 2009:
The issue was first examined in an AWNW seminar held in Llandudno on the 4th of June 2009. The topic
had been suggested by the Board of the Network because of informal discussions and concerns on the
topic gathered from members.

Key speakers at this event were: Adam Grogan (RSPCA Wildlife Department), Simon Allen (Gower Bird
Hospital), Graham Capper (Wrexham County Borough Council) and Mr Mike Radford (Reader of Law at
Aberdeen University).

This seminar was very well attended and sparked animated discussion amongst our members which
resulted in a resolution to establish the AWNW Sanctuaries Working Group.

December 2009:
At the inaugural meeting of the working group on the 9th of December 2009 it was decided that
proportionate legislation to address current and potential problems was the ultimate goal of the
working group.

Mike Radford, a Reader of Law from Aberdeen University and a specialist in animal welfare law agreed to
consult for the group as it completed the mapping exercise and developed recommendations with a robust
definition of what constitutes an AWE.

April 2010:
The mapping exercise was undertaken through evidence gathering from interested groups across Wales
through both oral sessions and written submissions. The forms inviting written submissions were distributed
on the 29th of April 2010, with a deadline of the 30th of June 2010.

All members of AWNW were emailed evidence forms and an invitation to one of the three oral evidence
sessions on the 29th of April 2010. Members were also encouraged to forward the evidence form and
introductory email to any other organisation or individuals they felt may be interested in submitting evidence,
or to pass on their contact details to the Network Co-ordinator who would forward them evidence forms.

The Network also forwarded evidence forms to a database of 162 vets in Wales and all 22 Welsh local
authorities. The councils also received an appeal to forward copies of the evidence forms to all of the
‘sanctuaries’ identified by their CAWES baseline data gathering exercise, as these addresses were
protected by data protection and could not be released to the Network.

Tudaleny pecyn 114




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-
@
May 2010:

Oral evidence gathering sessions offered at various venues in north, mid and south Wales during May of
2010 to ensure access to all interested parties and allow those not comfortable with submitting written
evidence, or with literacy issues, to take part. No bookings were made for the north and mid Wales sessions
on the 5th of May 2010 at the Welsh Government offices, Aberystwyth, the 25th of May 2010 Welsh
Government offices, Merthyr Tydfil, and the 10th of June 2010 Welsh Government offices, Caernarfon.
These sessions were subsequently cancelled. However, a fully booked south Wales session was held in
Merthyr Tydfil on the 15th of May 2010.

July 2011:
Once the evidence was gathered and legal recommendations received, the working group met on five
subsequent occasions to discuss the construction of the recommendations to be put forward to the Welsh
Government in the form of this report.

October 2012:
Completed report submitted to the Welsh Government.

3.2 Engagement

The Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group is made up of AWNW members who
expressed an interest in any future regulation of AWEs in Wales. The Welsh Government has also attended
meetings in the capacity of an observer.

AWNW has been functioning since 2006 and has as yet never had to deny membership to an organisation
wishing to join. All member organisations of the Network were given the opportunity to get involved with the
working group and later, to submit their own evidence and circulate the evidence forms to others they thought
may have an interest in responding.

Local authorities via the Welsh Government also circulated evidence forms and invitations to oral evidence
sessions to all of the sanctuaries that they had identified through the CAWES Baseline Data project.

After the second meeting of the working group the list was closed to new members, although these
organisations could still attend evidence sessions and submit their written evidence. This was to ensure all
members of the group had an equal amount of knowledge on the subject and an adequate
understanding of the issues being dealt with, and thus a collective responsibility for producing the report.

The working group meetings were covered by the AWNW normal terms and conditions, available on the
Network website at www.awnwales.org/membersterms.

Organisations who submitted written evidence were (in alphabetical order):?

1.  BirdsFirst

2.  Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council
3. Cardiff County Council

4.  Cats Protection

5. Dogs Trust

22Please see Appendix C for a link to the full written eviden—cl;.UdaIen y pecyn 1 15 1 5




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as- |

L
11. Maesteg Animal Welfare Society

12. National Ferret Welfare Society

13. North Wales Reptile and Raptor Sanctuary
14. Pembroke Hospital

15. Pet Care Trust

16. Raptor Rescue

17. RSPCA

18. RSPCA Llys Nini Branch

19. Veteran Horse Welfare

20. Wild Futures

21. World Horse Welfare

Organisations who submitted oral evidence were (in alphabetical order):%
1. Gower Bird Hospital

Great Dane Care

Greyhound Rescue Wales

Hope Rescue

Horse Trust

National Federation of British Herpetologists

Redwings Horse Sanctuary

RSPCA

© N RN

Overall, 26 separate organisations submitted evidence to the enquiry.

3.3 Evidence forms

A standard evidence form was sent out as a template for submitting written evidence and structuring the
oral evidence sessions.?* Responders were also encouraged to add any information not covered by the
questions in the form which they saw as relevant.

1 6 2Please see Appendix C for full transcripts. Tu d al en y pecyn 1 l 6

2*Please see Appendix B.




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES

@%0 G

-@a°

SECTION 4: FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 Role in society

The place of AWEs is very important in the role of animal health and welfare and is a central element in
society’s response to these issues. It should be stressed that this is an essential service and offers a very
significant contribution to animal welfare and the ethical and social needs of society. Those involved range
from large organisations, to very small, to individuals — but well run versions of each of these AWEs offer
something special to the field. In many cases, without smaller AWEs, larger organisations would not be able to
cope. The existence of AWEs is therefore a public good.

The many and varied roles undertaken by AWEs include:
1. Assisting in reuniting owners and keepers with their animals;
Providing an important source of animals for those seeking new companions;
Rehabilitating companion animals to make good companions;
Alleviating and preventing animal suffering;
Protecting animal health and public health and safety;
Protecting vulnerable species and wildlife/protected animals;
Treating injury and disease;
Educating the public about animal welfare;?®
9.  Absorbing the costs of animal rehabilitation/treatment and housing for unwanted animals;
10. Reducing public nuisance;
11. Rehabilitating wildlife, and;
12. Promoting responsible animal ownership.

© N RN

“Even in the best regulated society it is inevitable
that some animals will become unwanted for a
variety of social reasons such as relationship
breakdown, death or financial hardship.” Dogs Trust

4.2 The issue of hoarding

The problem of hoarding animals should be seen as distinct and separate to that of the regulation of AWEs
covered in this report. Unfortunately, individuals engaged in hoarding animals can often be suffering from issues
such as financial strain and mental health problems which exacerbate their inability to provide for their animals’
welfare. These individuals can also come to be informally labelled as an AWE by the public because of
general misconceptions about their situation, which can in turn can add to the pressure on them to take in
more animals.

2Covering all relevant educational areas including wiIdIife,—J;rH g@lo%QK‘mea%Cyn 117 1 7




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as- |

b

This issue has been raised at numerous points during this enquiry in both the evidence sessions, by the
working group members and our legal advisor. It has been agreed by the group that the issue of

animal hoarding is separate to the regulation of legitimate AWEs. They are private individuals who hoard
animals and although they may take in animals from the public from time to time, they do not qualify fully
under the definition of sanctuaries as stated earlier. These situations are also difficult to monitor and the
authorities rely on social services, neighbours and visits to report animal welfare concerns, once this has
happened they can usually be dealt with under the Animal Welfare Act directly, thus it is inappropriate to
include ‘hoarding’ under any proposed AWE regulation.

Those individuals in a similar situation who are ‘holding themselves out to the public’ to receive animals
however, should be covered by proposed regulation. It is unlikely individuals in this situation would be able to
meet the requirements of any such regulation and consequently the welfare needs of the animals in their care,
in which case regulation would act to protect them from their own good intentions.

I

Cat
unch

-
=

70 cats kept in a house © RSPCA

18 Tudalen y pecyn 118




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES
@%0 G

-@a°

4.3 Examples of concerns about AWEs raised during the inquiry

“We have seen tremendous welfare problems arising from the existence of well-meaning but

R

unregulated and poorly run ‘sanctuaries’. Wild Futures

“Sanctuaries often begin as a well-meaning person’s hobby developing into a genuine wish to
help their chosen species, which can grow beyond their expectations. This escalation can result
in attempting to care for too many animals without the financial means to ensure sufficient food,
satisfactory accommodation, cleanliness, socialisations, exercise, veterinary treatment etc.”
Blaenau Gwent County Council

“There are many [AWESs] with poor standards such as overcrowding and high levels of infectious
disease...” Cats Protection

“In 2006, the RSPCA assisted with a raid on an establishment thought to be holding illegally caught
wild birds. They seized over 100 animals of various species which were being kept in some appalling
conditions. The owner was found guilty of a number of offences under the Protection of Animals
Act and of one offence under the Wildlife and Countryside Act. However, the sanctuary had a good
public profile in the neighbourhood and because of this the owner was charged with improving the
conditions of the establishment with the assistance of the RSPCA.”

RSPCA

“90% of sanctuaries | have visited are disgusting. People ‘rescue’ animals and are unable to care for
them.” Veteran Horse Welfare

—— L 1D | )

—— ———

Self-plucked mitred conure in sanctuary, UK © Greg Glendel/BirdsFirst

Tudalen y pecyn 119




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =a=- |

@@=
4.4 Options for regulation

Given the evidence submitted to this working group and the problems that have been identified in the past, it
was established that the status-quo was not an option and that some form of regulation was required.

There was a general recognition that a proactive scheme of compulsory regulation for organisations defined
as AWEs would be preferable for animal welfare to that of registration or self-regulation, specifically because it is
essential that the system offers tools such as access and enforcement of penalties, to ensure compliance.

Registration would allow general visibility of establishments, but not any level of accountability, which would
not solve the problems of identifying welfare problems before they escalated. Self-regulation would also be
undesirable because of a lack of visibility and the wide and varied range of opinions and experience in the
sector.

There were concerns raised about the ability of smaller organisations to meet monetary and bureaucratic
requirements for this. A number of suggested solutions to this have been raised, including that of a tiered
payment system. It was generally agreed that the fees for inspection and regulation must be proportionate to
the costs involved. It was also agreed, however, that any inability to meet such running costs should indicate
that there may be a lack of sufficient funds to ensure welfare standards, particularly given the costs of
veterinary treatment.

We accept that given the variety within the sector any form of regulation must be proportionate but effective.

“The existence of small establishments which care
for companion animals and/or wildlife is crucial to
the ongoing welfare of animals in [rural] areas, where
transportation of the animals to larger centres in built
up areas may be impractical or impossible.”  RSPCA

4.5 Size of AWEs

Any regulation would not be about big organisations versus small — for example the larger groups forcing out
the small, as there should be room for all sizes of organisations to function in this area, so long as they provide
an adequate standard of care. To an extent, in some sectors the large organisations need the small and
vice-versa, in terms of ensuring standards and providing spaces for all animals in need of care. The point
should also be made that regulation would allow identification of these smaller AWEs, which can often exist
without any official or public knowledge.

Any future implemented regulation scheme could necessitate the closure of some AWEs which are unable to
reach the required standards due to cost etc. This could be regarded as a positive outcome in cases where
AWESs are operating without proper regard for welfare or beyond their capabilities and funds. Although this
should only affect a very small number of establishments, the effect on the remaining AWEs would be felt due
to increased demand on their services.

20 Tudaleny pecyn 120




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-

=
4.6 Data collection and visibility

It is essential that the legislation makes the return of certain data a compulsory requirement. There is no
reliable information concerning the total number of AWEs in Wales at this time and the nature of their
interaction with animals in their care i.e. welfare outcomes, euthanasia, disease/condition incidents.
Regulation would allow local authorities to retain a comprehensive list of all AWEs in their area, including
locations, animals/species catered for, resources and training available, contact numbers etc. This could be an
invaluable resource for joint working and visibility in the future. Statistics on the nature of the work being
undertaken would also become clearer and more easily quantified and analysed to give a more accurate
picture of the impact on the animal welfare sector.

4.7 Animal welfare policy documents

There must be a clear standard for AWEs to achieve, and this must be clearly documented and generally
available.

While the working group accepts that it is preferable to inspect outputs (results of animals taken into care)
rather than inputs (culture and policies), we recognise the difficulty in doing so with such a broad spectrum of
species. However many output matters can be dealt with by the provision of adequate documentation by the
establishment. Such policy and operating procedure documents would be required to demonstrate compliance
with the Animal Welfare Act (2006), and particularly to Section 9. The issue of a licence should be dependent
on the provision of satisfactory documentation (in addition to an inspection — see 5.8).

Of those organisations who responded to the call for evidence for this enquiry, many of whom are
defined as AWEs, 23 out of 26 agreed with some form of policies being required of all AWEs as a
condition of their registration/licence.

A recognised and enforced minimum standard needs to be the basis of any regulation of AWEs. This has

been proposed as taking the form of AWEs providing compulsory policy documents covering certain set areas.
These polices would be made available for scrutiny as part of any inspection process and would be available
to the public if requested. It would be required that the policies comply with Section 9 of the Animal Welfare Act
(2006) and cover certain defined areas in order for a licence to be granted.

Because of the diversity of animals kept by AWEs it is advised that current Animal Welfare Act Codes of
Practice be used as the basis of any compulsory policy documents for those species they have currently been
produced, and other recognised sources (such as those used by RSPCA, BVA, GFAS etc.) be utilised for
other species until such time as further Codes of Practice are developed to cover them.

The person responsible for the development of the compulsory policy documents should be the operator of the
AWE, which means the natural or legal persons responsible for ensuring that the requirements of animal
welfare and licensing law are met within the AWE under their control; it may be that another person or persons
will take the lead in developing these policies, but the operator of the AWE cannot delegate overall
responsibility for this work.

Tudaleny pecyn 121 21




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =a=- |

L

Such policy documents would demonstrate a level of forethought and contingency planning in key areas of
animal health and welfare and general management regimes and should cover key areas. This would help to
remove any ambiguity over the organisation’s practices and intentions and allow consistency over the entire
sector.

Policies provided should include the compulsory and non-compulsory requirements listed below, and should
aim to avoid any unnecessary suffering of animals in care as outlined in the Animal Welfare Act (2006):% The
level of detail needed for the compulsory policy documents will depend on the type and size of AWE
undertaking, but will as a minimum need to be in writing, in a format that can be readily viewed, and kept at
the AWE in question at all times so that they can be viewed as part of any inspection process.

Collaboration and information sharing should be utilised in this process, with guidance and model templates
already in use by other AWEs and the local authority. Those establishments not able to prove that their policies
comply with the Animal Welfare Act should be denied a licence and either encouraged to reach the standards
required within a specified time period or to close. Help should be offered to those organisations below
standard and who wish to upgrade to improve, perhaps through support from nominated organisations recorded
on a list of experts such as the RSPCA.%

Single hoglet being hand fed at Stapeley, UK. © Joe Murphy/RSPCA

2 ‘Unnecessary suffering’ as defined by the Animal Welfare Act 2006: (1)A person commits an offence if— (a)an act of his, or a failure of his to act, causes an animal
to suffer, (b)he knew, or ought reasonably to have known, that the act, or failure to act, would have that effect or be likely to do so, (c)the animal is a protected animal,
and (d)the suffering is unnecessary. (2)A person commits an offence if— (a)he is responsible for an animal, (b)an act, or failure to act, of another person causes the
animal to suffer, (c)he permitted that to happen or failed to take such steps (whether by way of supervising the other person or otherwise) as were reasonable in all the
circumstances to prevent that happening, and (d)the suffering is unnecessary. (3)The considerations to which it is relevant to have regard when determining for the
purposes of this section whether suffering is unnecessary include— (a)whether the suffering could reasonably have been avoided or reduced; (b)whether the conduct
which caused the suffering was in compliance with any relevant enactment or any relevant provisions of a licence or code of practice issued under an enactment;
(c)whether the conduct which caused the suffering was for a legitimate purpose, such as— (i)the purpose of benefiting the animal, or (ii)the purpose of protecting a
person, property or another animal; (d)whether the suffering was proportionate to the purpose of the conduct concerned; (e)whether the conduct concerned was in all
the circumstances that of a reasonably competent and humane person. (4)Nothing in this section applies to the destruction of an animal in an appropriate and humane

22 glflI'r}]wri]se\l;vould have to be a request made separately to the RSPCIM ge@!cgmeytlﬁecyn 122




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES

@%0 G

4
Policy documents should include:

Compulsory requirements:

» Record keeping - must be put in place to cover any key areas of animal welfare, to include,
as a minimum, the receipt and disposal of animals, any veterinary care and the feeding and
care regime for each animal (refer to compulsory wildlife recording 5.5 be low);

» Euthanasia — under what circumstances a decision to euthanase would be made and ability
to enact;

» Vet checks/vaccinations — nominated veterinary surgeon and ability to provide;

* Breeding from animals in care — reasons;

* Hygiene/disease control;

» Staff and volunteer training/competency: a) the establishment licence holder is responsible
for ensuring that they, or a responsible member of staff at a managerial or supervisory
level, have adequate knowledge and skills to implement legislative requirements and to
ensure the well-being of animals in their care; b) where existing skills and knowledge are
not demonstrable, completion of a programme of training from an accredited education
provider should be attained by the licensee and/or responsible member of staff;

* Number and type of animals able to be accommodated and where. If wild animals are to
be taken in, how each species will be housed etc.

Non-compulsory requirements to provide guidance on best practice:

* Public access/display (not appropriate for wild animals);

* Ownership — such as “signing over” animals when they are taken in;

* Rehoming;

» Fostering arrangements — for organisations that utilise a network of fosters or multiple small
sites, they would need to register as a single organisation and provide robust policies to
cover this and enact a level of self-regulation to ensure their fosterers standards where
maintained;

* Release protocols for wildlife;

» Neutering and microchipping where appropriate.

Tudalen y pecyn 123




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =a=

O‘.‘. -

“Because wild animals are perceived as not
having owners, members of the public believe
they can “have a go”, attempting great feats of
orthopaedic surgery on animals with open
fractures and broken spines, with bandages
and lolly pop sticks.” Gower Bird Hospital

4.8 The question of wildlife

Wild animal rehabilitation is a specialised area of animal welfare with many different needs, facilities and
outcomes than for companion or farm animals. There are risks to human safety as well as separate and
additional legislation governing protected wild animals. Consideration must be given to the number of
different species admitted, types of housing available, rehabilitation methods and provision for monitoring
success rates, as well as the potential to spread disease to other protected or domestic animals, livestock or
people. Record keeping for compliance with the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) is compulsory for those
species listed on Schedule 4 of this Act, however for most other species it is the responsibility of the keeper
to demonstrate the provenance of the animals in their care. Such records should be kept in all centres
treating wildlife and this should be a requirement of any new legislation. Animal welfare for wild animals is
poorly understood, wild bred animals have a natural fear response to people and can exhibit high levels of
stress behaviour in captivity. Furthermore, these animals are not pets and should not be treated as such.

Wildlife rehabilitation centres admit many different species of wildlife, requiring different housing, handling and
treatment protocols. They must be able to demonstrate knowledge of the biology and ecology of the species
being cared for as this is particularly important for the successful treatment and rehabilitation of protected
animals.

Given all the above it would be unlikely that any wildlife AWEs, if they have a non-euthanasia policy, would be
able to satisfy the welfare requirements of permanently disabled protected animals under the Animal Welfare
Act. A large percentage of wildlife casualties are non-releasable and permanent captives would put enormous
strain on facilities at AWEs, reducing the effectiveness of centres to rehabilitate those wildlife casualties that
have a chance of being released and potentially compromising the welfare of releasable and non-releasable
animals.Therefore a pragmatic euthanasia policy for non-releasable animals is essential.

If wildlife AWEs are already established and visible through advertising or through agreements with the RSPCA
and other organisations, the effect of any regulation would appear to be small due to the limited number of
wildlife rehabilitation facilities in Wales and their specialist role. There is however perhaps an unknown

number of individuals and organisations that hold themselves out to receive wildlife casualties from the public
and private veterinary practices across Wales.

24 Tudalen y pecyn 124




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales W
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-
G

4.9 Accountability

It was felt by the working group that an organisation or nominated person should be licensed under any
regulation scheme which required it, rather than licensing a physical address. The issue of internet based
animal welfare organisations should also be considered in any future regulation, as these are increasing in
number in recent years, making knowledge of physical addresses and visibility harder to achieve.

The question of accountability in regards to other individuals within AWEs or their organisations should also be
considered. These other individuals include: fosterers (approved/inspected/informal), veterinary surgeons and
surgeries, boarding establishments, satellite sites and satellite organisations.

Any regulation to cover these individuals would need to be proportionate. For example, if an AWE utilises a
network of fosterers or multiple small sites, they would need to register as a single organisation and provide
robust policies to cover their arrangements and enact a level of internal regulation to ensure their fosterers’
standards were maintained. We do not want a situation where each individual fosterer needs licensing.
However, in the interests of transparency comprehensive records of fosterers and animals cared for should be
kept by each AWE.

4.10 Veterinary surgeons

Veterinary surgeons play an important role in the effective management of an AWE, and could also
contribute to the visibility of these organisations under a regulation scheme.

A nominated veterinary surgeon with the necessary expertise relevant to that organisation and the animals
being kept by them should also be recorded as part of the policy documents detailed in section 4.3 above.

4.11 Inspections

An annual or risk-based inspection should be a central element of any licensing scheme, which would also
allow for a cost recovery element. It could be difficult to justify inspections for licensing if the process was not
mandatory, so mandatory inspections with a right of entry for Inspectors included in the regulations would be
preferable?®.

Although it was generally accepted by the working group that local authorities are in the best position to
enforce any new regulations and conduct inspections in this area, there is some concern that they are already
overstretched financially and in terms of resources. However, this role could easily integrate into the current
local authority responsibilities for animal welfare legislation providing the costs are fully recoverable.

28 In the Welsh Government's draft Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2012, Powers of Entry are addressed in section 21 as ‘Breach of a licence

condition must be treated as a relevant offence for the purﬁFﬂM@ﬁ? ytkp@@pnarﬂﬁgh under warrant in connection with offences)’. 25




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =a=- |

b
There was also concern that Inspectors would not necessarily have sufficient expertise to inspect certain
specialist AWEs such as wildlife rehabilitation centres. The use of a vet would not always resolve this problem
due to the specialist nature of some disciplines, but it has been suggested by most responders to this inquiry
that veterinary input would be necessary. It was also suggested that difficulties could be overcome by
providing contact details for a panel of experts who would be available to support the inspecting officer.
Possible experts could include veterinary surgeons and individuals from established AWEs or, in the case of
wildlife rehabilitation centres, individuals from wildlife establishments used by the RSPCA in the local
authority’s area.

Extra animal welfare training could also be provided for Inspectors throughout Wales by organisations such
as the RSPCA, British Horse Society, Donkey Sanctuary and others. This training would also be of benefit to
other areas of the Inspector’s animal welfare role.

Inspections should not use a similar format to current dog boarding licensing procedures where inspections
are prearranged with the management of the facility once a year. Unannounced inspections would allow the
Inspector to see the establishment in its normal working condition.

Inspections should be risk-based where risk is related to the condition of the establishment, its management and
the size of the establishment. Licences could run for up to three years with the frequency of inspection set at

a minimum of annual but as frequently as considered necessary for high risk establishments. There should be
some financial implication for those high risk establishments, for example by charging for any additional
inspections required on a cost neutral basis.

It would be preferable to have standardised local inspection protocols to ensure consistency and fairness. This
could be achieved by ensuring minimum standards are contained within the legislation and also in a similar
way to other legislative enforcement, through training for enforcement officers, Welsh Government additional
guidance and the use of existing local authority liaison arrangements.

There have been suggestions that the current Zoo Licensing Act (1981) could cover AWEs open to the public,
but these organisations are in many cases unlikely to apply for a Zoo Licence either because they fall outside
the legal definition, or because their motivations for running an animal welfare establishment mean that they

do not want to be classed as a zoo. Any establishment granted a licence under the sanctuaries inspection
scheme should be specifically exempt from the Zoo Licensing Act, unless they fall under the definition of a zoo
as defined in the legislation.*°

Access to AWEs in order to carry out an inspection is an important issue which will determine the
effectiveness of any regulation. Right of entry for proactive and reactive inspections and other regulatory
intervention visits are therefore a crucial aspect of this system.

28 As a point of reference or example of standards currently in use, the RSPCA's site inspection standards can be found in Appendix D.
% Definition of a zoo: A zoo is an establishment that displays wild animals to the public for more than 7 days in any one 12 month period, as defined by the Zoo
Licensing Act (1981). Zoos are required to be licensed by local authorities after the receipt of a satisfactory report on the establishment by a vet appointed by Defra.

The definition of a wild animal as given in section 27 of this Act iT Q 1@:“1 Ty At eat Britain. This has been clarified in a subsequent Defra
26 naalerryrpecyr'e26

circular an extract of which can be found in Appendix E at the en




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales w
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-
G

There is currently a toolkit available to local authorities when standards slip, which has already been included
in the Animal Welfare Act (2006). It was felt by the working group that it would therefore be advisable to also
adopt the penalties outlined in the Act, namely the issuing of improvement notices and finally, seizure. The
group would advise that any regulation should state that it would be an offence not to comply with an
improvement notice issued under the regulation, which is not currently the case under the Animal Welfare Act
(2006). It is imperative that the improvement notice is constrained by a time period. This differing requirement
could be justified by the expectation of a higher degree of compliance with the Animal Welfare Act from an
AWE, whose direct function is that of animal welfare and where expertise should have been developed to a
higher standard, than those of private animal keepers.

The working group would like to add that if the Animal Welfare Act could be amended to allow enforcement
notice compliance to be compulsory, such as in Scotland, this would strengthen the position of this regulation
and add extra weight to Local Authorities enforcing it. It would also allow robust enforcement without removing
the AWEs licence, which would potentially close those premises.

4.12 Compliance and penalties

Compliance with any regulation could be enforced by giving Inspectors the ability to amend the numbers of
animals and the types of species licensed at a particular AWE overall. This would mean that if problems were
to arise, the ability of the AWE to take in any new animals could be halted by the Inspector in a probationary
capacity until any problems were resolved.

The working group wants to reinforce that it does not want a system of regulation that would remove a licence
for non-compliance, as this would lead to a situation where the AWE in question was no longer able to be
inspected because the authorities would no longer be able to gain access without a warrant.

4.13 Costs and charges

Options are either cost-neutral or cost-recovery through a licence/registration fee, or Government funding
however, it should be noted that we would not want this option to harm the ability to introduce regulation and
feel that a cost neutral cost recovery system through a fee is a viable alternative.

Fee structures should be set by the Welsh Government and not left to the discretion of the local authorities,
on the condition that they are on a true cost recovery basis. This must be equivalent to costs and not confer
undue profit. Fees should be proportionate so as not to unfairly burden smaller organisations.

The concern that smaller organisations could not afford a licence fee even if means-tested and, subsidised by
the larger establishments’ fees can be justified by the concern that an establishment running without sufficient
funds would also have limited ability to provide for animals in their care and should be encouraged to cease
operating.

Tudaleny pecyn 127/ 27




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =a=

SECTION 5: CONCLUSION

After thorough examination of the issues involved, a summary of the recommendations contained in this report
include:

. AWEs provide a range of essential services for animal welfare in the community;

. Hoarding is a distinct and separate issue to the regulation of AWEs and can be dealt with under
the Animal Welfare Act (2006);

. Compulsory regulation of AWEs is recommended in the form of secondary regulation brought
under the Animal Welfare Act (2006);

. Compulsory registration of AWE details would be an integral part of any regulations;

. Data collection should be prioritised as an important resource for information and visibility of
organisations operating as AWEs;

. Animal welfare policy documents should be a requirement of organisations under any regulation.
These should include both compulsory and recommended requirements. Those establishments
not able to prove that their policies comply with the Animal Welfare Act should be denied a
licence and either encouraged to reach the standards required within a specified time period or
to close;

. The unique challenges and specialties of wildlife rehabilitation should be specifically addressed
in any regulations;

. A nominated individual should hold responsibility for an organisation, but with reference to
other individuals who may also carry varying levels of responsibility (i.e. fosters);

. Each AWE should have a nominated vet with knowledge of their operations;

. A Local Authority administered mandatory risk-based inspection to involve veterinary presence
should be a central element of any registration scheme, considered on an annual basis, which
would also contribute to cost recovery;

. Compliance should be addressed by the current Animal Welfare Act toolkit, Improvement Notices,
amendments to the numbers of animals licensed for an AWE to keep or instructions to carry out
specified works to meet the legal minimum standards, rather than removal of licenses that could
lead to problems of access;

. Proportionate fees should be set by the Welsh Government on a self-funding cost-neutral/cost
recovery basis.

In conclusion, the AWNW AWE working group strongly recommends that regulation of AWEs be introduced

in Wales. This sentiment was also reflected by a majority of those organisations who submitted evidence to
this enquiry, and so should be seen as a relatively uncontroversial move from within the sector and the wider
public.

28 Tudalen y pecyn 128




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales w
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-
G

APPENDIX A: THE ROLE OF AWNW

The Animal Welfare Network for Wales (AWNW) is an independent initiative set up to bring together all
organisations with volunteers who work within the animal welfare world in Wales. Currently there are 146
member organisations (including animal welfare organisations and other NGOs, vets, local authorities) that
make up the Network, which is a large representative section of the sector.

It should also be pointed out that AWNW is already functioning as a facilitation group for the animal welfare
sector, representing many AWEs who would be affected by any future regulation. Therefore the AWNW is in a
position to facilitate forums, networking and joint working with local authorities, Government etc. in the context
of regulation of AWEs. AWNW does in fact already have a working relationship with the proposed enforcers
and parties outlined in this report. The AWNW's existence could also help to mitigate any possible negative
effects on the sector.

The aim of the Network is to facilitate affective communication between all animal welfare organisations who
work in Wales at a crucial time for the sector — March 2011 saw animal welfare devolved to Wales as a whole
sector®!, The Welsh Government has a Compact with the Voluntary Sector, which provides for a seat on animal
welfare issues on the Third Sector Partnership Council (TSPC). The RSPCA holds that seat as a representative
of AWNW, to facilitate information across all interested groups in Wales.

The Network provides a number of services for its members — from information facilitation of political
developments related to animal welfare, to networking events and topic lead seminars. The Network was also
involved in the former Welsh Government administered the Companion Animal Welfare Enhancement Scheme
(CAWES) which allowed its members access to meetings with local authorities on companion animal welfare
issues and be involved in special projects run by the councils.

Following the conclusion of CAWES on the 31st of March 2011, AWNW, the Welsh Government, local
authority representatives and the WLGA (Welsh Local Government Association) ran a successor scheme
which operated without funding. This scheme only covered four meetings throughout Wales for the discussion
of companion animal matters between the Welsh Government, local authorities, AWNW members and others
with an interest in animal welfare. The Welsh Government provided the chair and venues for these meetings,
whilst the AWNW provided the secreteriat. The Network is in discussions about this scheme’s future.

More details about the AWNW work can be found on the AWNW website at www.awnwales.org

Tudalen y pecyn 129 29

31 Exceptions being hunting and animal experiments




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as- |

@

APPENDIX B: CALL FOR EVIDENCE LETTER AND FORM

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =@
o%0 o%e

@a* ™

10March 2010

Dear Sir or Madam,
RE: AWNW Animal W elfare Establishment “Sanctuaries” Evidence Gathering

The Animal Welfare Network for Wales (AWNW) is conducting an evidence gathering exercise to
determine views on animal welfare establishments (sanctuaries) and regulation in Wales. We are
attempting to reach as many sanctuaries and related organisations as possible for their input.

We are interested in hearing from any animal welfare establishment, which includes: rehoming,
retired animals, rescue, rehabilitation, community based activities etc. We are also interested in
all types of animals including: companion, wildlife and farm animals.

AWNW would be very pleased to receive any evidence which your organisation would like to
submit on the issue of sanctuaries and regulation. There are two ways to give evidence: written,
orally or both.

If you woukd like to submit oral evidence, please use the form attached for guidance. If you have
other comments not covered by our questions, please feel free to include these as we want to
hear all of your thoughts on this topic. The deadline to submit this written evidence is the 30" of
June 2010. Please submit your evidence in email format to contact@awrwales.org.uk

If you would prefer to give your evidence orally or if you wish to supplement your written
submission, then the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishment *Sanctuaries™ working group will be
available on three dates. This will be a chance for you to have an informal chat with a faw of the
working group members to have your organisations views heard.

Wewill be hoking sessions throughout Wales on the following dates:
05.05.10 Welsh Assembly Government offices, Aberystwyth
25.05.10Welsh Assembly Government offices, Merthyr Tyfil
10.06.10 Welsh Assembly Government offices, Caemarfon

To book a slot at one of these sessions, please contact the Co-ordinator using the details below
before the 9™ of April 2010.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss anything further, please feel free to contact me.
| thank you for your time and hope to hear from you soon.

Kind regards,

\ — 4

ey ") o
Tina Reece

0300 123 8910 » contact@awnwales.org.uk « AWNW, 10 Ty Nant Count, Cardiff CF15 LW

30 Tudalen y pecyn 150




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales M

A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES ===
&<

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES ==
“O.’i‘.

<
Animal Welfare Establishment Sanctuaries Call for Evidence

Contact Details

1. FUll Mo Of ORgANIBAMON: ... outisaesnasaansasnsssasassannnsn sassanasnnes asnnss sasass aanass aanssn asnses anasas SHARAS BRREHS AANSAA AARSSS RRRSRS SRRRS
2. CONTACT MEIMIE Lo iit it it iiee st aaasee o saas ae e s e aaae b 4a e e e o & ee 444 ea £abs b4 bd 4 d 40 £ 4 bbb 40 0 S8 400 404k b a0 s bt

B T T 1 PP PO PPRPPON

4. Contact NUMDBEN: (it 90 MBI C it i s s s

Questions
We would like to hear anything you have to say on this issue. Please use the questons below as informal
guidance and feel free to add anything else you wish to discuss under question 5. As there is only limited space
allow below we would prefer you to submit your answers in an emai to contact@awrwales.org

1. What rolke do you see animal welfare establishments playing in Walks? If you run an animal welfare establishment
(sanctuary, rehoming centre, rescua/rehabilitation, wildlife hospital, animal retirement centre stc.) we woukd also like to
know details of your operation such as size, staffing, running costs, income generation etc. which would be pertinent
to regulation. if you are a Local Authority please add how many animal welfars establishments are in your area and
any relevant details.

2. Do you agree with the practice of sanctuaries providing palicies regarding their animal welfare work (such as policies
on how to handle euthanasia, transfer of animals atc.)?

Tudalen y pecyn 131

31




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as- |

0..0. -

3. Do you agree with the principle of regulating sanctuaries? What concems do you have, if any?

4. Do you agree that a compulsory Local Authority run registration/licensing system for sanctuaries would be the most
appropriate method of regulation?

32 Tudalen y pecyn 132




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =as-
@

APPENDIX C: EVIDENCE

Transcripts of written evidence can be accessed at:  http://www.awnwales.org/AWEwritten
Transcripts of oral evidence can be accessed at: http://www.awnwales.org/AWEoral

APPENDIX D: RSPCA INSPECTION STANDARDS

A full copy of the Licensing Conditions for all RSPCA Animal Centres (December 2009) can be found at:
www.politicalanimal.org.uk/RSPCA/Licensing Conditions.pdf

A copy of the standards for non-RSPCA centres for wildlife can be found at:
www.rspca.org.uk/allaboutanimals/wildlife/rehabilitation/standards

Licensing Conditions for all RSPCA Animal Centres
Branch & Animal Centre Support Department

Oomoms
1. Introduction and applicability ... 4 b 4 0 4 A S0 44 2 S 0 b e ek b4t
Saerious Breach ... =D
Minor Breach..... ..B
2. Construction.. -
General ...... -
Dogs ...... A
Cats ... e 13
EQUINes ....cooviiiiiinns e 14
3. Numbers of Animalks.. .15
General . A5
Dogs .18
Cats: .. A7
(=T T mam—" .
Miscalansous Animals:..... .18
4. Management of Animals.... a 20
GEneral v i e 20
Dogs: . .26
Cats ... 27
EQUINGs ... ... 28

5. Management of the Centre....
Reports and Administration ...
Opsning Hours ..
TrANSPOM ..o i ierssissis s aiasnsvans
Cleaniness and Hygiene — Genaral..
Cleaninsss and Hygisne — Animals ..
Cleaninsss and Hygoene Staff and Public.
Fire Precautions...
Health & Safaty .....
2 DT —— 38

6. Wekare Guidslines............

Legtslanon & RSPCA Policy.. .39
....................................................................................................... Y-S |
STAND\RDS FOR THE CARE OF 'MISCELLANEOUS' ANIMALS IN RSPCA -3 |
(27 o — .42
Ferrsts and Chipmurks. .42
Other small mammals .42
Small Birds. .43
Large Birds........covivinnnnas w44
Reptiles and Amphibians... —
Miscslansous Licence Condihon Table .. 45
Indlex... ...48
Ucsnos Condiions December 2009 1

Tudalen y pecyn 133 33




The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES <a=

@
APPENDIX E: DEFRA CIRCULAR 02/2003 — ZOO LICENSING ACT 1981, ANNEX E

Animals considered normally domesticated or not normally domesticated for the purposes of the Zoo
licensing Act 1981. The Secretary of State is not in a position to give an authoritative statement on which
animals fall into the ‘normally non-domestic’ and ‘normally domestic’ categories as interpretation of
legislation is a matter for the Courts. However, an informal view on the more common cases that have
caused uncertainty is set out below.

To explain the thinking, the two categories have been sub-divided into the following five subcategories.
Species not in categories 1 to 4 will almost certainly be in 5. Hybrid species should be treated as not
normally domesticated if one of the parents is from sub-categories 3 to 5. Where there is doubt about a
species, local authorities, Inspectors or operators may check with Defra who may seek views through the
Zoos Forum.

Species normally domesticated
in Great Britain and therefore not
“wild animals” for the purposes of

Species not normally domesticated in Great Britain
and therefore to be considered “wild animals” for the
purposes of the ZLA.

34

the ZLA.

1. True domestic
breeds of species
that have been
kept in this country
for so long, and in
such large numbers,
that their status

as “normally
domesticated in
Great Britain” is
clearly justified
(exotic domestic
breeds of the same
species as those
listed here are
included, eg.
Viethamese
potbellied pigs).

Examples:
horses/ponies,
donkeys, cattle,
sheep, goats, pigs,
dogs, cats, ferrets,
rabbits, pigeons/
doves, chickens,
turkeys, ducks,
geese.

2. True domestic
breeds, and
selectively bred
wild species,
introduced to this
country relatively
recently, but now
so commonly kept
outside zoological
collections as to
justify regarding
them as “normally
domesticated in
Great Britain”.

Examples:
guinea pigs,
hamsters, gerbils,
rats, mice,
chinchillas,
budgerigars,
canaries, guinea
fowl, peafowl,
goldfish, koi carp,
golden orfe.

3. True domestic
breeds of species
introduced to this
country relatively
recently, and kept
in relatively low
numbers, and that
therefore should
be regarded as
“not normally
domesticated

in Great Britain”
(exotic domestic
breeds of species in
list 1. Are included
in that list).

Examples:
llamas, alpacas,
camels, water
buffalo,Ankole
cattle, yak,
reindeer.

4. Wild species,
commercially
farmed or widely
bred by hobbyists
(including some
species which
have been
selectively bred
and therefore may
be considered
domestic), but
where this is so
recent as to render
the species

“not normally
domesticated in
Great Britain”

Examples:

deer, ostriches,
wild boar, American
bison, aquarium
and pond fish
(excluding those
in 2.), cage and
aviary birds
(excluding those
in 2.), waterfowl
(excluding those
in 1.), giant African
land snails.

5. True wild
species, where
domesticity is
not seriously
suggested.

Examples:
All species not
listed

Tudalen y pecyn 154



The case for the regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales
A report produced by the AWNW Animal Welfare Establishments ‘Sanctuaries’ Working Group
| ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES =ac-

o'l—. -

Tudalen y pecyn 135 35




AN AWNW | 10 Ty Nant Court | Cardiff CF15 8LW

ANIMAL WELFARE NETWORK WALES o www.awnwales.org | 0300 123 8914




P-04-500 Call For Regulation of Animal Welfare Establishments in Wales -
Correspondence from the Petitioner to the Committee, 21.05.14.

Hi Kayleigh,

| agree with the RSPCA as this report is what | am calling on the Assembly to

implement, as it is much needed.
Yours

Lisa Winnett

Tudalen y pecyn 137



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 138



	Agenda
	2.1 P-04-557 Y Gwasanaeth Tribiwnlys Prisio
	3.1 P-04-526 Gwnewch Senedd TV yn hygyrch i bobl fyddar
	20.05.2014 Gohebiaeth -  Y Llywydd at y Cadeirydd (Saesneg yn unig)
	28.05.2014 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Pwyllgor (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.2 P-04-319 Deiseb ynghylch Traffig yn y Drenewydd
	14.05.2014 Gohebiaeth -  Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddioniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth at y Cadeirydd (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.3 P-03-315 Deiseb i gael croesfan newydd dros Afon Dyfi
	31.03.2014 Gohebiaeth -  Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiath at y Cadeirydd (Saesneg yn unig)
	27.05.2014 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Tim Clercio (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.4 P-04-487 Cynllun benthyg blaendal Llywodraeth Cymru i’r rheini sy’n prynu tŷ am y tro cyntaf yng Nghymru
	29.04.2014  Gohebiaeth - Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio at y Cadeirydd
	25.05.2014 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Tim Clercio (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.5 P-04-536 Rhoi’r Gorau i Ffatrïoedd Ffermio Gwartheg Godro yng Nghymru
	01.05.2014 Gohebiaeth -  Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio at y Cadeirydd (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.6 P-04-447 Ymgyrch am Gerflun o Harri’r Seithfed ym Mhenfro
	Briff Ymchwil (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.7 P-04-539 Achub Cyfnewidfa Lo
	07.05.14 Gohebiaeth - Arweinydd Cyngor Caerdydd at y Cadeirydd (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.8 P-04-436 Gwariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru
	02.03.2014 Gohebiaeth - Gweinidog Cyllid at y Cadeirydd (Saesneg yn unig)
	22.05.14 Gohebiareth -  Deisebydd at y Tim Clercio (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.9 P-04-437 Gwrthwynebu cofrestru gorfodol ar gyfer plant sy’n derbyn addysg yn y cartref
	3.10 P-04-517 Atal Llywodraeth Cymru rhag cyflwyno system i fonitro plant sy’n dewis cael eu haddysgu gartref o dan wedd diogelu
	06.05.2014 Gohebiaeth -  Datganiad Ysgrifenedig gan Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau

	3.11 P-04-448 Gwella gwasanaethau iechyd rhywiol yng ngorllewin y Fro
	3.12 P-04-449 Ysbyty Tywysoges Cymru Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr - Achub ein Gwasanaethau - Atal yr Israddio!
	25.05.14 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Tim Clercio (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.13 P-04-456 Dementia - Gallai hyn ddigwydd i chi
	12.05.14 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Pwyllgor (Saesneg yn unig)
	20.05.14 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Pwyllgor (Saesneg yn unig)
	09.05.14 Gohebiaeth - Cyfnewid Ebost (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.14 P-04-502 Canolfan Lles ar gyfer Cymru
	21.10.2013 Gohebiaeth -  Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol at y Cadeirydd (Saesneg yn unig)
	08.05.2014 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Tim Clercio (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.15 P-04-530 Labelu Dwyieithog
	04.05.2014 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Pwyllgor(Saesneg yn unig)

	3.16 P-04-500 Galw am Reoleiddio Sefydliadau Lles Anifeiliaid yng Nghymru
	14.04.14 Gohebiaeth - RSPCA at y Pwyllgor (Saesneg yn unig)
	21.05.14 Gohebiaeth - Deisebydd at y Tim Clercio (Saesneg yn unig)
	Legal Briefing (Saesneg yn unig)


